
THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
2016 COUNCIL MEETING 

 
 

A G E N D A 
      

DATE:  Wednesday, December 7, 2016 
CLOSED MEETING:     12:30 P.M. 
REGULAR MEETING:  1:00 P.M. 

≠ Denotes resolution prepared  
 

1. Call the Meeting to Order  
 

2. Disclosure of Pecuniary Interest & the General Nature Thereof.  
 

3. CLOSED ITEMS ≠ 
 
a. Confidential Report ADM-2016-022- Citizen Appointments to the Planning 

and Development Advisory Committee regarding personal matters about an 
identifiable individual including municipal or local board employees. * Report 
is being provided as information at this time – applications to be evaluated on 
December 21, 2016.  

 
4. Adoption and Receipt of Minutes of the Previous Meeting.≠ 

  
(b) Council Meeting – November 23, 2016  
(c) Closed Council Meeting – November 23, 2016  

 
5. Business Arising Out of the Minutes.  
 
6. PUBLIC MEETINGS 

 
7. COMMUNICATIONS  
 

1. Financial Indicator Review 
a. Correspondence from the Ministry of Municipal Affairs and Housing. 

 
2. Request for discount on booking fee from the Global Vets 2017 Committee.  

a. Correspondence dated November 23, 2016.  
 

3. ARB Fee increase  
a. Correspondence from the Environment and Land Tribunals dated 

November 24, 2016 
 

4. Environmental Registry Alert 
a. Noor Associates Ltd. 7456 McLean Road 



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
December 7, 2016 MEETING 

  
 

P a g e  | 2 
 

5. Freedom Mobile, Community notification for a Telecommunication tower. 
a. Correspondence received November 29, 2016.  

 
6. Comments on the proposed Ontario Regulation “ Taking Groundwater to 

Produce Bottled Water” 
a. Correspondence from Stan Denhoed, Harden Environmental dated 

November 30, 2016.  

7. Intergovernmental Affairs≠ 
 

(a) Various correspondence for review.   
 

8. DELEGATIONS / PRESENTATIONS ≠ 
 

1:05 P.M. Puslinch Lake Conservation Association with respect to a grant 
request for $25,000 in support of lake dredging ≠ 
 

9. REPORTS  

1. Puslinch Fire and Rescue Services  
 

None 

2. Finance Department ≠ 
 

(a) Applications for Cancellation, Reduction or Refund of Taxes re:  Chapter 25, 
Section 357, 358 – Municipal Act ≠ 

(b) FIN-2016-029 2017 User Fees and Charges By-law 

3. Administration Department ≠ 
 

(a) Wellington County Report with respect to the Emergency Management 
Program Report for 2016 ≠ 

 
(b) Wellington County Report with respect to the Emergency Response Plan 

Amendment Number 3≠ 
 

(c) Wellington County Report with respect to the Puslinch Township Annual 
Exercise After Action Report. ≠ 

 



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
December 7, 2016 MEETING 

  
 

P a g e  | 3 
 

(d) Wellington County Report with respect to the Strategic Direction for 
Emergency Management Programs≠ 

 
(e) 2017 Township Council and Budget Meeting Dates 

i. Meeting schedule provided as information at this time. Any proposed 
changes to the schedule can be addressed at the December 21, 2016 
Council Meeting. ≠ 
 

(f) Report ADM-2016-023 Council Appointments to Committees≠ 
 

(g) Report ADM-2016-024 Appointment of Closed Meeting Investigator 
 
(h) Report ADM-2016-025 Acting Mayor Schedule 

4. Planning and Building  
 
(a) Chief Building Official Report – November 2016 ≠ 
 
(b) Report PD-2016-033 Telecommunication Application File A12/ROG – Rogers 

Communications Inc. 45 metre Tower, Plan 131, Part Lot 3, West of Blind 
Line, located on Arkell Road and Victoria Road.   

5. Roads & Parks Department 
 
 None.  
 

6. Recreation Department  
 
None.   

7. Mayor’s Updates  
 
None.  
 

10. NOTICES OF MOTION  
 
 None.  
 
11. COMMITTEE MINUTES  

 



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
December 7, 2016 MEETING 

  
 

P a g e  | 4 
 

a. Recreation Committee Minutes dated October 18, 2016 
b. Public Meeting Minutes dated November 10, 2016 Zoning Amendment File 

D14/ONT 1340464 Ontario Ltd (Weber) 4576 Wellington Road 32 
  

12. MUNICIPAL ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
13. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
14. BY-LAWS ≠  

 
(a)  083-16 Being a by-law to Appoint a Closed Meeting Investigator (As per Item 

9(3)(g)) 
 
15. CONFIRMING BY-LAW ≠ 
 

(a) By-law to confirm the proceedings of Council for the Corporation of the 
Township of Puslinch.  

 
16. ADJOURNMENT ≠ 



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
November 23, 2016 COUNCIL MEETING 

 
 
 

Page 1 of 9 
 

M I N U T E S 
 

DATE:  Wednesday, November 23, 2016 
CLOSED MEETING:     6:00 P.M. 
REGULAR MEETING:  7:00 P.M. 

 

The November 23, 2016 Regular Council Meeting was held on the above date and called to 
order at 6:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers, Aberfoyle.  
 
1. ATTENDANCE:   

 
Mayor Dennis Lever  
Councillor Matthew Bulmer 
Councillor Susan Fielding  
Councillor Ken Roth  
Councillor John Sepulis 
 
STAFF IN ATTENDANCE: 

 
1. Karen Landry, CAO/Clerk  
2. Don Creed, Director of Public Works and Parks  
3. Robert Kelly, Chief Building Official  
4. Nina Lecic, Deputy Clerk 

    
OTHERS IN ATTENDANCE 
 
1. Gerie McCauley 
2. Sally Prior 
3. Mary Lawrence 
4. Bev McQuain 
5. John Lawrence 
6. Marcel Pruski 
7. Jeff Buisman 
8. Gay Kukovica 
9. Luke Kukovica 
10. Jessica Goyda 
11. Stephen Goyda 
12. John Sloot 
13. Tony Mihocas 
14. Dave Prior 
15. Josh Fraser 

 
2. DISCLOSURE OF PECUNIARY INTEREST & THE GENERAL NATURE THEREOF: 

 
Councillor Bulmer declared a pecuniary interest with respect to Item 3(a) - Confidential 
Verbal Report from Karen Landry, CAO/Clerk regarding the security of the property of the 
municipality or local board, with respect to 23 Brock Road. Councillor Bulmer left Council 
Chambers and was not present for any discussions on the matter. 

 
3. CLOSED MEETING 

 
Council was in closed session from 6:02 p.m. to 6:54 p.m.  
Council recessed from 6:54 p.m. to 7:00 p.m. 

 
Resolution No. 2016-417:   Moved by Councillor Sepulis and  

   Seconded by Councillor Fielding 
 

That Council shall go into closed session under Section 239 of the Municipal Act for 
the purpose of: 

(a) Confidential Verbal Report from Karen Landry, CAO/Clerk regarding the 
security of the property of the municipality or local board, with respect to 23 
Brock Road. 



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
November 23, 2016 COUNCIL MEETING 

 
 
 

Page 2 of 9 
 

(b) Confidential Verbal Report from Karen Landry, CAO/Clerk regarding litigation 
or potential litigation, including matters before administrative tribunals 
affecting the municipality or local board and advice that is subject to solicitor 
client privilege, including communications necessary for that purpose – Reid – 
7827 Wellington Road 36 - Normal Farm Practices Board Hearing  

(c) Confidential Verbal Report from Karen Landry, CAO/Clerk regarding advice 
that is subject to solicitor-client privilege, including communications 
necessary for that purpose – Development agreements.  

(d) Confidential Verbal Report from Karen Landry, CAO/Clerk regarding litigation 
or potential litigation, including matters before administrative tribunals 
affecting the municipality or local board and advice that is subject to solicitor 
client privilege, including communications necessary for that purpose – 599 
Arkell Road 

(e) Confidential Verbal Report from Karen Landry, CAO/Clerk regarding personal 
matters about an identifiable individual, including municipal or local board 
employees and labour relations or employee negotiations – Organizational 
review.  

CARRIED 
 

Resolution No. 2016- 418:  Moved by Councillor Fielding and  
    Seconded by Councillor Sepulis 

 
THAT Council move into open session.  

CARRIED 
 

Council resumed into open session at 6:54 p.m. 
 

Resolution No. 2016- 419:  Moved by Councillor Sepulis and  
    Seconded by Councillor Fielding 

 
That Council receives the: 
a. Confidential Verbal Report from Karen Landry, CAO/Clerk regarding the security 

of the property of the municipality or local board, with respect to 23 Brock Road. 
b. Confidential Verbal Report from Karen Landry, CAO/Clerk regarding litigation or 

potential litigation, including matters before administrative tribunals affecting the 
municipality or local board and advice that is subject to solicitor client privilege, 
including communications necessary for that purpose – Reid – 7827 Wellington 
Road 36 - Normal Farm Practices Board Hearing  

c. Confidential Verbal Report from Karen Landry, CAO/Clerk regarding advice that 
is subject to solicitor-client privilege, including communications necessary for 
that purpose – Development agreements 

d. Confidential Verbal Report from Karen Landry, CAO/Clerk regarding litigation or 
potential litigation, including matters before administrative tribunals affecting the 
municipality or local board and advice that is subject to solicitor client privilege, 
including communications necessary for that purpose – 599 Arkell Road 

e. Confidential Verbal Report from Karen Landry, CAO/Clerk regarding personal 
matters about an identifiable individual, including municipal or local board 
employees and labour relations or employee negotiations – Organizational 
review.  

 
And that staff proceed as directed. 

CARRIED 
4. ADOPTION OF THE MINUTES:  
 

(a) Council Meeting – November 9, 2016  
(b) Closed Council Meeting – November 9, 2016  

 
Resolution No. 2016- 420:  Moved by Councillor Fielding and  

    Seconded by Councillor Sepulis 
 



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
November 23, 2016 COUNCIL MEETING 

 
 
 

Page 3 of 9 
 

That the minutes of the following meetings be adopted as written and distributed:  
 

(a) Council Meeting – November 9, 2016  
(b) Closed Council Meeting – November 9, 2016   

CARRIED  
 
5. BUSINESS ARISING OUT OF THE MINUTES: 
 

a. Ontario taking action to take water.  
 
Karen Landry, CAO/Clerk sought clarification from Council with respect to additional 
information sought on the Ontario action to take water.  
 
Council requested that Stan Denhoed, Harden Environmental provide a submission 
on behalf of the Township to the Ministry of the Environment with respect to the 
Moratorium - Permit to Take Water for Water Bottling EBR Registry Number 012-
8783 at a cost of $800.  

 
6. PUBLIC MEETINGS:  

 
None 

 
7. COMMUNICATIONS:  
  

1. Ontario Municipal Partnership Fund municipal allocations 2017 
 

(a) Correspondence from the Ministry of Finance dated November 10, 2016 
(b) Correspondence from AMO dated November 10, 2016 

 
2. Monthly Monitoring Report, Mill Creek Pit, License #5738, 7115 Concession 2 

a. Correspondence from Dufferin Aggregates dated November 10, 2016 
 

3. Mini Lakes Groundwater and Surface Water Quarterly Monitoring Report – Q3  
a. Correspondence from Burnside dated November 3, 2016 

 
4. Township Staff 

a. Correspondence from David Deacon, dated November 7, 2016 
 

5. Notification of Application for Permit to Take Water, Mini Lakes Condominium 
Community 

a. Correspondence from the Ministry of the Environment dated November 9, 2016 
 

6. Expansion of the Greenbelt Plan Area 
a. Correspondence from Ted Arnott, Wellington-Halton Hills MPP 

7. Intergovernmental Affairs 
 

Various correspondence for review. 
 
Resolution No. 2016- 421:  Moved by Councillor Sepulis and  
    Seconded by Councillor Fielding 
 

THAT the Council for the Township of Puslinch supports Bill 9 which states that 
all stroke victims receive care regardless of their age; 
 
And that a copy of the resolution be sent to the Minister of Health and Long Term 
Care.  

CARRIED 
 

Councillor Bulmer requested that Item #4, the correspondence with respect to Treaties 
Recognition Week be included on the next Heritage agenda.  



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
November 23, 2016 COUNCIL MEETING 

 
 
 

Page 4 of 9 
 

 
Resolution No. 2016- 422:  Moved by Councillor Sepulis and  
    Seconded by Councillor Fielding 
 
That the Intergovernmental Affairs correspondence items listed on the Council 
Agenda for November 23, 2016 Council meeting be received.  

CARRIED 
 

  DELEGATIONS/PRESENTATIONS 
 

Resolution No. 2016- 423:  Moved by Councillor Sepulis and  
    Seconded by Councillor Fielding 
 

THAT Council waives the procedural by-law to allow the following residents to 
speak with respect to PD-2016-031 Site Plan Agreement – Sloot Construction Ltd: 

• Marny Mason and Marcel Pruski 
CARRIED 

 
The following delegations address Council with respect to Staff Report PD-2016-031 
Site Plan Agreement – Sloot Construction Ltd: 

 
7:15 p.m. – Jeff Buisman, van Harten  

 
Jeff Buisman provided an overview of the site plan approval and noted that all 
obligations have been met.  

 
7:25 p.m. – Stephen and Jessica Goyda  
 
Stephen and Jessica Goyda provided an overview of the proposal, including an 
overview of the work that has been done to get to site plan stage. An overview of future 
steps was also provided.  
 
7:35 p.m. – Michael Oosterveld  

 
Michael Oosterveld notified Council of his support for Staff Report PD-2016-031, 
including an overview of the positive impacts on the community.  
 
7:45 p.m. – Luke Kukovica  

 
Luke Kukovica notified Council of his support for Staff Report PD-2016-031 including an 
overview of the positive impacts on the community. 

 
7:55 p.m. – Gay Kukovica 

 
Gay Kukovica notified Council of her support for Staff Report PD-2016-031 including an 
overview of the positive impacts on the community. 

 
8:05 p.m. – Wayne Hodges 

 
Wayne Hodges notified Council of his opposition to Staff Report PD-2016-031, 
including: 

• Concerns with the proposed sewage system, the liquor license application, a past 
oil spill, the cost of retaining Township lawyers and overall lack of trust with the 
applicant.  

 
8:15 p.m. – David Prior 

 
David Prior notified Council of his opposition to Staff Report PD-2016-031, including: 

• Endangerment of safety.  



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
November 23, 2016 COUNCIL MEETING 

 
 
 

Page 5 of 9 
 

• Site plan requirements have not been met, including the lack of well sign offs and 
nitrate impact assessment.  

• Concerns with the proposed sewage system and impact on own well.  
• Concerns with the correctness of the records, including the incorrect location of 

the well.  
• Non conformity with the Building Code.  
• Lack of trust with the applicant.  

 
8:25 p.m. – Sally Prior 
 
Sally Prior notified Council of her opposition to Staff Report PD-2016-031 due to 
negative impacts on her property and inquired whether Council had been provided 
with the correspondence from her solicitor dated November 18, 2016.  
 
Karen Landry, CAO/Clerk advised that the Township did receive correspondence 
from the solicitor.  
 
8:35 p.m. – Geraldine McCauley  
 
Geraldine McCauley notified Council of her opposition to Staff Report PD-2016-31, 
including: 

• Concerns with the sewage system and impacts on her property, the garbage 
disposal, the proposed parking and impacts to her property value.  

 
8:45 p.m. – John Sloot 
 
John Sloot notified Council of his support for Staff Report PD-2016-031 including: 

• Overview of proposal and future plans.  
• Overview of proposed seating, proposed septic system, proposed grading, 

relocation of Sloot Construction, garbage removal, and overall efforts to 
alleviate neighbor concerns.  

 
8:55 p.m. - Marcel Pruski 
 
Marcel Pruski notified Council of his opposition to Staff Report PD-2016-031, 
including concerns with parking, the legal costs, the liquor license, the septic system 
and the overall safety to the community.  
 
Resolution No. 2016- 424:  Moved by Councillor Fielding and  
    Seconded by Councillor Sepulis 
 
That Council receives the following presentation with respect to Staff Report 
PD-2016-031 Site Plan Agreement – Sloot Construction Ltd: 
 

• Jeff Buisman, van Harten 
• Stephen and Jessica Goyda 
• Michael Oosterveld  
• Luke Kukovica  
• Gay Kukovica 
• Wayne Hodges 
• David Prior 
• Sally Prior 
• Geraldine McCauley  
• John Sloot 
• Marcel Pruski  

CARRIED 
 
 



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
November 23, 2016 COUNCIL MEETING 

 
 
 

Page 6 of 9 
 

Resolution No. 2016- 425:  Moved by Councillor Fielding and  
    Seconded by Councillor Sepulis 
 

THAT Council receives the following correspondence with respect to Staff Report 
PD-2016-031 Site Plan Agreement – Sloot Construction Ltd: 

• E-mail from Daniel and Krista Taaffee dated November 21, 2016 
• E-mail from Alex MacKinnon dated November 21, 2016 

CARRIED 
 

8. REPORTS:  
 

1. Puslinch Fire and Rescue Services  
 
None  
 

2. Finance Department  
 

None 
 

3. Administration Department  
 

None 
 

4. Planning and Building Department  
 

(a) Report PD-2016-031 Site Plan Agreement – Sloot Construction Ltd., property 
described as Rear Part Lot 7, Concession 9, municipally known as 599 Arkell Road, 
Township of Puslinch.  

 
Resolution No. 2016- 426:  Moved by Councillor Sepulis and  

    Seconded by Councillor Fielding 
 

That Report PD-2016-031 regarding the Sloot Construction Ltd., property 
described as Rear Part Lot 7, Concession 9, municipally known as 599 Arkell 
Road, Township of Puslinch, be referred to staff for additional information, 
including: 

• That curbing be included on the south edge of the lot as a site plan 
requirement; 

• That confirmation of the well location on Prior lands be obtained; 
• The nitrate analysis capabilities of the proposed system be obtained with 

a  recommendation from the Township’s consultant that takes into 
consideration the background level; 

• Clarification from GM BluePlan Engineering with respect to their 
statement “We are generally in agreement with the contents of the 
Stormwater Management Brief.” 

• Confirmation that a review based on a five year storm water is sufficient; 
• GM BluePlan Engineering review of septic permit.  

CARRIED 
 

(b) Report PD-2016-032 Telecommunication Application File A12/MET – Metrolinx, 
Greater Toronto Transit Authority, Plan 847, Part Block 1, RP61R8973, Parts 3- 4, 
located on Wellington Road 46  

 
Resolution No. 2016- 427:  Moved by Councillor Roth and  

    Seconded by Councillor Bulmer 
 
That Report PD-2016-032 regarding Telecommunication Application File 
A12/MET – Metrolinx, Greater Toronto Transit Authority, Plan 847, Part Block 1, 
RP61R8973, Parts 3- 4, located on Wellington Road 46, be received; and 



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
November 23, 2016 COUNCIL MEETING 

 
 
 

Page 7 of 9 
 

That Council authorize the release of the Concurrence Report to Industry 
Canada regarding the proposed 80 metre Metrolinx Communication Tower. 

CARRIED 
 

(c) Wellington County Report- Ontario Municipal Board Review - Comments on 
Proposed Changes 

 

Resolution No. 2016- 428:  Moved by Councillor Bulmer and  
    Seconded by Councillor Roth 
 

THAT Puslinch Council receives the Wellington County Report on the Ontario 
Municipal Board Review; 

AND THAT Council supports the resolution as outlined in the report.  
 CARRIED 

 
(d) Wellington County Report-  Bill 39- The Aggregate Resources and Mining 

Modernization Act, 2016 
 

Resolution No. 2016- 429:  Moved by Councillor Roth and  
    Seconded by Councillor Bulmer 

 
THAT Puslinch Council receives the Wellington County Report on Bill 39- The 
Aggregate Resources and Mining Modernization Act, 2016; 
 
AND THAT Council supports the resolution as outlined in the report.  

CARRIED 
 

5. Roads & Parks Department 
 

None 
 

6. Recreation Department 
 

None 
 

7. Mayor’s Updates  
 

None 
 

9. NOTICE OF MOTION:  
  

a. Mayor Lever- Municipal Election Act- signatures of 25 supporters 
 

Resolution No. 2016- 430:  Moved by Councillor Fielding and  
    Seconded by Councillor Bulmer 

 
WHEREAS the Ministry of Municipal Affairs has implemented a new requirement 
that anyone wishing to run for office on a Council must submit the signature of 25 
voters supporting the nomination; 
 
AND WHEREAS in many small municipalities it has become increasingly difficult to 
attract councillors and this requirement will discourage qualified and new 
candidates; 
 
AND WHEREAS in rural communities accessibility is even more difficult and 
infringes Ontarians with Disabilities Act (AODA); 
 
AND WHEREAS the Province has stated that they want to encourage more local 
decision making. 



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
November 23, 2016 COUNCIL MEETING 

 
 
 

Page 8 of 9 
 

 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Township of Puslinch request the 
Province to re-evaluate this requirement and allow it to be an optional local decision 
to avoid negative consequences to many municipalities; 
 
AND FURTHER THAT this resolution be circulated to the Minister of Municipal 
Affairs, the Association of Municipalities of Ontario.   

CARRIED 
 

b. Mayor Lever- Closing of the Fiscal gap 
 

Resolution No. 2016- 431:  Moved by Councillor Roth and  
    Seconded by Councillor Sepulis  
 
WHEREAS recent polling, conducted on behalf of the Association of Municipalities 
of Ontario indicates 76% of Ontarians are concerned or somewhat concerned 
property taxes will not cover the cost of infrastructure while maintaining municipal 
services, and 90% agree maintaining safe infrastructure is an important priority for 
their communities; 
 
AND WHEREAS infrastructure and transit are identified by Ontarians as the biggest 
problems facing their municipal government; 
 
AND WHEREAS a ten-year projection (2016-2025) of municipal expenditures 
against inflationary property tax and user fee increases, shows there to be an 
unfunded average annual need of $3.6 billion to fix local infrastructure and provide 
for municipal operating needs; 
 
AND WHEREAS the $3.6 billion average annual need would equate to annual 
increases of 4.6% (including inflation) to province-wide property tax revenue for the 
next ten years; 
 
AND WHEREAS this gap calculation also presumes all existing and multi-year 
planned federal and provincial transfers to municipal governments are fulfilled; 
 
AND WHEREAS if future federal and provincial transfers are unfulfilled beyond 
2015 levels, it would require annual province-wide property tax revenue increases of 
up to 8.35% for ten years; 
 
AND WHEREAS Ontarians already pay the highest property taxes in the country; 
 
AND WHEREAS each municipal government in Ontario faces unique issues, the 
fiscal health and needs are a challenge which unites all municipal governments, 
regardless of size; 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that this Council supports the Association of 
Municipalities of Ontario in its work to close the fiscal gap; so that all municipalities 
can benefit from predictable and sustainable revenue, to finance the pressing 
infrastructure and municipal service needs faced by all municipal governments. 

CARRIED 
 
10. COMMITTEE MINUTES 
 

a. Heritage Committee Minutes – September 26, 2016 
b. Planning and Development, Committee of Adjustment Minutes – October 11, 

2016 
c. Planning and Development Minutes – October 11, 2016 

 
Resolution No. 2016- 432:  Moved by Councillor Bulmer and  

    Seconded by Councillor Roth 



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
November 23, 2016 COUNCIL MEETING 

 
 
 

Page 9 of 9 
 

 
That the minutes of the following meetings be received: 
 

a. Heritage Committee Minutes – September 26, 2016 
b. Planning and Development, Committee of Adjustment Minutes – 

October 11, 2016 
c. Planning and Development Minutes – October 11, 2016 

CARRIED 
 

11. MUNICIPAL ANNOUNCEMENTS 
       

(a) Councillor Fielding notified Council that she attended the Puslinch Lake 
Conservation Association meeting with Councillor Sepulis.  

(b) Councillor Fielding notified Council that she attended the Hamilton Conservation 
meeting and that the draft budget came in it at 1.8%. 

(c) Mayor Lever notified Council that the Remembrance Day ceremonies were well 
attended.  

(d) Mayor Lever notified Council that he attended the Premier’s Awards for Agri-Food 
Innovation Excellence.  
 

12. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 

13. BY-LAWS 
 

14. CONFIRMING BY-LAW  
 
(a) By-Law to confirm the proceedings of Council for the Corporation of the Township of 

Puslinch  
 

Resolution No. 2016- 433:  Moved by Councillor Roth and  
    Seconded by Councillor Bulmer 
 
That the following By-law be taken as read three times and finally passed in open 
Council: 
 
By-Law 081/16 being a by-law to confirm the proceedings of Council for the 
Corporation of the Township of Puslinch at its meeting held on the 23rd day of 
November, 2016.  

CARRIED  
 

15.  ADJOURNMENT: 
 

Resolution No. 2016- 434:  Moved by Councillor Bulmer and  
    Seconded by Councillor Roth 
 
That Council hereby adjourns at 9:43 p.m. 

   CARRIED 
 
 
 
 

  ________________________________________ 
    Dennis Lever, Mayor 

  
   

 ________________________________________ 
  Karen Landry, CAO/Clerk 



F I N A N C I A L    I N D I C A T O R    R E V I E W

(Based on 2015 Financial Information Return)

Puslinch Tp  (Wellington Co)
Date Prepared: 22-Nov-16 Tier: Lower Tier

MSO Office: Western Ontario MAH Code: 75612

Prepared By: Spencer Sandor MUNID: 23001

REV Code: 2301

F I N A N C I A L   I N D I C A T O R S

Indicator Ranges Actuals
Level of 

Challenge

Median Average

2011 30.9% 26.0% 20.2% LOW

2012 52.7% 34.3% 26.3% LOW

2013 61.3% 30.6% 31.5% LOW

2014 78.3% 32.2% 31.2% LOW

2015 86.1% 34.0% 32.1% LOW

2011 22.6% 47.2% 52.1% LOW

2012 34.6% 49.5% 54.3% LOW

2013 39.9% 50.7% 55.2% LOW

2014 46.3% 53.3% 57.9% LOW

2015 58.0% 54.9% 61.3% LOW

2011 2.7% 3.0% 4.0% LOW

2012 2.3% 3.4% 3.9% LOW

2013 2.3% 3.4% 4.0% LOW

2014 2.0% 3.1% 3.7% LOW

2015 2.1% 3.0% 3.6% LOW

2011 6.7% 10.7% 11.5% LOW

2012 6.1% 10.6% 11.4% LOW

2013 6.9% 10.6% 11.6% LOW

2014 5.3% 10.3% 11.3% LOW

2015 4.6% 9.9% 10.6% LOW

2011 38.0% 36.2% 39.9% LOW

2012 88.6% 38.4% 43.6% LOW

2013 73.8% 44.3% 47.1% LOW

2014 79.5% 43.9% 47.7% LOW

2015 91.9% 42.4% 50.3% LOW

2011 57.2% 52.6% 54.7% LOW

2012 68.2% 53.2% 57.6% LOW

2013 71.5% 55.1% 61.4% LOW

2014 68.4% 53.6% 61.0% LOW

2015 78.3% 56.6% 61.8% LOW

2011 61.2% 37.7% 39.6% MODERATE

2012 63.2% 38.1% 40.9% MODERATE

2013 61.9% 39.8% 42.2% MODERATE

2014 63.2% 40.5% 43.2% MODERATE

2015 64.2% 41.9% 44.0% MODERATE

 South - LT - Counties -

Rural 

Debt Servicing Cost as a % of Total Operating 

Revenue

Low:  < 5%

Mod:  5% to 10%

High: > 10%

Low:  > 20%

Mod:  10% to 20%

High: < 10%

Total Reserves and Discretionary Reserve

Funds as a % of Operating Expenses

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents as a % of 

Operating Expenses

Net Working Capital as a % of Total Municipal 

Operating Expenses

* Asset Consumption Ratio

Low: < 25%

Mod: 26% to 75%

High: > 75%

Net Financial Assets or Net Debt as a % of 

Own Purpose Taxation Plus User Fees

Low: > 10%

Mod: 5%  to 10%

High: < 5%

****************************************************************************************************************************************

The data and information contained in this document is for informational purposes only.  Any use of the data and information 

in this document should be done by qualified individuals.  This information is not intended to be used on its own and should be 

used in conjunction with other financial information and resources available.

****************************************************************************************************************************************

Low:  < 10%

Mod:  10% to 15%

High: > 15%

Total Taxes Receivable less Allowance for 

Uncollectables as a % of Total Taxes Levied

Low: > 10%

Mod: 10%  to -10%

High: < -10%

Low:  > -50%

Mod:  -50% to -100%

High: < -100%

Printed: 11/22/2016 Ministry of Municipal Affairs and Housing 1 of 2



F I N A N C I A L    I N D I C A T O R    R E V I E W

(Based on 2015 Financial Information Return)

Puslinch Tp  (Wellington Co)
N O T E S

Asset Consumption Ratio -  (expressed as a percentage) measures the age of a municipality's physical assets.  It measures the 

extent to which depreciable assets have been consumed by comparing the amount of the assets that have been used up and their 

cost. 

                                                                           < 25% - Relatively NEW Infrastructure        

                                                                         26% to 50% - Moderately NEW Infrastructure

                                                                          51% to 75% - Moderately OLD Infrastructure          

                                                                                  >75% - OLD Infrastructure                        

* In 2016, the indicator Net Book Value of Capital Assets as a % of Cost of Capital Assets (NBV) has been replaced by the indicator 

Asset Consumption Ratio.  Asset Consumption Ratio is an indicator of asset consumption which is the reverse of the previous NBV 

indicator, which measured remaining life.

Debt Charges as a % of Total Operating Revenue - How much of each dollar raised is spent on debt?

Total Taxes Receivable less Allowance for Uncollectables as a % of Total Taxes Levied - How much of the 

taxes billed are not collected.

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents as a % of Operating Expenses - How much cash and liquid investments could be 

available to cover operating expenses?

Net Working Capital as a % of Total Municipal Operating Expenses - How much cash, receivables and inventory less 

short-term debt could be available to cover operating expenses?

Net Financial Assets or Net Debt as a % of Own Purpose Taxation Plus User Fees - How much tax and fee 

revenue is servicing debt?

Additional Notes on what Financial Indicators may indicate:

Reserves and Reserve Funds as a % of Operating Expenses - How much money is set aside for future needs / 

contingencies?

Financial Information Returns ("FIRs") are a standard set of year-end reports submitted by municipalities to the Province which 

capture certain financial information. On an annual basis, Ministry staff prepare certain financial indicators for each 

municipality, based on the information contained in the FIRs.  It is important to remember that these financial indicators provide 

a snapshot at a particular moment in time and should not be considered in isolation, but supported with other relevant 

information sources. In keeping with our Financial Information Return review process and follow-up, Ministry staff may routinely 

contact and discuss this information with municipal officials.

Printed: 11/22/2016 Ministry of Municipal Affairs and Housing 2 of 2



                      Wednesday, November 23, 2016 
 

 
The Township of Puslinch 
7404 Wellington County Rd 34 
Puslinch, ON 
N0B 2J0 
 
 
Dear council members,  

 
I am writing to you as a member of the 2017 Global Vets committee. We are a passionate team of 37 second year 
veterinary students at the Ontario Veterinary College within the University of Guelph. Global vets is a non-profit 
organization that began in 1997 by two second year veterinary students. The Global Vets philosophy revolves 
around promoting international collaboration on veterinary medicine, ecosystem health, animal welfare, and 
agricultural development. Our team will therefore be travelling to various underdeveloped and developing 
countries this summer, to volunteer our time to provide veterinary care in areas of need. We hope to bring back 
knowledge and confidence in our capabilities to benefit the health of animals and humans in our home 
communities.  

 
Since we are a non-profit organization, we require funding for our projects to be feasible. The money helps fund 
travel, accommodation, food, supplies, and donations required by our placements. The Global Vets Gala being 
held at the Puslinch Community Centre on January 14th, 2017 is one of many events this year we are organizing 
to fundraise towards this cause. We are inviting family, friends, veterinary students, and veterinarians within the 
Guelph area and nearby towns/cities. Our intention is to host an enjoyable night while showcasing the educational 
value of these projects for veterinary students and the community, and to ask for the support of family and 
community members in return. We are writing to you to request a charitable discount of any amount you can 
provide on the booking fee for the Archie MacRobbie Hall. 

 
Not only does the Global Vets program enrich the educational experience for students and bring back invaluable 
teaching tools for the community, it also allows us to spread the value of something called One Health. One 
Health is the growing concept that animal, human and environmental health are tightly linked and highly 
interdependent - something veterinary medicine has been promoting for the past few decades. As veterinary 
students, we are passionate about this philosophy and so it has become a huge source of motivation in completing 
our summer projects with Global Vets. We will not only be able to implement One Health principles in the places 
we visit, but will return home with the necessary skills to become leaders in applying these concepts in our 
communities. The experiences will make us stronger clinicians, allowing us to further benefit the health of 
animals and humans in our home communities.  
 
Sincerely,  
 
 
Stephanie Wong 
Global Vets 2017 Committee  







1

Nina Lecic

From: Karen Landry
Sent: November-25-16 7:58 PM
To: Nina Lecic
Subject: Fw: "guelph" in New Instrument Proposal Notice:                                                           

Proponent:                                                                              Noor Associates Ltd.           
...

 

From: Environmental Registry Alerts <registryalerts@eco.on.ca> 
Sent: Friday, November 25, 2016 3:38 PM 
To: Karen Landry 
Subject: "guelph" in New Instrument Proposal Notice: Proponent: Noor Associates Ltd. ... 
 
 

“guelph” in New Instrument Proposal Notice: Proponent: Noor Associates Ltd.  

Proponent:  Noor Associates Ltd. 

Instrument:  Environmental Compliance Approval (project type: sewage) - EPA 
Part II.1-sewage 

Ministry:  Ministry of the Environment and Climate Change 

Date Proposed:  2016-11-24 

Comment Period:  45 days: submissions may be made between November 24, 2016 and 
January 08, 2017. 

Comment 
Deadline:  

2017-01-08 (please check the registry to confirm deadline) 

URL:  http://www.ebr.gov.on.ca/ERS-WEB-External/... 

Registry #:  012-9119 

1 Excerpt Mentions “guelph”: 

“...M4V 1P5  
Phone: (416) 314-8001  
Fax: (416) 314-8452  
Toll Free Phone: (800) 461-6290  
(opens in new window) 
Location(s) Related to this Instrument:  

7456 McLean Road 
 
Puslinch County of Wellington N0B 2J0 



2

TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH  

Additional Information:  

The following government offices have additional information regarding this Proposal. To 
arrange a viewing of these documents please call the Ministry Contact or the Office listed 
below. 

Guelph District Office  
1 Stone Road West  
Floor 4 
Guelph Ontario 
N1G 4Y2  
Phone: (519) 826-4255  
Toll Free Phone: (800) 265-8658  
 
Environmental Approvals Access and Service Integration Branch  
135 St. Clair Avenue West  
Floor 1 
Toronto Ontario 
M4V1P5  
Phone: (416) 314-8001  
Toll Free Phone: (800) 461-6290  
 
 
...” 

  
Ministry #:  8467-AF4NXM 

  
The Environmental Commissioner of Ontario is not responsible for any consequences arising from 
missed Registry notices. Under the Environmental Bill of Rights, the Environmental Registry site at 
http://www.ebr.gov.on.ca/ is the authoritative source for public notices about environmental matters 

being proposed by Ontario government ministries. 

 
Sent by ECO | Powered by OntarioMonitor.ca | Change Your Alerts Here 

 

 

 



Government of Ontario Site Map Français 
About the Registry Search How do I ...? MyEBR FAQs Links Contact Us Home

Instrument Proposal Notice: 

Proponent: Noor Associates Ltd. 
20316 Mountain View Road South
Halton Hills Ontario
Canada L7G 4K1 
Instrument Type: Environmental Compliance Approval (project type: sewage) 
- EPA Part II.1-sewage

EBR Registry Number:
012-9119 
Ministry Reference Number:
8467-AF4NXM
Ministry:
Ministry of the Environment 
and Climate Change
Date Proposal loaded to the 
Registry:
November 24, 2016 

Keyword(s): Sewage
Comment Period: 45 days: submissions may be made between November 24, 2016 and January 08, 2017. 

Description of Instrument: 

This proposal is for a new Environmental Compliance Approval (Sewage Works) 
by Noor Associates Ltd., for a stormwater management (SWM) facility serving a 
proposed industrial Mall and associated, with the total drainage area of 
approximately 1.23 hectares, located at 7456 McLean Road in the Township of 
Pushlinch. 

The proposal has been disigned to provide quantity, quality and erosion 
controls, meeting 5- and 100-year storm events quantity controls and enhanced 
(Level 1) water quality controls criteria, including one (1) dry pond and one (1) 
Stormceptor, and ultimately discharging into Mill Creek.

Public Consultation: 

This proposal has been posted for a 45 day public review and comment period 
starting November 24, 2016. If you have any questions, or would like to submit 
your comments, please do so by January 08, 2017 to the individual listed under 
"Contact". Additionally, you may submit your comments on-line.

All comments received prior to January 08, 2017 will be considered as part of 
the decision-making process by the Ministry if they are submitted in writing or 
electronically using the form provided in this notice and reference EBR Registry 
number 012-9119.

Please Note: All comments and submissions received will become part of the 
public record. Comments received as part of the public participation process for 
this proposal will be considered by the decision maker for this proposal.

Your personal information may be used in the decision making process on this 
proposal and it may be used to contact you if clarification of your comment is 
required. It may be shared (along with your comment) with other Ontario 
Ministries for use in the decision making process. Questions about this 
collection should be directed to the contact mentioned on the Proposal Notice 
page.

Contact: 

All comments on this 
proposal must be directed 
to:

Application Assessment 
Officer
Ministry of the Environment 
and Climate Change
Operations Division
Environmental Approvals 
Access and Service 
Integration Branch
Application Assessment Unit
135 St. Clair Avenue West 
Floor 1
Toronto Ontario
M4V 1P5 
Phone: (416) 314-8001 
Fax: (416) 314-8452 
Toll Free Phone: (800) 461-
6290 

To submit a comment 
online, click the submit 
button below:

Submit Comment  (opens 
in new window)

Location(s) Related to 
this Instrument: 

7456 McLean Road

Page 1 of 2Environmental Registry

29/11/2016http://www.ebr.gov.on.ca/ERS-WEB-External/displaynoticecontent.do?noticeId=MTMx...



Puslinch County of Wellington 
N0B 2J0

TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 

Additional Information: 

The following government 
offices have additional 
information regarding this 
Proposal. To arrange a 
viewing of these documents 
please call the Ministry 
Contact or the Office listed 
below.

Guelph District Office 
1 Stone Road West 
Floor 4
Guelph Ontario
N1G 4Y2 
Phone: (519) 826-4255 
Toll Free Phone: (800) 265-
8658 

Environmental Approvals 
Access and Service 
Integration Branch 
135 St. Clair Avenue West 
Floor 1
Toronto Ontario
M4V1P5 
Phone: (416) 314-8001 
Toll Free Phone: (800) 461-
6290 

Add Notice into My Watch List

The materials on this web site are protected by Crown copyright. You may copy and re-
distribute any of the Environmental Bill of Rights information on this web site provided 

that the contents remain unchanged and the source of the contents is clearly referenced. 
You are not permitted to alter or add to the contents. 

ONTARIO HOME | CONTACTS | HELP | SITE MAP | FRANÇAIS

This site is maintained by the Government of Ontario, Canada. 

PRIVACY | IMPORTANT NOTICES

Copyright information: © Queen's Printer for Ontario, 1994-2016 

Page 2 of 2Environmental Registry

29/11/2016http://www.ebr.gov.on.ca/ERS-WEB-External/displaynoticecontent.do?noticeId=MTMx...



What about health & safety?

Health and safety are Paramount to Freedom Mobile-

Health Canada has established electromagnetic

exposure guidelines, known as Safety Code 6, to
ensure the safe operation of wireless antenna

installations. Freedom ensures that all of its facilities

operate well below the allowable limits measured,

taking into account all pre-existing sources and

combined effects of additional carrier co-locations; in

fact, this site will be thousands of times below the

allowable limits.

Health Canada's Safety Code 6:

http://www.hc-sc.gc.calewh-semt/pu bs/rad iati on/
radio guideJignes direct/index'eng.PhP

Freedom Mobile atcests that the radio antenna system

described in this notification package will be

constructed in compliance with the National Building

Code of Canada which includes all applicable CSA

Radio Communications Regulations.

Regulatory and consultative procedures for
telecommunicat¡ons antennas can be found in ISED's

CPC 2-0-03 lssue 5 (updated in 2014).

Freedom Mobile atcests that the radio antenna system

described in this notification Package will comply with

Transport Canada / NAV Canada aeronautical safety

requirements. Transport Canada has completed their
review, and they will not require any lighting or
painting. NAV Canada has no objections to the

structure as proposed.

The proposed facility will include one locked, alarmed

and electronically monitored steel equipment shelter.

The tower and equipment will be protected by a

barbed-wire fence around the base of the tower.

What about the environment?

Freedom Mobile attests that the radio antenna system

described in this notification Package is exempt from
the Conodion Environmentol Assessrnent Ac¿

The proposed site for the telecommunication tower is

regulated by the Grand River Conservation Authority
(GRCA). Freedom Mobile will comply with all

applicable regulations.

How do I get involved?

Freedom Mobile is committed to effective public

consultation. You are invited to provide comments to
Freedom Mobile about this proposal by mail, electronic
mail or fax.

ln order to ensure your mailed, facsimiled or e-mailed

comments are considered, you must resPond by close of
business lanuary 612Ol7, to the attention of:

FONTUR International lnc.
c/oJoel Swagerman, MCIP, RPP

70 East Beaver Creek Road, Suite 22

Richmond H¡ll, ON L4B'382
Fax:866-234-7873
Email: OKT I 435.wind.info@fonturinternational.com

Freedom Mobile will respond to relevant and reasonable

concerns, and will provide copies of all written comments

received and any resPonses to the Township of Puslinch.

Your federal contact

AfiENTION: Antenna./Tower lssue - 843 Townline Road,

Puslinch, ON - OKTl435

Central and Western Ontario District
4475 North Service Road, Suite 100

Burlington, ON L7L 4X7
Phone: l-855465-6307
Fax 905-639-655 I

Emai l: ic.spectrumcwod-sPectredcoo.ic@canada-ca

Your mun¡c¡Dal contact

Kelly Patzer
Development Coordinator
Township of Puslinch

7404 Wellington Road 34

Puslinch, ON NOB 2J0

Phone: 5 I 9 -7 63 - I 226 x226
Email: kpatzer@pusli nch.ca

For more information

General information from ISED:

http://strategis.ic.gc.calanten na

Freed!m
o mpbile
I.U Ë

cqññÉ'ityt¿JS o

Nfrt¡E Ëion
For a ffi t.,".$-.r.,ication

Tower

Located at:

843 Townline Road

Puslinch, ON

t

Freedom Site Code OKT|435



Your loca! fland ¡.¡se aq.¡thonñÊ]'

ln recognition of the Federal Government's exclusive
jurisdiction and in an attempt to promote balance,
lnnovation, Science & Economic Development Canada
(ISED) requires that proponenrs of telecommunication
facilities consult with land use authorit¡es as part of
their licensing process. The requirement to consult
can be found in ISED's document, Client Procedure
Circular (CPC) 2-0-03. The purpose of consultarion,
as outlined in CPC 2-0-03, is ro ensure that land use
authorities are aware of significant antenna structures
and/or installations proposed within their boundaries
and that antenna systems are deployed in a manner
which considers local surroundings.

Consultation must respect the Federal Government's
exclusive jurisdiction. Zoning by-laws and site plan
approvals do not apply to these facilities, and a building
permit ¡s not required.

Freedom Mobile (formerly WIND Mobile) is
committed to consultation with the local land use
author¡q/ (the Township of Puslinch) and its residenrs
in accordance with ISED's requiremenrs.

This public not¡ficat¡on has been designed to provide all
the necessary information as required by ISED and the
Township of Puslinch to those properries that fall
within a circulation radius of at least 90m, measured
from the tower centre.

Location Map

Mfhy is a new tower required?

A radio antenna and tower are the two most
important parts of a radio communication system. The
antenna is needed to send and receive signals for the
radio station. The tower raises the antenna above
obstructions such as trees and buildings so that it can
send and receive these signals clearly.

Each radio station and its antenna sysrem (including the
tower) provides radio coverage to a specific geographic
area, often called a cell. The antenna system must be
carefully located to ensure that ir provides a good
signal over the whole cell area, without interfering with
other stations. ln areas where there are many cells,
the antennas do not need to be very high. Where the
cells are larger (fewer towers), the antennas must be
higher above the ground level in order to provide good
radio coverage for the whole area.

ln this case, Freedom Mobile's RF Engineering
department has determined the need for new antennas
in this area in order to adequately provide contiguous
coverage and service to our existing and future
customer base in south Puslinch and south-east
Cambridge. Currently, our network in the area is
burdened by a combination of poor voice and data
quality. ln some cases, the coverage is so poor that a

handset would be unable to place a mobile call at all in
the subject location and surrounding area. The result
of this situation is on-going customer complaints, high
"dropped call" rates, and extreme cases, the potential
inability to place a mobile call in an emergency.

Wheq,e w¡¡l it be located?
The proposed site of the tower is at 843 Townline
Road, approximately 260m north-east of the
intersection of Saginaw Parkway and Townline Road.

The geographic coordinates for the site are:
Latitude (NAD 83) N 43"23'50.9"
Longitude (NAD 83) W 80" l6'15.8"

Freedom Mobile strongly supports co-location on
existing towers and structures. The use of existing
structures minimizes the number of new towers
required in a given area and is generally a more cost
effective way of doing business. ln this case, there
were no suitable existing structures in the area that
would meet coverage objectives.

W$¡at w¡ll it look like?

Freedom is proposing a 30m monopole tower to
improve upon the overall poor coverate in your area
Freedom proposes to install antenna equipment on the
tower to improve recept¡on and provide high speed
cellular data services to th¡s parc of Puslinch and
Cambridge.
Below is a simulated view of the proposed tower, as

viewed from Townline Road at Saginaw Parkway.

Photo Simulation

Proposed Layout

Rùth

B

Erth

Eú.h

N I - Proposed steel monopole tower
N2 - Proposed steel-clad equipment shelter
N3 - Hydro/utility connection & routing TBD
N4 - 2.4m-high chain-link security fence
N6 - Proposed gravel access way
N7 - ChainJink Eate

@

@



 
 
Our File:  0215 

November 30, 2016 

Ministry of the Environment and Climate Change 

Climate Change and Environmental Policy Division 

Land and Water Policy Branch 

40 St. Clair Avenue West,   Floor 10 

Toronto Ontario 

M4V 1M2 

Attention:  Leo Loung, Manager 

Dear Mr. Leung; 

On behalf of the Corporation of the Township of Puslinch we are pleased to 

provide comments on the proposed Ontario Regulation “ Taking Groundwater 

to Produce Bottled Water”.   

There are three main points to our comments as follows; 

1)  We support the need for increased understanding of regional groundwater 

flow systems and therefore agree with the Ministry of the Environment and 

Climate Change initiative to study aquifer systems in Ontario on a regional or 

aquifer basin wide scale, 

2)  There is no scientific merit in a sector specific moratorium, and 

3)   If there are regions in Ontario affected by drought or declining water levels 

then all future permits to take water should be put on hold until such time 

that study has determined an appropriate aquifer basin yield. 

Our Perspective 

The Township of Puslinch is 100% reliant on private groundwater taking for 

residential, commercial, industrial and institutional use.  Furthermore, Nestle 

Waters Canada (NWC) has their primary pumping well in this Township.   This 

well is used for their water bottling facility and is currently taking 

approximately two million litres per day from the aquifer.   The highest density 

of groundwater use, in the Township, from private wells, communal wells and 

Harden Environmental Services Ltd. 
4622 Nassagaweya-Puslinch Townline Road 
R.R. 1, Moffat, Ontario, L0P 1J0 
Phone: (519) 826-0099 Fax:  (519) 826-9099 
 

Groundwater Studies 
 
Geochemistry 
 
Phase I / II 
 
Regional Flow Studies 
 
Contaminant Investigations 
 
OMB Hearings 
 
Water Quality Sampling 
 
Monitoring 
 
Groundwater Protection 
Studies 
 
Groundwater Modelling 
 
Groundwater Mapping 
 
 

ARDEN 



MOECC 

November 30, 2016 

Page 2 

industrial wells occurs within the area of influence of the NWC primary pumping well.  Despite 

drier conditions in 2016, the water taking by NWC has not threatened the ability of local 

residents or industry to take water as usual.  There have been no complaints lodged with the 

MOECC or the Township  in 2016 in regards to water shortages.   

There are three main aquifers in the Township of Puslinch, namely; 

 the overburden aquifer, 

 the  Guelph Formation dolostone  aquifer, and  

 the Goat Island/Gasport dolostone aquifer.   

 

The Township of Puslinch has been monitoring ambient groundwater conditions (quality and 

quantity) for two decades in the overburden and Guelph formation aquifers and there is no 

indication of declining water levels.   Thus, the primary groundwater reservoir of drinking water 

for individual wells in the Township is not diminishing over time.  In addition, streamflow in the 

cold water streams (Mill Creek and Macrimmon Creek) is not declining, another indication of 

stable groundwater reserves in the overburden and Guelph dolostone aquifers.  This is known 

not only from the Township groundwater network but also a vast network of groundwater and 

surfaced water monitoring required for individual permits to take water and aggregate licenses.   

Groundwater in the Goat Island/Gasport Formation aquifers is used by larger Permit holders 

such as NWC, Mini Lakes community, Meadows of Aberfoyle community, Royal Canin industrial 

well and several other industrial users.  Despite drier conditions in 2016, water takings from this 

aquifer are not   in danger of running dry.  Water levels in this aquifer respond to seasonal 

fluctuations and changes in pumping rates and to-date are not showing trends that are cause for 

alarm.   We have observed declining water levels in this aquifer since 2011 but similar declines 

occur outside of this groundwatershed suggesting a more regional effect is occurring.  

Groundwater levels in this aquifer change slowly as a function of drawing water in from a broad 

area and when pumps are turned off, recovery of water levels in the dolostone aquifer is swift 

due to the relatively low storage capacity in the bedrock.   

Municipal vs Private Taking 

The Township of Puslinch falls within the Well Head Protection Area – Quantity (WHPA-Q1) of 

the City of Guelph and the City of Cambridge.  As such, private water taking in the Township (i.e. 

all Permit holders) will be subject to plans and policies developed by local Source Water 

Protection Committee.  It is possible that private taking for industrial/commercial use in Puslinch 

Township could be restricted in favour of municipal takings for industrial/commercial uses in the 

adjacent cities.   This would be a disadvantage for future employment growth in Puslinch.  

Water taking by the adjacent municipalities taking water from the same aquifer have similar 

effect on water groundwater levels.     A water bottling or beverage manufacturer in one of the 



MOECC 

November 30, 2016 

Page 3 

nearby municipalities taking water from the Goat Island/Gasport aquifer will have the same 

impact.  The proposed moratorium is an example of bias towards groundwater based municipal 

systems with no scientific rationale in support.  If such a moratorium is necessary, then any 

increased taking by water bottling facilities in Guelph, Cambridge and Hamilton (for example) 

using bedrock aquifer based water sources should also be curtailed. 

The Township is surrounded by municipal groundwater taking including Freelton, Carlisle, 

Cambridge, Kitchener, Waterloo, Guelph and Rockwood.   The volume of water extracted from 

the Goat Island/Gasport Aquifer is not insignificant and for the most part, is not returned to the 

aquifer.  Municipal water, for example, is ultimately discharged to a river where it flows out of 

the local area.    All industrial water users of groundwater extracted by these municipalities 

therefore have a similar impact on bedrock aquifer resources compared with private industrial, 

commercial and recreational permit holders.   Thus there is no scientific rationale to limit the 

proposed moratorium to water bottling companies not on municipal systems.   

In addition, concentrating water bottling facilities on municipal serviced areas puts a strain on 

those systems, creates greater impact to the aquifer servicing the municipality and should 

contamination of the municipal system occur there would be fewer alternatives for drinking 

water. 

Pumping Tests 

The purpose of a pumping test is to evaluate the groundwater resource capability of an aquifer 

and is the main physical tool used by hydrogeologists.   There is no need to prohibit this 

scientific endeavor for any intended use, unless conducting the test represents a threat to 

another water taking or the natural environment.  A prohibition is already possible for pumping 

tests and the MOECC has used their authority to deny such tests on a case by case basis 

depending on the local conditions.   There is no scientific merit in not collecting scientific data if 

it can be done safely.  Should prioritization of water taking eventually disallow the use of 

groundwater for water bottling at a specific location, the scientific knowledge gained by the 

testing will be needed to support that decision.  For example, the information gained by the 

proposed pumping test in the Middlebrook well in Elora, would be invaluable for the Tier 3 

study currently underway.  If the Province ultimately prioritizes municipal taking over bottled 

water taking, the knowledge gained by such a pumping test can be used to support municipal 

taking (a test is required in any event).  A pumping test for scientific research or municipal needs 

will have the same impact on nearby wells and environment as would a pumping test to confirm 

resources for water bottling.   

 

 



MOECC 

November 30, 2016 

Page 4 

Permit Conditions 

Every Permit To Take Water issued by the Director contains the following clause; 

The Director may amend this permit by letter requiring the permit holder to suspend or reduce 

the taking to an amount or threshold specified by the Director in the letter.  The suspension or 

reduction in taking shall be effective immediately and may be revoked at any time upon 

notification by the Director.   

This provides the Province of Ontario with a high degree of control over all water taking in the 

Province and should there be a measured threat to water required for public health and welfare 

reasons or a natural heritage feature, the permit can be reduced or suspended.    The standard 

condition is clear that a Permit Holder can expect reductions or suspension of taking if 

warranted.   

Therefore, rather than imposing a one- industry moratorium that has no scientific rationale and 

will not protect any water supplies in imminent danger, the following condition should be 

included with any Permit to Take Water issued during the period of aquifer evaluation; 

The Province of Ontario is undertaking an evaluation of all aquifers in Ontario and may be 

developing restrictions on water taking based on prioritization of water use for human 

consumption from municipal services, private wells and communal wells.  As such, the Director 

may amend this permit by letter requiring the permit holder to suspend or reduce the taking to 

an amount or threshold specified by the Director in the letter.  The suspension or reduction in 

taking shall be effective immediately and may be revoked at any time upon notification by the 

Director.  This applies to all permits to take water including the portion of water taking for 

commercial/industrial/recreational use by municipalities.   

Drought / Climate Change 

Only climate change resulting in less water available to the aquifers should be of concern to the 

Province.  Tier 3 studies completed by municipalities already include a drought scenario as a test 

of the resilience of the water supply system.  For those municipalities where drought scenarios 

result in a significant threat to the water supply, alternative water sources must be sought out.  

These studies have already been carried out (or are underway) in areas where moderate or 

significant stress is recognized in a watershed.  Where there is low stress determined in a 

watershed, presumably there is not enough permitted taking to warrant drought-stress testing.  

Permits are already subject to decreased water taking in response to drought conditions under 

the Low Water Response program administered by the MOECC.   

 

 



MOECC 

November 30, 2016 

Page 5 

Future Growth 

Tier 3 studies funded by the MOECC included projections of water use for a twenty or twenty-

five year time frame.  In this way, municipal water systems have been evaluated with regard to 

future growth and can act according to the findings of the study.   

Summary 

If groundwater resources in the Province of Ontario are in peril, then the Township of Puslinch 

supports a total ban on the issuance of any new Permits to Take Water until the peril can be 

evaluated and remedies determined.   This includes any increased taking of groundwater within 

municipal systems to service industrial/commercial uses.  Targeting one industry (and only those 

with individual permits within that industry) representing a small percentage of water taking in 

the province during a time of serious, real, groundwater threat, should one exist,  does not have 

any scientific merit.  The scientific evidence obtained locally does not suggest any imminent 

threat to water resources in the Township of Puslinch despite significant takings from multiple 

sectors.  There are existing tools available to the MOECC to suspend or reduce water taking in 

the Township should issues arise. 

Moratorium or not, the Township of Puslinch welcomes additional scientific study into 

groundwater resources.  There is presently an insufficient number of dedicated Goat 

Island/Gasport Formation wells to independently monitor existing and future water taking from 

within and outside of the Township municipal boundaries.  We recommend a network of ten 

wells be constructed to provide water quantity and quality data.  These wells will be used by the 

Township to evaluate long-term changes in groundwater levels and inform future taking.   We 

also encourage the MOECC to undertake aquifer-basin wide studies to determine and set 

thresholds for water taking for all sectors. 

Sincerely, 

 

Harden Environmental Services Ltd. 

 

 
 

 

Stan Denhoed, P.Eng., M.Sc. 

Senior Hydrogeologist 











1

Nina Lecic

From: Hon. Bill Mauro <minister.mma@ontario.ca>
Sent: November-17-16 3:54 PM
To: Admin
Subject: A Message from Minister Mauro - Message du ministre Mauro
Attachments: MMA16-71532v2.pdf

Dear Head of Council, 

I am pleased to announce that the government introduced Bill 68 – the proposed 
Modernizing Ontario’s Municipal Legislation Act, 2016 in the Legislature on November 16. 
2016.  

The proposed Modernizing Ontario’s Municipal Legislation Act, 2016 is the result of the 
review of three key elements of Ontario’s municipal legislative framework: the Municipal 
Act, 2001, City of Toronto Act, 2006 and the Municipal Conflict of Interest Act. This 
package of amendments reflects my position that Ontario already has a strong legislative 
framework governing municipalities, and overall our legislation is working well. 

The Bill includes proposed changes to help ensure our local governments remain 
accountable and have the flexibility to respond to the people they serve. If passed, these 
changes would benefit local governments and residents by: 

 Increasing fairness and reducing barriers for women and parents elected to 
municipal governments by allowing time off for pregnancy or parental leave 

 Empowering municipalities to address climate change in their communities through 
by-laws related to green construction in certain circumstances 

 Broadening municipal investment powers, which may help better finance repairs and 
replacements of local infrastructure 

 Improving access to justice for the public and for municipal councillors by allowing 
integrity commissioners to investigate complaints’ 

 Requiring municipalities to have a code of conduct for members of municipal 
councils and local boards 

For a copy of Bill 68 – the proposed Modernizing Ontario’s Municipal Legislation Act, 2016 
and to monitor the status of the Bill through the legislative process, please visit the 
Legislative Assembly of Ontario website: www.ontla.on.ca.   

If you have questions please contact us at municipalreview@ontario.ca   

You can also contact your regional Municipal Services Office: 
 
Eastern Municipal Services Office  
General Inquiry: 613-545-2100  
Toll Free: 800-267-9438  
 
Central Municipal Services Office  
General Inquiry: 416-585-6226  



2

Toll Free: 800-668-0230  
 
North Municipal Services Office (Sudbury) 
General Inquiry: 705-564-0120  
Toll Free: 800-461-1193  
 
North Municipal Services Office (Thunder Bay) 
General Inquiry: 807-475-1651  
Toll Free: 800-465-5027  
 
Western Municipal Services Office  
General Inquiry: 519-873-4020  
Toll Free: 800-265-4736  

Thank you for your help to ensure that our communities remain vibrant and strong, and 
have the tools they need to address their changing needs. 

Sincerely,  

Bill Mauro 
Minister 

  

  

  

Madame la présidente du conseil, 
Monsieur le président du conseil, 

J’ai le plaisir de vous informer que le 16 novembre 2016, le gouvernement a déposé à 
l’Assemblée législative le projet de loi 68, autrement dit, la Loi de 2016 sur la modernisation 
de la législation municipale ontarienne proposée.  

La Loi de 2016 sur la modernisation de la législation municipale ontarienne proposée est le 
fruit de l’examen de trois éléments clés du cadre législatif régissant les municipalités en 
Ontario, à savoir la Loi de 2001 sur les municipalités, la Loi de 2006 sur la cité de Toronto 
et la Loi sur les conflits d’intérêts municipaux. Les modifications qu’elle propose reflètent 
ma position que l’Ontario dispose déjà d’un robuste cadre législatif régissant ses 
municipalités et que celui-ci fonctionne bien dans l’ensemble. 

Le projet de loi propose une série de modifications dont le but est d’aider à faire en sorte 
que nos administrations locales demeurent responsables et qu’elles aient la souplesse 
nécessaire pour pouvoir répondre aux besoins des populations qu’elles servent. Si elles 
étaient adoptées, les modifications proposées auraient une incidence positive sur les 
municipalités et leurs résidents. Les voici : 

 Accroître l’équité et réduire les obstacles auxquels se heurtent les femmes et les 
parents élus à un conseil municipal en leur accordant le droit à des congés de 
maternité ou des congés parentaux. 



3

 Donner le pouvoir aux municipalités de contrer le changement climatique au sein de 
leurs collectivités par l’entremise de règlements municipaux appelant dans certaines 
circonstances le respect de normes de construction écologiques. 

 Élargir les pouvoirs d’investissement des municipalités, ce qui pourrait les aider à 
mieux financer la remise en état et le remplacement d’infrastructures locales. 

 Améliorer l’accès à la justice pour les membres du public et des conseils municipaux 
en autorisant les commissaires à l’intégrité à enquêter sur des plaintes. 

 Exiger des municipalités l’adoption de codes de conduite pour les membres des 
conseils municipaux et des conseils locaux. 

Pour obtenir une copie du projet de loi 68 – la Loi de 2016 sur la modernisation de la 
législation municipale ontarienne proposée et pour suivre son cheminement à l’Assemblée 
législative de l’Ontario, veuillez vous rendre sur le site Web de celle-ci, au : 
www.ontla.on.ca/web/home.do?locale=fr.  

Si vous avez des questions, n’hésitez pas à nous les soumettre en écrivant à l’adresse 
municipalreview@ontario.ca. Vous pouvez aussi vous mettre en rapport avec le Bureau 
des services aux municipalités de votre région : 

Bureau des services aux municipalités de l’Est de l’Ontario 
Renseignements généraux : 613 545-2100 
Appels sans frais : 1 800 267-9438 
 
Bureau des services aux municipalités du Centre de l’Ontario 
Renseignements généraux : 416 585-6226 
Appels sans frais : 1 800 668-0230 
 
Bureau des services aux municipalités du Nord de l’Ontario (Sudbury) 
Renseignements généraux : 705 564-0120 
Appels sans frais : 1 800 461-1193 
 
Bureau des services aux municipalités du Nord de l’Ontario (Thunder Bay) 
Renseignements généraux : 807 475-1651 
Appels sans frais : 1 800 465-5027 
 
Bureau des services aux municipalités de l’Ouest de l'Ontario 
Renseignements généraux : 519-873-4020 
Appels sans frais : 1 800 265-4736 

Je vous remercie de soutenir nos efforts pour veiller à ce que nos collectivités demeurent 
aussi fortes que dynamiques et qu’elles puissent disposer des outils qu’il leur faut pour 
faire face à leurs besoins changeants. 

Veuillez agréer, Madame la présidente du conseil, Monsieur le président du conseil, mes 
salutations les plus cordiales. 

Le ministre, 

Bill Mauro 
 



 
 
 

16-71532 

             

Dear Head of Council, 
 
I am pleased to announce that the government introduced Bill 68 – the proposed 
Modernizing Ontario’s Municipal Legislation Act, 2016 in the Legislature on November 
16. 2016.  
 
The proposed Modernizing Ontario’s Municipal Legislation Act, 2016 is the result of the 
review of three key elements of Ontario’s municipal legislative framework: the Municipal 
Act, 2001, City of Toronto Act, 2006 and the Municipal Conflict of Interest Act. This 
package of amendments reflects my position that Ontario already has a strong 
legislative framework governing municipalities, and overall our legislation is working 
well. 
 
The Bill includes proposed changes to help ensure our local governments remain 
accountable and have the flexibility to respond to the people they serve. If passed, 
these changes would benefit local governments and residents by: 

 Increasing fairness and reducing barriers for women and parents elected to 
municipal governments by allowing time off for pregnancy or parental leave 

 Empowering municipalities to address climate change in their communities 
through by-laws related to green construction in certain circumstances 

 Broadening municipal investment powers, which may help better finance repairs 
and replacements of local infrastructure 

 Improving access to justice for the public and for municipal councillors by 
allowing integrity commissioners to investigate complaints’  

 Requiring municipalities to have a code of conduct for members of municipal 
councils and local boards 

 

For a copy of Bill 68 – the proposed Modernizing Ontario’s Municipal Legislation Act, 
2016 and to monitor the status of the Bill through the legislative process, please visit the 
Legislative Assembly of Ontario website: www.ontla.on.ca.   
 
If you have questions please contact us at municipalreview@ontario.ca   
 
 
 
 
 

Ministry of  

Municipal Affairs  

 
Office of the Minister 
  

777 Bay Street, 17
th
 Floor  

Toronto ON  M5G 2E5  
Tel.: 416 585-7000   

Fax: 416 585-6470   

  

Ministère des 

Affaires municipales  

 
Bureau du ministre 
 

777, rue Bay, 17
e
 étage 

Toronto ON  M5G 2E5 
Tél. : 416 585-7000 

Téléc. : 416 585-6470 

 

 

http://www.ontla.on.ca/
mailto:municipalreview@ontario.ca


 
 

 
You can also contact your regional Municipal Services Office: 
 
Eastern Municipal Services Office  
General Inquiry: 613-545-2100  
Toll Free: 800-267-9438  
 
Central Municipal Services Office  
General Inquiry: 416-585-6226  
Toll Free: 800-668-0230  
 
North Municipal Services Office (Sudbury) 
General Inquiry: 705-564-0120  
Toll Free: 800-461-1193  
 
North Municipal Services Office (Thunder Bay) 
General Inquiry: 807-475-1651  
Toll Free: 800-465-5027  
 
Western Municipal Services Office  
General Inquiry: 519-873-4020  
Toll Free: 800-265-4736  
 
Thank you for your help to ensure that our communities remain vibrant and strong, and 
have the tools they need to address their changing needs. 
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
 
Bill Mauro 
Minister 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

 

Ministry of Municipal Affairs Ministère des Affaires municipales 
Office of the Minister Bureau du ministre 
 
777 Bay Street, 17

th
 Floor 777, rue Bay, 17

e
 étage 

Toronto ON  M5G 2E5 Toronto ON  M5G 2E5 
Tel.: 416 585-7000 Tél. : 416 585-7000 
Fax: 416 585-6470 Téléc. : 416 585-6470 

16-71532 

 
 
Madame la présidente du conseil, 
Monsieur le président du conseil, 
 
J’ai le plaisir de vous informer que le 16 novembre 2016, le gouvernement a déposé à 
l’Assemblée législative le projet de loi 68, autrement dit, la Loi de 2016 sur la 
modernisation de la législation municipale ontarienne proposée.  
 
La Loi de 2016 sur la modernisation de la législation municipale ontarienne proposée 
est le fruit de l’examen de trois éléments clés du cadre législatif régissant les 
municipalités en Ontario, à savoir la Loi de 2001 sur les municipalités, la Loi de 2006 
sur la cité de Toronto et la Loi sur les conflits d’intérêts municipaux. Les modifications 
qu’elle propose reflètent ma position que l’Ontario dispose déjà d’un robuste cadre 
législatif régissant ses municipalités et que celui-ci fonctionne bien dans l’ensemble. 
 
Le projet de loi propose une série de modifications dont le but est d’aider à faire en 
sorte que nos administrations locales demeurent responsables et qu’elles aient la 
souplesse nécessaire pour pouvoir répondre aux besoins des populations qu’elles 
servent. Si elles étaient adoptées, les modifications proposées auraient une incidence 
positive sur les municipalités et leurs résidents. Les voici : 
 

 Accroître l’équité et réduire les obstacles auxquels se heurtent les femmes et les 
parents élus à un conseil municipal en leur accordant le droit à des congés de 
maternité ou des congés parentaux. 

 Donner le pouvoir aux municipalités de contrer le changement climatique au sein 
de leurs collectivités par l’entremise de règlements municipaux appelant dans 
certaines circonstances le respect de normes de construction écologiques. 

 Élargir les pouvoirs d’investissement des municipalités, ce qui pourrait les aider à 
mieux financer la remise en état et le remplacement d’infrastructures locales. 

 Améliorer l’accès à la justice pour les membres du public et des conseils 
municipaux en autorisant les commissaires à l’intégrité à enquêter sur des 
plaintes. 

 Exiger des municipalités l’adoption de codes de conduite pour les membres des 
conseils municipaux et des conseils locaux. 

 

Pour obtenir une copie du projet de loi 68 – la Loi de 2016 sur la modernisation de la 
législation municipale ontarienne proposée et pour suivre son cheminement à 
l’Assemblée législative de l’Ontario, veuillez vous rendre sur le site Web de celle-ci, au : 
http://www.ontla.on.ca/web/home.do?locale=fr. 

http://www.ontla.on.ca/web/home.do?locale=fr


 
 

Si vous avez des questions, n’hésitez pas à nous les soumettre en écrivant à l’adresse 
municipalreview@ontario.ca. Vous pouvez aussi vous mettre en rapport avec le Bureau 
des services aux municipalités de votre région : 
 
Bureau des services aux municipalités de l’Est de l’Ontario 
Renseignements généraux : 613 545-2100 
Appels sans frais : 1 800 267-9438 
 
Bureau des services aux municipalités du Centre de l’Ontario 
Renseignements généraux : 416 585-6226 
Appels sans frais : 1 800 668-0230 
 
Bureau des services aux municipalités du Nord de l’Ontario (Sudbury) 
Renseignements généraux : 705 564-0120 
Appels sans frais : 1 800 461-1193 
 
Bureau des services aux municipalités du Nord de l’Ontario (Thunder Bay) 
Renseignements généraux : 807 475-1651 
Appels sans frais : 1 800 465-5027 
 
Bureau des services aux municipalités de l’Ouest de l'Ontario 
Renseignements généraux : 519-873-4020 
Appels sans frais : 1 800 265-4736 
 
Je vous remercie de soutenir nos efforts pour veiller à ce que nos collectivités 
demeurent aussi fortes que dynamiques et qu’elles puissent disposer des outils qu’il 
leur faut pour faire face à leurs besoins changeants. 
 
Veuillez agréer, Madame la présidente du conseil, Monsieur le président du conseil, 
mes salutations les plus cordiales. 
 
Le ministre, 
 

 
 
Bill Mauro 
 

mailto:municipalreview@ontario.ca


1

Nina Lecic

From: Karen Landry
Sent: November-29-16 7:37 AM
To: Nina Lecic
Subject: FW: Notice of Release of the Chief Drinking Water Inspector’s Annual Report 

2015-2016/ Avis de publication du Rapport annuel de l’inspectrice en chef de l’eau 
potable 2015-2016

 

From: Water, Drinking (MOECC) [mailto:Drinking.Water@ontario.ca]  
Sent: Monday, November 28, 2016 2:43 PM 
To: Karen Landry 
Subject: Notice of Release of the Chief Drinking Water Inspector’s Annual Report 2015‐2016/ Avis de publication du 
Rapport annuel de l’inspectrice en chef de l’eau potable 2015‐2016 

 
Sent on behalf of Susan Lo, Ontario’s Chief Drinking Water Inspector 

Please be advised that today the Ministry of the Environment and Climate Change released the Chief 
Drinking Water Inspector’s Annual Report 2015-2016. It is available online at 
ontario.ca/drinkingwater.   
 
The Chief Drinking Water Inspector’s Annual Report provides an update on the provincial drinking 
water story during 2015-16 and includes high level information on the performance of Ontario’s 
drinking water systems and licensed and eligible laboratories.  
 
The report shows that Ontario’s drinking water continues to be of high quality and is well protected. 
These findings are supported by our drinking water quality and inspection results which is available 
on the Open Data Catalogue. The ministry and its partners are working together to ensure that 
Ontario’s drinking water continues to remain among the best protected in the world.  
 
 
ORIGINAL SIGNED BY THE CHIEF DRINKING WATER INSPECTOR 
___________________________ 
Susan Lo 
 
________________________________________________________________ 
 
Envoyé au nom de Susan Lo, inspectrice en chef de l’eau potable de l’Ontario 
Veuillez noter que le ministère de l’Environnement et de l’Action en matière de changement 
climatique a publié le Rapport annuel de l’inspectrice en chef de l’eau potable 2015-2016 aujourd’hui. 
Vous le trouverez en ligne, au https://www.ontario.ca/fr/page/eau-potable.   
 
Le Rapport annuel de l’inspectrice en chef de l’eau potable 2015-2016 fait le point sur la situation de 
l’eau potable dans la province en 2015-2016 et fournit des renseignements poussés sur le 
rendement des réseaux d’eau potable et les laboratoires autorisés et admissibles.  
 
Le rapport soutient que la qualité de l’eau potable de l’Ontario demeure élevée, et que nous la 
protégeons bien. Ces conclusions s’appuient sur les résultats d’analyse et d’inspection de la qualité 



2

de l’eau, que vous trouverez dans le Catalogue de données publiques. Le Ministère et ses 
partenaires travaillent de concert pour s’assurer que l’eau potable de l’Ontario demeure parmi les 
mieux protégées au monde.  
 
 
ORIGINAL SIGNÉ PAR L’INSPECTRICE EN CHEF DE L’EAU POTABLE 
___________________________ 
Susan Lo 
 
 
 



Chief Drinking Water Inspector Annual Report 2015-2016
The Chief Drinking Water Inspector Annual Report provides information on the 
performance of Ontario’s regulated drinking water systems and laboratories, drinking water 
test results, and enforcement activities and programs.

Message from the Chief Drinking Water Inspector
I am pleased to present the 2015-2016 annual drinking water report for Ontario and want to acknowledge the 
contributions of our many partners who work with us to safeguard drinking water in Ontario.

Ontario uses a multi-barrier approach of strong legislation, stringent health-based standards, regular and 
reliable testing, highly trained operators, regular inspections and a source water protection program to protect 
the province’s drinking water.

2015-2016 at a glance:

• 99.8% of 527,172 drinking water test results from municipal residential drinking water systems met 
Ontario’s strict drinking water quality standards

• the number of municipal residential drinking water systems that received a 100% inspection rating 
increased seven percentage points from 67% in 2014-2015 to 74% this year

This year’s report is structured by drinking water system type with new sections on key trends and topical 
issues. In addition, a number of charts and tables previously in this report can now be found by visiting the 
Drinking Water Quality page on the province’s Open Data Catalogue (https://www.ontario.ca/data/drinking-
water-quality-and-enforcement).

Dr. David C. Williams, the Chief Medical Officer of Health for Ontario, also provides an update on the 
performance of the province’s small drinking water systems.

Susan Lo
Chief Drinking Water Inspector
Ministry of the Environment and Climate Change

Trends
As illustrated in Figure 1, over the past 12 years, the percentage of drinking water test results meeting 
microbiological, chemical and radiological standards has remained consistently high.

2015-2016 at a glance:

• 99.8% of 527,172 drinking water test results from municipal residential drinking water systems met 
Ontario’s strict drinking water quality standards

Page 1 of 12Chief Drinking Water Inspector Annual Report 2015-2016 | Ontario.ca

29/11/2016https://www.ontario.ca/page/chief-drinking-water-inspector-annual-report-2015-2016



• the number of municipal residential drinking water systems that received a 100% inspection rating 
increased seven percentage points from 67% in 2014-2015 to 74% this year

Figure 1: Trends in percentage of drinking water tests meeting Ontario Drinking Water Quality 
Standards, by type of facility

Notes for Figure 1:

There were slight variations in the methods used to tabulate the percentages year-over-year due 
to regulatory changes and different counting methods.

Lead results were not included as they were reported separately.

Lead distribution results were included and lead plumbing results were reported separately. The 
total trihalomethanes running annual average calculation changed part way through fiscal year 
2015-16.

In addition, the past decade has seen advancements in technology that have positively impacted not only the 
quality of Ontario’s drinking water but the methods to measure that quality. Ultraviolet drinking water 
technology is being used by a growing number of municipal residential drinking water systems for the 
disinfection of drinking water. Advancements have been made in ozonation for disinfection, taste and odour 
control as well as improvements in laboratory detection limits for drinking water parameters.

1

1

2

3

Page 2 of 12Chief Drinking Water Inspector Annual Report 2015-2016 | Ontario.ca

29/11/2016https://www.ontario.ca/page/chief-drinking-water-inspector-annual-report-2015-2016



The way some municipalities generate operational data (e.g. chlorine, turbidity, flow) for their drinking water 
systems has also changed. The ministry is reviewing how it can incorporate these technological advances into 
the inspection and compliance framework.

Ontario’s drinking water safety net
Ontario has a comprehensive safety net that protects drinking water from source to tap. There are eight 
elements to the safety net which provide a multi-barrier approach to drinking water protection. These include 
strong legislation, stringent health-based standards, regular and reliable testing, highly trained operators, 
regular inspections, and a source water protection program.

Figure 2: Ontario’s drinking water safety net

Page 3 of 12Chief Drinking Water Inspector Annual Report 2015-2016 | Ontario.ca

29/11/2016https://www.ontario.ca/page/chief-drinking-water-inspector-annual-report-2015-2016



Topical issues
Climate change has caused an increase in the frequency of algal blooms. Some varieties of algae produce 
microcystin-LR, a toxin harmful to humans and pets. The Ontario Drinking Water Quality standard for 
microcystin-LR is 1.5 micrograms per litre. In Ontario, municipal drinking water systems have implemented 
strategies combining monitoring, sampling, and implementing appropriate treatment to remove algal toxins 
from the drinking water. These operational strategies have been successful as microcystin-LR has not been 
detected in treated water. Also, in 2014, Ontario developed a 12 Point Action Plan
(https://www.ontario.ca/page/blue-green-algae) to prevent and respond to blue-green algal blooms and their 
impacts.

Page 4 of 12Chief Drinking Water Inspector Annual Report 2015-2016 | Ontario.ca

29/11/2016https://www.ontario.ca/page/chief-drinking-water-inspector-annual-report-2015-2016



Ontario’s source water protection plan
Ontario protects its drinking water at many points along the away from its sources to the tap.

Protecting water starts with the natural sources that supply drinking water systems. Local source protection 
committees in 19 source protection areas or regions developed plans to identify and address existing and 
potential risks to municipal drinking water in their communities — the result of many years of work and public 
consultation. All 22 of the source protection plans that were developed have been approved and are in effect.

Drinking water quality standards
Drinking water must meet Ontario’s strict health-based standards for microbiological organisms and chemical 
substances which are prescribed under the Safe Drinking Water Act. .

The ministry regularly reviews and updates drinking water quality standards. In November 2015, it announced 
the strengthening of the standards for four substances (i.e. arsenic, carbon tetrachloride, benzene and vinyl 
chloride), introduced new standards for four more substances (i.e. chlorate, chlorite, 2-methyl-4-
chlorophenoxyacetic acid and haloacetic acids) and clarified testing and sampling requirements for two other 
substances (i.e. trihalomethanes and haloacetic acids). The changes are being phased in to allow time for 
implementation.

The following sections show how our regulated drinking water systems are meeting these standards. The 
sections also provide information on drinking water advisories, adverse water quality incidents, inspection 
results and orders and convictions. Data associated with these sections can be found by visiting the Drinking 
Water Quality page on our Open Data Catalogue (https://www.ontario.ca/data/drinking-water-quality-and-
enforcement).

Municipal residential drinking water systems
In 2015-16, 99.84% of 527,172 drinking water tests from 658 municipal residential drinking water 
systems met Ontario’s Drinking Water Quality Standards.

For details on municipal systems, please see the Drinking Water Quality page on our Open Data Catalogue
(https://www.ontario.ca/data/drinking-water-quality-and-enforcement).

The majority of test results for lead in plumbing continued to meet the provincial standard with the percentage 
steadily increasing each year from 92.69% in 2013-14 to 95.59% in 2015-16.

In 2015-16, there were 207 exceedances for lead in plumbing out of 4,697 test results from municipal 
residential drinking water systems.

When lead levels exceed the criteria outlined in the Drinking Water Systems Regulation (O. Reg. 170/03), 
owners/operating authorities are required to develop a control strategy to reduce lead levels. As of 2010-11, 20 
municipalities were required to prepare strategies to address lead issues. Since that time, no additional 
municipal residential drinking water systems were identified to prepare lead control strategies. These 
municipalities are at various stages of completing their work on lead.

Six municipalities have implemented their lead control strategies:

[1]

[2]

Page 5 of 12Chief Drinking Water Inspector Annual Report 2015-2016 | Ontario.ca

29/11/2016https://www.ontario.ca/page/chief-drinking-water-inspector-annual-report-2015-2016



• five municipalities have completed implementing their corrosion control plans

• one municipality replaced its lead service lines

Fourteen municipalities continue to make significant progress in addressing their lead issues:

• two municipalities have completed implementing their corrosion control plans and are replacing lead 
service lines

• three municipalities are in the process of implementing their corrosion control plans

• two municipalities are in the process of implementing their corrosion control plans and replacing lead 
service lines

• seven municipalities are replacing lead service lines

Data associated with these lead control strategies can be found by visiting the Drinking Water Quality and 
Enforcement page on our Open Data Catalogue (https://www.ontario.ca/data/drinking-water-quality-and-
enforcement).

If a drinking water test result does not meet Ontario’s Drinking Water Quality Standards, an adverse water 
quality incident has occurred. An operational problem at a system can also result in an adverse water quality 
incident. An adverse water quality incident does not necessarily mean the drinking water is unsafe; it indicates 
that an incident has occurred and that corrective action must be taken. Corrective actions may include the 
issuance of a drinking water advisory by the local health unit if there is concern that the water may not be safe 
for the public to drink.

In 2015-16, 373 systems reported 1,554 adverse water quality incidents. In 2014-15, 372 systems reported 1,954 
incidents. As expected, the number of adverse water quality incidents changed again in 2015-16 to previous 
2013-14 levels. The 2014-15 numbers were related to the increased sampling frequency for a specific watermain 
replacement project.

Drinking water advisories that last for 12 consecutive months are considered to be long-term. In 2015-16, the 
Lynden Drinking Water System near Hamilton continued to have a long-term drinking water advisory (in place 
since 2012-13). The advisory was issued to prevent potential long-term exposure to elevated concentrations of 
lead. The test results are below the Ontario Drinking Water Quality Standard but the advisory will remain in 
place to allow the concentrations in the drinking water supply to stabilize. Mitigation efforts such as identifying 
the source of lead, continuing to offer residents on-tap filters that are certified to remove lead, and searching 
for an alternative water source are being made by the municipality.

The province inspects municipal residential drinking water systems annually to determine whether they are 
meeting Ontario’s regulatory requirements. During 2015-16, staff inspected all 663 systems. Of these, 492 
systems (or 74 per cent) received a perfect score (100 per cent inspection rating). Six hundred and sixty of the 
663 (or 99.5 per cent) inspections resulted in inspection ratings greater than 80 per cent. Data associated with 
these sections can be found by visiting the Drinking Water Quality and Enforcement page on our Open Data 
Catalogue (https://www.ontario.ca/data/drinking-water-quality-and-enforcement).

Figure 3: Yearly comparison of municipal residential drinking water system inspection ratings

[3]

1

Page 6 of 12Chief Drinking Water Inspector Annual Report 2015-2016 | Ontario.ca

29/11/2016https://www.ontario.ca/page/chief-drinking-water-inspector-annual-report-2015-2016



Notes for Figure 3:

The decline in the total number of systems is due to amalgamations of these systems.

Between 2005-06 and 2007-08, the ministry completed its planned annual inspection program of 
all municipal residential drinking water systems in Ontario generating its annual inspection rating for 
each system. During this period, for a number of reasons some systems were inspected twice, e.g., a 
water treatment plant and distribution system were registered as two systems but were inspected 
together as one system and vice versa or to ensure equipment had been properly decommissioned.

Orders can be issued as a result of inspections or incidents occurring outside of the inspection period. In 2015-
16, no orders were issued to municipal residential drinking water systems.

Non-municipal year-round residential drinking water systems
In 2015-16, 99.67% of 42,760 drinking water test results from 442 non-municipal year-round 
residential drinking water systems met Ontario’s Drinking Water Quality Standards.

These systems include privately owned systems that supply drinking water to residences with six or more units 
including apartments buildings and mobile home parks.

Lead test results in plumbing from these systems indicate that the vast majority of results continued to meet 
the provincial standard in drinking water in 2015-16. The percentage of lead test results meeting standards has 
remained close to 99% since 2013-14.

In 2015-16, there were 18 exceedances for lead in plumbing out of 1,369 test results from non-municipal year-
round residential drinking water systems.

1

2

Page 7 of 12Chief Drinking Water Inspector Annual Report 2015-2016 | Ontario.ca

29/11/2016https://www.ontario.ca/page/chief-drinking-water-inspector-annual-report-2015-2016



Adverse water quality incidents for non-municipal year-round residential drinking water systems may occur 
but do not necessarily mean that the drinking water is unsafe. They also have to be addressed with corrective 
action.

In 2015-16:

• 162 systems reported 385 adverse water quality incidents. This is less than the 427 adverse water quality 
incidents reported by 181 systems in 2014-15

• the ministry inspected 95 of the 458 registered drinking water systems

• 12 contravention and one preventative measures orders were issued to 13 systems

Local services boards
These boards operate drinking water systems in northern communities without municipal government 
structures.

In 2015-16, all eight systems were inspected and one preventative measures order was issued.

Systems serving designated facilities
In 2015-16, 99.61% of 64,965 drinking water test results from 1,333 systems serving designated facilities
met Ontario’s Drinking Water Quality Standards.

These systems are not connected to municipal residential drinking water systems and provide drinking water 
to designated facilities such as children’s camps, schools, day nurseries and health care centres.

In 2015-16:

• 280 systems reported 427 adverse water quality incidents which is down from 288 systems reporting 450 
in 2014-15

• 218 of 1,460 registered systems were inspected and two contravention orders were issued to two 
systems

Schools and day nurseries
Whether connected to a municipal drinking water system or not, registered schools and day nurseries are 
subject to the flushing and sampling requirement of the Schools, Private Schools and Day Nurseries 
Regulation (O. Reg. 243/07) to help reduce the risk of children six and under being exposed to lead in drinking 
water. The province uses a variety of methods to ensure compliance including inspections, compliance audits 
and an online reporting program.

Under O. Reg. 243/07, these facilities are required to regularly flush their plumbing. Flushing reduces 
potential lead levels in drinking water because it prevents water from standing in the plumbing, thereby 
reducing contact time with the pipes and plumbing. These facilities are required to sample their drinking water 
before and after they flush their plumbing. Lead test results from these facilities continue to show that flushing 
significantly reduces lead in drinking water.

[4]

[5]

[6]

Page 8 of 12Chief Drinking Water Inspector Annual Report 2015-2016 | Ontario.ca

29/11/2016https://www.ontario.ca/page/chief-drinking-water-inspector-annual-report-2015-2016



Past efforts to minimize exposure to lead in drinking water which include testing, education and outreach and 
in 2012-13, an extensive reporting initiative, demonstrate that the majority of facilities across Ontario do not 
have an issue with lead in drinking water.

In 2015-16:

• 6,900 Ontario facilities submitted flushed drinking water samples to licensed and eligible laboratories 
for testing for lead and the results were reported to the ministry. Over 98% of these facilities met the 
standard for lead

• the less than two per cent of these facilities that did not meet the lead standard are required to take 
immediate corrective actions as directed by the local Medical Officer of Health

• the ministry conducted 166 inspections and 113 compliance audits of the 11,171 registered facilities. No 
orders were issued

236 facilities participated in the reporting program (after 2012-13, reports were sent to newly registered 
schools and day nurseries and those that did not complete the previous year’s report) and of those, 214 
facilities indicated that flushing was performed according to the prescribed procedure.

Licensed and eligible laboratories
Laboratories that test drinking water must be licensed by the province when they are located within Ontario. In 
addition, there are a few laboratories that are located outside of Ontario that can test Ontario’s drinking water. 
These laboratories must meet specific ministry requirements and must be added to the ministry’s eligibility 
list. The out-of-province laboratories that are currently on the eligibility list are affiliated with licensed 
laboratories within Ontario. These eligible laboratories are able to conduct specialized testing that the Ontario 
licensed laboratories are not able to perform.

Ontario inspects all laboratories at least twice a year to determine whether they are meeting the regulatory 
requirements.

In 2015-16, all 52 laboratories that test Ontario’s drinking water were inspected twice. Fifty-eight per cent of 
the inspections resulted in ratings of 100 per cent. The ratings of all inspections were greater than 90 per cent. 
This is a five percentage point increase from 2014-15 when all inspections received ratings that were higher 
than 85 per cent.

Two contravention orders were issued to one licensed laboratory. Both orders resulted from non-compliance 
issues found during routine inspections.

Compliance and Enforcement Regulation requirements
The Compliance and Enforcement Regulation (O. Reg. 242/05) of the Safe Drinking Water Act requires the 
Ministry of the Environment and Climate Change to carry out a number of specific activities such as taking 
mandatory actions and conducting inspections of municipal residential drinking water systems and 
laboratories that test Ontario's drinking water.

Page 9 of 12Chief Drinking Water Inspector Annual Report 2015-2016 | Ontario.ca

29/11/2016https://www.ontario.ca/page/chief-drinking-water-inspector-annual-report-2015-2016



Under O. Reg. 242/05, the ministry is required to ensure all municipal residential drinking water systems are 
inspected annually and that one out of every three inspections is unannounced. In addition, the ministry must 
inspect all licensed and eligible laboratories at least twice a year ensuring that at least one inspection is 
unannounced.

In 2015-16 the ministry met all its obligations required under the Compliance and Enforcement Regulation.

Convictions
The government takes action in response to potential violations, as those who are responsible for delivering 
safe drinking water to the public are legally accountable for their actions.

In 2015-16, two systems serving designated facilities were convicted. There were two cases with convictions 
involving two systems resulting in fines of $6,000 in total. Conviction data reflects the year in which the 
conviction took place, not the year when the offence was committed. Data associated with this section can be 
found by visiting the Drinking Water Quality and Enforcement page on our Open Data Catalogue
(https://www.ontario.ca/data/drinking-water-quality-and-enforcement).

Operator certification and training
Drinking water operators in Ontario must be trained according to the type and class of facility they operate. 
The more complex a system is (the higher the class of system), the more training an operator must complete. 
As of March 31, 2016, 6,480 drinking water operators held 9,074 certificates.

One of the ministry’s key training partners is the Walkerton Clean Water Centre. As of March 31, 2016, the 
centre has trained more than 62,500 new and existing professionals since it opened in 2004. For more 
information, see the Walkerton Clean Water Centre’s website (https://www.wcwc.ca/en/).

Small Drinking Water Systems Program – Ministry of Health and Long-
Term Care
Message from the Chief Medical Officer of Health

As Ontario’s Chief Medical Officer of Health, I am pleased to share with you some highlights of Ontario’s 2015-
16 drinking water quality results for Small Drinking Water Systems.

Ontario’s drinking water continues to meet our rigorous health-based standards, and the performance of our 
small drinking water systems is no exception. These achievements emanate from the collective, steadfast work 
of our many drinking water partners: keen oversight by the Ministry of Health and Long-Term Care; 
collaboration and technical expertise through the Ministry of the Environment and Climate Change; and 
comprehensive on-the-ground administration of the Small Drinking Water System Program by Ontario’s 
public health units.

A steady decline in the number of adverse water quality incidents, for these small but important systems, may 
be attributed to the identification of and corrective action taken to reduce adverse incidents. These results 
could not be possible without the detailed inspections and risk-based assessments provided by public health 
inspectors, which produce a customized site-specific plan for owner/operators of small drinking water systems 
to keep their drinking water safe.

Page 10 of 12Chief Drinking Water Inspector Annual Report 2015-2016 | Ontario.ca

29/11/2016https://www.ontario.ca/page/chief-drinking-water-inspector-annual-report-2015-2016



Updated: November 28, 2016 
Published: November 28, 2016 

The Small Drinking Water Systems Program demonstrates the Ontario government’s commitment to reduced 
regulatory burden, increased accountability and public transparency. Together we are upholding Justice 
O’Connor’s recommendations to ensure that drinking water quality standards established for the province are 
not compromised, and meeting these standards in a way that supports the needs of small system operators.

I want to take this opportunity to personally thank the local boards of health and our many partners for their 
leadership in the protection of public health and vigilance in safeguarding drinking water in Ontario.

David C. Williams, MD, MHSc, FRCPC
Chief Medical Officer of Health
Ministry of Health and Long-Term Care

2015-16 Highlights of Ontario’s Small Drinking Water System Results

Across Ontario, thousands of businesses and other community sites use a small drinking water system to 
supply drinking water to the public. These communities may not have access to a municipal drinking water 
supply and are most often located in semi-rural and remote communities.

Many of these systems provide drinking water in restaurants, places of worship and community centres, 
resorts, rental cabins, motels, lodges, and bed and breakfasts, and campgrounds, among other public settings.

Owners and operators of small drinking water systems are responsible for protecting the drinking water that 
they provide to the public. They are also responsible for meeting Ontario’s regulatory requirements, including 
regular drinking water sampling and testing, and maintaining up-to-date records.

Through the Ministry of Health and Long-Term Care’s Small Drinking Water Systems Program, regulated 
under the Health Protection and Promotion Act and its regulations, local boards of health (public health units) 
help operators keep their water safe by applying a risk-based approach resulting in a customized directive for 
each system which may include requirements for water sampling, water treatment options, operational checks 
and operator training.

As of March 31, 2016, 16,804 risk assessments have been completed for the approximately 10,000 small 
drinking water systems. Over 87 per cent of systems were categorized as low/moderate risk and subject to 
regular re-inspection every four years; while the remaining systems, categorized as high risk, are re-inspected 
every two years.

In 2015-16, we continued to see gradual improvement in overall water sample quality with close to 98 per cent 
of samples submitted met Ontario’s Drinking Water Quality Standards.

In addition, we saw significant decreases in adverse tests and adverse water quality incidents from the previous 
year, while the number of samples submitted remained stable:

• 8.78% fewer adverse test results

• 15.97% fewer adverse water quality incidents 

An adverse test result does not necessarily mean that users are at risk of becoming ill. In the event of an 
adverse test result, the laboratory notifies both the owner and/or operator of the small drinking water system 
and the local public health unit for immediate response.

[7]

[8]

Page 11 of 12Chief Drinking Water Inspector Annual Report 2015-2016 | Ontario.ca

29/11/2016https://www.ontario.ca/page/chief-drinking-water-inspector-annual-report-2015-2016



Footnotes

• footnote [1] ^ Ontario’s drinking water quality standards are listed in the Ontario Drinking Water 
Quality Standards Regulation (O. Reg. 169/03). The number of parameters has been updated from 158 
(as reported in the 2014-2015 Chief Drinking Water Inspector’s Annual Report) to 145 due to the January 
1, 2016 revision of O. Reg. 169/03. This update revised standards for 13 pesticides that are no longer in 
commercial use, have been de-listed from the federal guidelines, and have not been detected in drinking 
water samples for at least 10 years. The parameters that drinking water systems must test for are given in 
the Drinking Water Systems Regulation (O. Reg. 170/03). In 2016-17, these parameters will increase 
with the addition of new substances.

• footnote [2] ^ There were 661 registered municipal residential drinking water systems in 2015-16 and of 
these 658 submitted samples. Three systems that received their water from another municipal residential 
drinking water system had their samples represented within the samples collected and submitted by the 
municipal residential drinking water systems that supplied water to them.

• footnote [3] ^ In 2015-16, there were 661 registered municipal residential drinking water systems, 
however, 663 systems were inspected. Towards the end of the previous fiscal year (i.e. 2014-15) two 
municipal residential drinking water systems ceased to operate: Carriage Lane Drinking Water System 
and Harbour Lights Drinking Water System. The Province inspected both systems in 2015-16 to ensure 
that the operations were properly shut down.

• footnote [4] ^ In 2015-16, there were 458 registered non-municipal year-round residential drinking 
water systems, however, only 442 of these systems submitted samples for testing as some ceased to 
operate and/or data was not provided to the ministry.

• footnote [5] ^ The Child Care and Early Years Act replaces the term “day nursery” with “child care 
centre” after August 31, 2015.

• footnote [6] ^ The number of systems serving designated facilities that were registered in 2015-16 was 
more than those that submitted samples for the following reasons: some systems ceased to operate 
and/or data was not provided to the ministry, while some received drinking water for their cistern from 
municipal residential drinking water systems which carried out the required sampling on their behalf. 
Sampling was not required for those systems that posted notices advising people not to drink the water.

• footnote [7] ^ The reported number of risk assessments will change as new systems come into 
use/change in use, and routine re-inspections and risk assessments are completed. Risk categories may 
also fluctuate (e.g., if recommended improvements are taken to reduce the system’s risk). Similarly, a 
system may require reassessment to determine if the risk level has changed (e.g., if the water source or 
system integrity is affected by adverse weather events or system modifications).

• footnote [8] ^When an AWQI is detected, the small drinking water system owner/operator is required 
to notify the local medical officer of health and to follow up with any action that may be required. The 
public health unit will perform a risk analysis and determine if the water poses a risk to health if 
consumed or used and take additional action as required to inform and protect the public. Response to 
an AWQI may include issuing a drinking water advisory that will notify potential users whether the water 
is safe to use and drink or if it requires boiling to render it safe for use. The public health unit may also 
provide the owners and/or operators of a drinking water system with necessary corrective action(s) to be 
taken on the affected drinking water system to address the risk. 

© Queen’s Printer for Ontario, 2012-16 (http://www.ontario.ca/page/copyright-information-c-queens-printer-ontario) 

Page 12 of 12Chief Drinking Water Inspector Annual Report 2015-2016 | Ontario.ca

29/11/2016https://www.ontario.ca/page/chief-drinking-water-inspector-annual-report-2015-2016



Township of McKellar 

 

P.O. Box 69, McKellar, Ontario P0G 1C0 Phone: (705) 389-2842 

 Fax: (705) 389-1244 
 

VIA EMAIL  

 

November 22, 2016 

 

The Honourable Kathleen Wynne  

The Honourable Brad Duguid 

The Honourable Bob Chiarelli  

Norm Miller, MPP for Parry Sound-Muskoka 

Association of Municipalities of Ontario (AMO) 

Federation of Northern Ontario Municipalities (FONOM) 

Rural Ontario Municipal Association (ROMA) 

All Ontario Municipalities  

 

 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 Please be advised that at its regular meeting held, Monday November 21, 2016 the 

Council of the  Township of McKellar passed the following resolution:  

 

 RESOLUTION:  16-384 

 

 WHEREAS the Fire Protection and Prevention Act, 1997, legislates that fire prevention, 

 public education and fire protection services are a mandatory municipal responsibility;  

 AND WHEREAS  there are a total of 449 Fire Departments operating in the province  

 comprised of 32 Full-Time Departments, 191 Composite Departments and 226 Volunteer 

 Departments with 11,376 Full-Time Firefighters, 19,347 Volunteer Firefighters and 343 

 Part-Time Firefighters staffing these departments; 

 AND WHEREAS the fire service represents a significant percentage of small, rural and  

 northern municipalities’ managed capital assets; 

 AND WHEREAS the Municipal Fire Department and associated assets represent critical 

 municipal infrastructure;  

 AND WHEREAS there are currently no funding opportunities available from the  

 Provincial or the Federal Government for the equipment, training, maintenance, operating 

 or capital requirements of local fire departments; 

 

 NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Council of the Township of McKellar 

 hereby petition the Provincial Government to recognize the municipal fire service as 

 critical infrastructure by including funding for Fire Department infrastructure as part of the 

 Provincial Governments Infrastructure Strategy to Move Ontario Forward; 



 

 AND FURTHER that a copy of this resolution be sent to the Premier of Ontario, the  

 Minister of Economic Development, Employment and Infrastructure, Norm Miller, MPP 

 for Parry Sound-Muskoka, the Association of Municipalities of Ontario (AMO), the 

 Federation of Northern Ontario Municipalities (FONOM), the Rural Ontario Municipal 

 Association (ROMA) and all Ontario municipalities.  

 

 

As per the above resolution, please accept this correspondence for your information and 

consideration. 

 

If you have any questions please do not hesitate to contact undersigned.  

 

 

 

Sincerely,  

 

  

           

Shawn Boggs  

Clerk Administrator 

Township of McKellar  

 

 

 

 



Guelph/Eramosa
Township

THE TOWNSHIP OF GUELPH/ERAMOSA
NOTIGE OF GOMPLETE APPLIGATION

AND NOTICE OF PUBLIG MEETING

TAKE NOTICE that pursuant to the requirements of the Planning Act, R.S.O., 1990 as amended the

Township of Guelph/Eramosa has received a complete application (ZBA 05/16) to amend Zoning

By-law qOnOlA. The Council of the Corporation of the Township of Guelph/Eramosa will hold a
púOl¡. meeting to advise the public of the application and to obtain public input prior to making a

decision.

THE pUBLIC MEETING will be held on Monday, December 19, 2016 at 7:00 p.m. at the

Guelph/Eramosa Township Municipal Office located at 8348 Wellington Road 124, al Brucedale, to

consider an amendment to the Zoning By-law of the Township of Guelph/Eramosa pursuant to

Section 34 of lhe Planning Act, R.S.O., Chapter P.'13, as amended'

The proposed amendment applies to the property, municipally known as 5087 Whitelaw Road and

legaliy known as part Lots A ând B, Concession 2, Division E, former Guelph Township, being Parts

Zõto'+¿ on 61R6686 except parts'1 to 15 on 61R1'1855, now in the Township of Guelph/Eramosa.

The subject property is currently zoned Agricultural (A) with Special Provision21.159 and is shown

on the inset map.

THE PURPOSE OF THE APPLICATION is to rezone 0.87ha of lands from Agricultural (A) Zone

with Special provision2l.lbg to Rural lndustrial (M1) Zone with Special Provision21.l10 to apply

the same zoning as the abutting lands to which it will merge, and to amend the Special Provision

21.15g to recognize a further reduced Minimum Lot Area of 26.79 ha on the retained lands. The

zone change aþplication is required to satisfy an approval condition of the related Consent

Application (56/16).

ANy PERSON may attend the public meeting and/or make written or verbal representation in

support of or in oppôsition to the proposed amendment. lf you wish to be notified of the decision of

thé borporation of the Township of Guelph/Eramosa on the proposed zoning by-law, you must make

a written request to the Township Clerk at the address shown below.

lf a person or public body does not make oral submissions at a public meeting or make written

submissions to the Corporation of the Township of Guelph/Eramosa before the by-law is passed,

the person or public body is not entitled to appeal the decision of the Council of the Corporation of
Township of Guelph/Eramosa to the Ontario Municipal Board.

lf a person or public body does not make oral submissions at a public meeting, or make written

submissions to the Corporation of the Township of Guelph/Eramosa before the by-law is passed,

the person or public body may not be added as a party to the hearing of an appeal before the

Ontario Municipal Board unless, in the opinion of the Board, there are reasonable grounds to do so.

The above information is being collected pursuant to the Planning Act, R.S.O. 1990, CHAPTER
p.13, Section 34. lnformation, including opinions, presentations, reports, documentation, etc.,

provided for or at a Public Meeting is considered public records. This information may be posted on

ih" To*nship of Guelph/Eramosa website and/or made available to the public upon request.

Questions about this collection should be directed to the undersigned.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION regarding the proposed amendment is available for inspection

between 8:30 a.m. and 4:30 p.m. at the Township of Guelph/Eramosa Municipal Office as of the

date of this notice. For more information about this matter, including information about preserving

your appeal rights, contact should be directed to the Township Clerk at the address shown below.

Dated at the Township of Guelph/Eramosa
this '18th day of November, 2016.

LOCATION AND ZOT.{ING

Meaghen Reid, Clerk
Township of Guelph/Eramosa
8348 Wellington Road 124
P.O. Box 700, Rockwood, ON NOB 2K0
Telephone: (519) 856-9596 Ext. 107
Fax: (519) 856-2240
Email: mreid@qet.on.ca

This document is available in larger font
on the Township's website at
www.qet.on.ca. lf you requlre an
alternative format, please contact the
Township Clerk.

c4t
€ñl
r¡l.
ñl

ct
=

o
Lu

TU

O
Lu
É,

Lands to be rezoned from
159) to M-1 (21.

M1
2{.1t0

A
21.1t9

(TO BE AUENOED}

-coc

lFo



1

Nina Lecic

From: Jessica Gunby <jgunby@gbtownship.ca>
Sent: November-16-16 1:39 PM
To: 'Brooke Hawley'; Alex Regele (twphill@parolink.net); Alison Collard 

(nathalie.boulerice@champlain.ca); Alison Thomas (taytownship@tay.ca); Allison 
Holtzhauer (admin@greatermadawaska.com); Amanda Gubbels 
(info@warwicktownship.ca); Amy Humphries (info@cityofwoodstock.ca); Amy Vickery-
Menard (evanturelclerk@parolink.net); Andr‚e Latreille (alatreille@prescott-
russell.on.ca); Andrea Fay (admin@midland.ca); Andrew Brouwer (info@newmarket.ca); 
Andrew Farnsworth (info@magnetawan.com); Andrew Van Oosten 
(township@ntl.sympatico.ca); Andy Grozelle (inquiries@norfolkcounty.ca); Angela 
Cathrae (admin@southbrucepeninsula.com); Angela Chittick (twpsel@nexicom.net); 
Angela Morgan (cob@burlington.ca); Angela Sharbot (info@atikokan.ca); Angela Toth 
(general@strathroy-caradoc.ca); Angie Bird (info@algonquinhighlands.ca); Anita Herd 
(harris@parolink.net); Anne Greentree (cfleming@clarington.net); Annette Clarke 
(aclarke@gorebay.ca); Annette Louis (info@admastonbromley.com); Annette Simonian 
(info@augusta.ca); Arie Hoogenboom (admin@merrickville-wolford.ca); Ashley Grigg 
(webadmin@portcolborne.ca); Ashley Sage (admin@zorra.on.ca); Barbara Kane 
(lkeenan@townshipadjtos.on.ca); Barbara Major (general@kapuskasing.ca); Barbara 
McLeod (info@wilmot.ca); Becky Bonisteel-Bourne 
(bbonisteel@asphodelnorwood.com); Bernice Crocker (clerk@tudorandcashel.com); 
Beth Morton (info@townshipofperry.ca); Betty Gallagher (info@twp.tweed.on.ca); Betty 
Gordon (office@newbury.ca); Bettyanne Cobean (dbatte@brucecounty.on.ca); Bonnie 
Bailey (burpeemills@vianet.ca); Bonnie Dingwall (information@townofgananoque.ca); 
Bonnie Nistico-Dunk (clerks@stcatharines.ca); Bonnie Sander 
(bsander@essatownship.on.ca); Brad Knight (bknight@huroneast.com); Brad 
McRoberts (reception@mapleton.ca); Brenda Andreatta (info@town.lasalle.on.ca); 
Brenda Brunt (mail@southdundas.com); Brenda Clark (info@simcoe.ca); Brenda Fraser 
(kearney1@vianet.on.ca); Brenda Green (info@townshipofthenorthshore.ca); Brenda 
MacIsaac (info@centralhuron.com); Brenda Paul (bpaulmachar@vianet.ca); Brenda 
Percy (info@leamington.ca); Brenda Tabor (caoclerk@oxfordcounty.ca); Brenda Vader 
(office@faraday.ca); Brent Kittmer (general@townofstmarys.com); Brent St. Denis 
(brentstdenis@gmail.com); Brian Gilmer (admin@porthope.ca); Brian Tocheri 
(civic@hanover.ca); Brianna Coughlin (info@plympton-wyoming.ca); Bridget Foster 
(township@emo.ca); Bryan Brooks (caoclerk@stonemills.com); Bryan Martin 
(admin@eganville.com); Cahl Pominville (general@northgrenville.on.ca); Calvin 
Rodgers (twpchamb@ntl.sympatico.ca); Candice Bedard (cobalt@ntl.sympatico.ca); 
Candy Beauvais (townkill@vianet.on.ca); Carey deGorter (info@caledon.ca); Carol 
Trainor (stjoeadmin@bellnet.ca); Carol Watson (clerk@howick.ca); Carole Gendron 
(cgendron@moonbeam.ca); Carolyn Langley (reception@westlincoln.com); Carrie 
Lewis (adminoffice@gordonbarrieisland.ca); Carrie Sykes (csykes@lakeofbays.on.ca); 
Catharine Saunders (webmaster@london.ca); Cathie Ritchie 
(ritchiec@northumberlandcounty.ca); Cathy MacMunn 
(township@centralfrontenac.com); Chantelle Gascon (deputyclerk@town.ignace.on.ca); 
Charlene Overholt (bluewater@town.bluewater.on.ca); Charles Barton 
(admin@nipissingtownship.com); Cheryl Coulson (info@dysartetal.ca); Cheryl Marshall 
(mcmurric@gmail.com); Cheryl Mortimer (cmortimer@muskokalakes.ca); Chris Wray 
(lmann@wawa.cc); Christiane Potvin (administration@valharty.ca); Christine FitzSimons 
(info@whitewaterregion.ca); Christine Goulet (municipality@redlake.ca); Christine 
Groulx (cgroulx@hawkesbury.ca); Christine Reed (info@addingtonhighlands.ca); 
Christine Tarling (christine.tarling@kitchener.ca); Christopher Harris 



2

To: (cassels@whitby.ca); Cindy Halcrow (admin@dnetownship.ca); Cindy Maher 
(clerk@newtecumseth.ca); Cindy Vankoughnett (info@mcdougall.ca); Claire Bigelow 
(toc@ontera.net); Connie Parent (info@northkawartha.on.ca); Corrina Giles 
(info@thebluemountains.ca); Craig Jeffery (info@seguin.ca); Craig Kelley 
(info@madawaskavalley.ca); Crystal Greer (public.info@mississauga.ca); Crystal 
McMillan (info@dourodummer.on.ca); Cynthia Moyle (cmoyle@twp.beckwith.on.ca); 
Cynthia Townsend (town@town.espanola.on.ca); Dan Thibeault 
(dack@ntl.sympatico.ca); Daniel Scissons (email@petawawa.ca); Darlene Noonan 
(athens@myhighspeed.ca); Darlene Plumley (tquist@kos.net); Daryl Skworchinski 
(clerk@marathon.ca); David Cribbs (administration@county-lambton.on.ca); David 
Treen (municipality@temiskamingshores.ca); Dawn Hayes (alberton@jam21.net); Dawn 
McAlpine (cityinfo@barrie.ca); Dawn Newhook (admin@mindenhills.ca); Dean Iorfida 
(info@niagarafalls.ca); Dean Sauriol (laurentian@laurvall.on.ca); Debbie Shields 
(clerks@pickering.ca); Debi Wilcox (info@durham.ca); Deborah Crowder 
(info@muskoka.on.ca); Deborah Leroux (info@town.uxbridge.on.ca); Deborah Miller 
(mattawan@efni.com); Deborah Robertson (info@greyhighlands.ca); Deborah Tonelli 
(email@huronshores.ca); Debra Kincaid (generalinquiries@dryden.ca); Debra McKinstry 
(mail@twpec.ca); Debra Roth (info@brockton.ca); Denis Kelly (info@york.ca); Denis 
Turcot (info@markstay-warren.ca); Denise Corry (administration@huntsville.ca); Denise 
Holmes (info@melancthontownship.ca); Diane Francoeur (clerk@ebonfield.org); 
Dianne Gould-Brown (clerks@sarnia.ca); Dianne Quinn (quinner@ntl.sympatico.ca); 
Dina Lundy (info@erin.ca); Donald Leitch (dwilson@centralelgin.org); Donald McArthur 
(clerk@schreiber.ca); Donna Brunke (brucemines@bellnet.ca); Donna Bryce 
(donnab@wellington.ca); Donna Clermont (admin@dawneuphemia.on.ca); Donna 
MacDougall (clerk@kincardine.net); Donna Wilson (contact@tillsonburg.ca); Douglas 
Irwin (info@oro-medonte.ca); Douglas Luker (dluker@tiny.ca); Duncan McTavish 
(dmctavish@enniskillen.ca); Duncan Rogers (info@carletonplace.ca); Dwayne Evans 
(townhall@goderich.ca); Dwight McTaggart (brendacoulter@larderlake.ca); Elaine 
Covey (admin@frontofyonge.com); Elaine Gunnell (visit@temagami.ca); Elana Arthurs 
(services@cavanmonaghan.net); Elizabeth (Lisa) Slomke (town@fort-frances.com); Ellen 
Hamel (nnclark@sympatico.ca); Evelyn Eichenbaum (info@haldimandcounty.ca); 
Fernando Lamanna (town@eastgwillimbury.ca); Francine Desormeau 
(info@mattawa.ca); Francis Lamontagne (twpopas@persona.ca); Francoise Urbshott 
(info@adelaidemetcalfe.on.ca); Gabrielle Lecuyer (administration@greenstone.ca); Gail 
Jaremy (royward.hpayne@bellnet.ca); Gayle Jackson (corporate@orillia.ca); Glenn 
Girven (havbelmet@hbmtwp.ca); Glenn Martin (tarbutttownship@bellnet.ca); Gloria 
Collier (clerks@richmondhill.ca); Grace Kosch (info@wellesley.ca); Guylaine Coulombe 
(mattice@ntl.sympatico.ca); Hazel Lambe (bancroft@town.bancroft.on.ca); Hazel 
Soady-Easton (Administration-Office-General@grimsby.ca); Heather Boyd 
(brant@brant.ca); Heather Kasprick (service@kenora.ca); Heather Scott 
(info@osmtownship.ca); Heather Smith (reception@blackriver-matheson.com); Helen 
Finn (cityhall@cornwall.ca); Helen Thomson (info@sdgcounties.ca); Holly Bryce 
(clerk@wasagabeach.com); Holly Dowd (hdowd@notl.org); Holly Morrison 
(office@georgianbluffs.on.ca); Irene Cook (shunter@highlandseast.ca); Jackie 
Tiedeman (admin@northmiddlesex.on.ca); Jaime Allen (jallen@latchford.ca); James 
Pine (hicksl@hastingscounty.com); Jane Wilson (mail@townofgrandvalley.ca); Janet 
Boucher (admin@jocelyn.ca); Janet Denkers (jdenkers@brookealvinston.com); Janie 
Laidlaw (clerk@tayvalleytwp.ca); Janine Lecours (townofhearst@hearst.ca); Janneke 
Newitt (info@southwestmiddlesex.ca); Jannette Amini (info@frontenaccounty.ca); 
Jasmin Ralph (info@township.montague.on.ca); Jason McMartin 
(admin@papineaucameron.ca); Jeff Baranek (webmaster@twp.stclair.on.ca); Jeffrey 
Abrams (clerks@vaughan.ca); Jennifer Astrologo (jastrologo@kingsville.ca); Jennifer 
Cohen (wollaston@bellnet.ca); Jennifer Connor (ramara@ramara.ca); Tara Mieske; 



3

To: Jennifer Trumble (info@township.limerick.on.ca); Jennifer Turk 
(oilsprings@ciaccess.com); Jeremy Rody (assiginackinfo@amtelecom.net); Jillene 
Bellchamber-Glazier (info@perthcounty.ca); Jim Burns 
(info@villageofpointedward.com); Jim Hutton (info@countyofrenfrew.on.ca); Jo Ann 
Ducharme (joann.ducharme@tkl.ca); Joan Thomson (clerks@stratfordcanada.ca); 
Joanne Camir‚ Laflamme (info@russell.ca); Jo-Anne McCaslin (info@northdundas.com); 
Jocelyne Pronovost (jp.ouellette@town.cochrane.on.ca); John Bolognone 
(contactus@cityofkingston.ca); John Espinosa (info@georgina.ca); John Kennedy 
(cityptbo@peterborough.ca); John Telfer (jtelfer@shelburne.ca); Jonathan Hall 
(info@terracebay.ca); Judith Smith (ckinfo@chatham-kent.ca); Judy Currins 
(info@kawarthalakes.on.ca); Judy Kosowan (admin@ryersontownship.ca); Julia Sippel 
(info@northdumfries.ca); Julie Oram (clerk@cramahetownship.ca); Julie Tiboni 
(rainyriver@tbaytel.net); Kal Pristanski (info@redrocktownship.com); Admin; Karen 
McIsaac (info@cityofnorthbay.ca); Kari Stevenson (info@trentlakes.ca); Karren Wallace 
(township@wellington-north.com); Karyn Bennett (accesshalton@halton.ca); Katherine 
McDonald (clerktreasurer@billingstwp.ca); Kathleen Bunting (kbunting@middlesex.ca); 
Kathleen Surerus (info@hamiltontownship.ca); Kathryn Lockyer (info@peelregion.ca); 
Kathryn Moyle (online@king.ca); Kathryn Scott (katie.scott@blindriver.ca); Kathy 
Adams (schambers@northhuron.ca); Kayla Thibeault (info@gravenhurst.ca); Ken 
Loveland (southwold@twp.southwold.on.ca); Kerri O'Kane 
(kokane@centrewellington.ca); Kerry Costello (info@smithsfalls.ca); Kevin Heath 
(info@quintewest.ca); Kevin McLlwain (admin@carlingtownship.ca); Kim Bulmer 
(info@town.renfrew.on.ca); Kimberley Casselman (info@prescott.ca); Kimberley 
Kitteringham (customerservice@markham.ca); Kimberley White 
(astewart@pecounty.on.ca); Kimberly Ballance (eftownship@ear-falls.com); Kimberly 
Sloss (inquiries@sables-spanish.ca); Kristen Van Alphen (cityadmin@owensound.ca); 
Kristine Fletcher (wkaren@regionofwaterloo.ca); Kurt Greaves (info@lanarkcounty.ca); 
Kyle Kruger (mbratley@twp.norwich.on.ca); Larry Keech (lkeech@lennox-
addington.on.ca); Laura Bubanko (lbubanko@forterie.on.ca); Laura Moy 
(info@tecumseh.ca); Lauren Walton (lwalton@perth.ca); Laurie Spence-Bannerman 
(cao@duttondunwich.on.ca); Leanne Crozier (office@townshipofjoly.com); Leanne 
Martin (clerk@town.southbruce.on.ca); Lee Parkin (inquiry@innisfil.ca); Lesley Sprague 
(info@city.elliotlake.on.ca); Lesley Todd (reception@uclg.on.ca); Lillian Fowler 
(villageoffice@sundridge.ca); Linda Maurer (clerk@strongtownship.com); Linda McLean 
(LMclean@iroquoisfalls.com); Linda Ringler (info@chisholm.ca); Linda Rozon 
(lrozon@easthawkesbury.ca); Linda White (harrisonr@saugeenshores.ca); Lindsay 
Mannila (info@nipigon.net); Lindsey Parkes (info@mcnabbraeside.com); Lisa DeBoer 
(ldeboer@lucanbiddulph.on.ca); Lisa VanderWallen (mgreb@swox.org); Lise Lavigne 
(liselavigne@northglengarry.ca); Lizet Scott (township@perthsouth.ca); Lori McDonald 
(lmcdonald@bracebridge.ca); Lori Wolfe (lwolfe@brantford.ca); Loriann Harbers 
(info@southstormont.ca); Lorna Buob (twpoconn@tbaytel.net); Lorraine Brace 
(webmaster@cobourg.ca); Lynda Kovacs (administration@calvintownship.ca); Lynda 
Millard (bayham@bayham.on.ca); Lynne Duguay (twpmacd@onlink.net); M. Genevieve 
Scharback (info@southhuron.ca); M. Margaret Greco (lmousseau@twp.prince.on.ca); 
M. Rick O'Connor (info@ottawa.ca); Mackie McLaren (mmclaren@hortontownship.ca); 
Mairghread Knought (info@callander.ca); Malcolm White (info@cityssm.on.ca); Mandi 
Pearson (petrolia@petrolia.ca); Manuela Batovanja (picklelake@picklelake.org); Marc 
Chenier (admin@northstormont.ca); Marc Daigneault (mdaigneault@alfred-
plantagenet.com); Margaret (Peggy) Dupuis (peggy.dupuis@oliverpaipoonge.on.ca); 
Margaret Hartling (mhartling@manitouwadge.ca); Margaret Lewis 
(inquiries@thamescentre.on.ca); Maria Konefal (info@stthomas.ca); Marielle Dupuis 
(info@casselman.ca); Marilyn Casselman (naw@nalgonawil.com); Marilyn LeBrun 
(info@southglengarry.com); Mark Becker (admin@acwtownship.ca); Mark Early 



4

To: (info@townofmono.com); Mark McDonald (admin2@elgin-county.on.ca); Mark Turner 
(mturner@westgrey.com); Martin de Rond (martin.derond@ajax.ca); Mary Brennan 
(coeinfo@countyofessex.on.ca); Mary Ellen Truelove (info@twprideaulakes.on.ca); Mary 
Lynn Standen (northernbrucepen@amtelecom.net); Mary MacKenzie 
(clerk@siouxlookout.ca); Mary Masse (webmaster@lakeshore.ca); Mary McCuaig 
(mmccuaig@nationmun.ca); Maryann Weaver (hgage@thearchipelago.on.ca); Matt 
Craig (lhreception@lanarkhighlands.ca); Matthew MacDonald 
(cpallo@city.belleville.on.ca); Maureen Lang (info@powassan.net); Maureen Spratt 
(arnprior@arnprior.ca); Mavis Harris (office@doriontownship.ca); Meaghen Reid 
(general@get.on.ca); Melanie Bouffard (mbouffard@frenchriver.ca); Melanie Ducharme 
(jbarbeau@municipality.westnippising.on.ca); Melinda Reith (twpshcm@xplornet.com); 
Michael Di Lullo (questions@cambridge.ca); Michael Graves (info@ingersoll.ca); 
Michael Rutter (aballe@county.haliburton.on.ca); Michel Lachapelle 
(harlytwp@parolink.net); Michele Kennedy (isabel.leung@townofws.ca); Michelle 
Casavecchia-Somers (malahide@malahide.ca); Michelle Mantifel (info@blrtownship.ca); 
Monica Hawkins (martine.caverly@eastferris.ca); Monique Ouellet (dcyr@clarence-
rockland.com); Myrna Hayes (elklake@ntl.sympatico.ca); Nadene Hunley-Johansen 
(shuniah@shuniah.org); Nancie Irving (nirving@town.aylmer.on.ca); Nancy Bozzato 
(clerks@pelham.ca); Nancy Michie (mail@morristurnberry.ca); Nancy Wright-Laking 
(administration@lambtonshores.ca); Nicky Kunkel (villageofbf@bellnet.ca); Nicole 
Wellsbury (mail@scugog.ca); Olga Smith (sgreatrix@waterloo.ca); Pam Bennewies 
(brethour@parolink.net); Pam Cress (info@townofnemi.on.ca); Pam Hillock 
(info@dufferincounty.ca); Pamela Fettes (pfettes@clearview.ca); Pamela Lortie 
(info@townofspanish.com); Patricia Berfelz (town@northperth.ca); Patricia Maxwell 
(conmee@tbaytel.net); Patrick Giles (dawsontwp@tbaytel.net); Patrick Giles 
(lakeofthewoodstwp@tbaytel.net); Patsy Gilchrist (twptehk@amtelecom.net); Patti 
McDowall (lavalley@nwonet.net); Paul Snider (info@loyalist.ca); Paula Parker 
(inquiry@amherstburg.ca); Peggy Cramp (info@hiltonbeach.com); Peggy Johnson 
(chapple@tbaytel.net); Peggy Rouse (info@arran-elderslie.ca); Peggy Young-Lovelace 
(peggy@baldwin.ca); Peter Fay (cityhall@brampton.ca); Phyllis MacKay 
(lairdtwp@soonet.ca); R. Scott Gawley (westelgin@westelgin.net); Ralph Walton 
(ralph.walton@niagararegion.ca); Raylene Martell (info@southgate.ca); Rebecca 
Murphy (rmurphy@townofbwg.com); Renee Chaperon (cao@stcharlesontario.ca); 
Reynald Rivard (reynald.rivard@armstrong.ca); Richard McGee 
(lmclaughlin@deepriver.ca); Robert Auger (webmaster@essex.ca); Robert Courchesne 
(info@fauquierstrickland.com); Robert Deschene (nairncentre@personainternet.com); 
Robert Tremblay (info@meaford.ca); Robin van de Moosdyk 
(alnhald@alnwickhaldimand.ca); Robyn Rogers (info@hastingshighlands.ca); Rodger 
Mordue (generalmail@blandfordblenheim.ca); Rosalie Evans (deputyct@neebing.org); 
Rose Caterini (info@hamilton.ca); Ruth Frawley (centralm@amtelecom.net); Ruth Kelso 
(people@johnsontownship.ca); Sally Saunders (lfawn@county.peterborough.on.ca); 
Sandra Kranc (service@oshawa.ca); Sandra MacDonald (clerk@brockville.com); Sara 
Almas (townhall@collingwood.ca); Sarah Smith (ssmith@wainfleet.ca); Scott Bryce 
(sbryce@villageofwestport.ca); Shara Lavallee (gillies@tbaytel.net); Shari Lang 
(info@trenthills.ca); Sharon Goerke (hsander@townshipofsevern.com); Sharon Vokes 
(clerks@grey.ca); Shawn Boggs (clerk@township.mckellar.on.ca); Shawna Stone 
(info@mississippimills.ca); Shelley Casey (township@dubreuilville.ca); Shelley Petten 
(info@moosonee.ca); Sherry Batten (info@laurentianhills.ca); Sonya Watson 
(info@huronkinloss.com); Stacey Cooper (hbryce@penetanguishene.ca); Stephane 
Palmateer (clerks@timmins.ca); Stephanie Troyer-Boyd 
(smibert@middlesexcentre.on.ca); Stephen Huycke (info@aurora.ca); Stephen O'Brien 
(info@guelph.ca); Steve Mercer (info@tyendinagatownship.com); Susan Arnold 
(info@southriverontario.com); Susan Beckel (info@greaternapanee.com); Susan Cronin 



5

To: (inquiries@huroncounty.ca); Susan Daniels (clerk@thorold.com); Susan Duke 
(info@westperth.com); Susan Greatrix (info@orangeville.ca); Susan Renaud 
(englehrt@ntl.sympatico.ca); Susan Sheridan (info@khrtownship.ca); Susan Stone 
(township@amaranth-eastgary.ca); Suzanne Jones (suzannej@haltonhills.ca); Suzanne 
Klatt (admin@southalgonquin.ca); Sylvie C“t‚ (treasure@ntl.sympatico.ca); Tammy Rob 
(clerktreasurer@visitmachin.com); Tammy Wylie (info@whitestone.ca); Tara Stephens 
(clerk@welland.ca); Tawnya Donald (info@stirling-rawdon.com); Teresa Desserre 
(townshipofmorley@gmail.com); Terry Horner (info@mulmur.ca); Terry Lapierre 
(pembroke@pembroke.ca); Theresa Campbell (township@pertheast.ca); Thom 
Gettinby (brock@townshipofbrock.ca); Tina Forsyth (info@whiteriver.ca); Tonia Graham 
(t.graham@marmoraandlake.ca); Troy McHarg (info@milton.ca); Ulli Watkiss 
(accesstoronto@toronto.ca); Valerie Critchley (clerks@city.windsor.on.ca); Valerie 
Obarymskyj (hiltontownship@xplornet.com); Valerie Przybilla 
(clerksoffice@centrehastings.com); Valrie Hummel (woolwich.mail@woolwich.ca); 
Vanessa Latimer (vanessa@townshipleeds.on.ca); Veronique Dion 
(comments@townsrf.ca); Vicki Kimmett (general@brighton.ca); Vicki Tytaneck 
(townclerk@oakville.ca); Victoria Goertzen-Cooke (plumtwsp@onlink.net); W. Robert 
MacLean (townthess@bellnet.ca); Wanda Kabel (info@snnf.ca); Wayne Miller 
(info@pelee.ca); Wayne Orr (admin@southfrontenac.net); Wendy Whitwell 
(info@armourtownship.ca); Will Moore (office@chatsworth.ca); William Jaques 
(ezt@ezt.ca); William Kolasa (generalinquiries@lincoln.ca); William Lebow 
(clerk@madoc.ca); William White (minto@town.minto.on.ca); Yvonne Aubichon 
(info@springwater.ca); Yvonne Robert (yrobert@elizabethtown-kitley.on.ca)

Cc: Amber McDonald
Subject: Hydro Costs for Rural Areas - Resolution
Attachments: Hydro Costs for Rural Areas.pdf

Hi everyone, 
Please find attached our resolution for the Hydro Bill costs for Rural Areas. 
Thanks, 
 
Jessica Gunby, Dipl.M.A., ACST 
Clerk (A) 
                                                                                                                                       
TOWNSHIP OF GEORGIAN BAY 
99 Lone Pine Road, Port Severn, ON L0K 1S0 
T. 705.538.2337 ext. 242 Toll Free 1.800.567.0187 
F. 705.538.1850 
www.gbtownship.ca 
 

 
 
Individuals who make written submissions with respect to a Planning Act application should be 
aware that their submission and any personal information in their correspondence will become 
part of the public record and made available to the Applicant, Committee and Council. 
 





1

Nina Lecic

From: Rail Safety Improvement Program 2 / Programme d’amélioration de sécurité ferroviaire 
2 (TC) <TC.RSIPEA-PASFES.TC@tc.gc.ca>

Sent: November-14-16 1:23 PM
Subject: NEW - Rail Safety Improvement Program (RSIP)/NOUVEAU - Programme 

d'amélioration de la sécurité ferroviaire (PASF)
Attachments: RSIP E&A component Information Brochure.pdf; PASF volet É&S brochure 

d'information.pdf

The Rail Safety Improvement Program (RSIP) is a program to improve rail safety and increase public confidence in Canada’s rail 
transportation system.  RSIP provides funding to improve rail safety and reduce injuries and fatalities related to rail transportation. 
The program funds:  

 safety improvements to existing rail lines  

 closures of grade crossings  

 initiatives to raise awareness about rail safety issues across Canada  

The program will provide funding towards two key components: 

1. Infrastructure, Technology and Research (ITR)  

  
Funding available ‐ $55 Million 
Deadline for applications:  December 23, 2016 
  

2. Public Education and Awareness (E&A)  

  
Funding available ‐ $2.4 Million 
Deadline for applications:  January 31, 2017 
  
The Public Education and Awareness Component will provide funding to regional, municipal and local communities where there is a 
higher need for awareness and education and to work with organizations to address the specific issues in those areas of concern. 
  
To know more specifically about the RSIP E&A component, please visit our website at www.canada.ca/rsip .  For quick reference, 
please find attached an Information brochure about the program.  If you any questions or wish to apply, please contact us 
at:  TC.RSIPEA‐PASFES.TC@tc.gc.ca . 
  
Le programme d’amélioration de la sécurité ferroviaire (PASF) est un programme pour améliorer la sécurité ferroviaire et accroître 
la confiance du public dans le système de transport ferroviaire au Canada.  Le PASF fournit du financement pour améliorer la 
sécurité ferroviaire et réduire les blessures et décès liés au transport ferroviaire.  Le financement du Programme vise : 

 à améliorer la sécurité de lignes ferroviaires existantes 

 les fermetures de passages à niveau 

 les initiatives de sensibilisation sur les questions de sécurité ferroviaire à l’échelle du Canada 

Le PASF comprend deux volets principaux : 

1. Infrastructure, technologie et recherche (ITR) 



2

  
Financement disponible ‐ 55 $ million 
Date limite pour les demandes:  23 décembre 2016 
  

2. Éducation et de sensibilisation (É&S) 

  
Financement disponible – 2.4 $ million 
Date limite pour les demandes:  31 janvier 2017  
  

Le volet d’éducation et de sensibilisation fournira du financement aux collectivités régionales, municipales et locales ou il y a un plus 
grand besoin de sensibilisation et d’éducation, et travaillera avec des organismes pour répondre aux besoins régionaux. 

Pour en savoir davantage sur le PASF É&S, veuillez visiter notre site Web au www.canada.ca/pasf .  Pour obtenir un aperçu, veuillez 
trouver ci‐joint une brochure d’information sur le programme.  Si vous avez des questions ou vous voulez soumettre une demande, 
veuillez nous contacter au TC.RSIPEA‐PASFES.TC@tc.gc.ca . 
  

  



 

 
 

Rail Safety Improvement Program 
Public Education and Awareness  

 
What is the Rail Safety Improvement Program? 
 
The Rail Safety Improvement Program (RSIP) is a program to improve rail safety and increase public confidence in 
Canada’s rail transportation system.  The program aligns to the Department’s strategic outcome to provide for a safe 
transportation system. Through investment in infrastructure and technologies along with education and awareness 
initiatives, the program will contribute to the reduction of injuries and fatalities as well as increase public confidence of 
railways in communities.  

The RSIP provides grant and contribution funding to improve rail safety and reduce injuries and fatalities related to rail 
transportation. The program will provide funding towards two components: 

1. Infrastructure, Technology and Research (ITR) 
2. Public Education and Awareness (E&A) 

 
RSIP’s Public Education and Awareness component will provide funding to projects that: 

• enhance awareness of grade crossing and trespassing hazards; 
• promote safe practices at road/railway grade crossings and on railway property; 
• conduct research studies for rail safety improvement; and  
• help reduce deaths, injuries and accidents around road/railway crossings in Canada. 

 
What is the Public Education and Awareness component? 
 
The E&A component will provide funding towards two key elements, a National Public Information and Education 
Program, and a Regional and Municipal Education and Awareness Program for high risk areas. 

National Public Information and Education Program 

Building on the existing and current initiative, this element will fund Operation Lifesaver Canada which will continue 
implementing a national program that will continue to raise awareness and education across Canada. 

Regional and Municipal Education and Awareness Program for high risk areas 

This element will leverage contributions from regional and local communities where there is a higher need for awareness 
and education and to work with organizations to address the specific issues in those areas of concern. 
 
Who is eligible for funding? 
 
The following groups are eligible for funding: 
 

• Provinces, territories, municipalities, local and regional governments 
• Road and transit authorities 
• Crown corporation (including VIA Rail) 
• For-profit organizations (e.g. railway operators, railway owners) 
• Not-for-profit non-government organizations (NGOs) 
• Indigenous groups 
• Individuals 

http://www.tc.gc.ca/eng/rail-safety-improvement-program.html
http://www.tc.gc.ca/eng/apply-rail-safety-improvement-program-infrastructure-technology-research-component-funding.html
http://www.tc.gc.ca/eng/apply-rail-safety-improvement-program-infrastructure-technology-research-component-funding.html
http://www.tc.gc.ca/eng/apply-rail-safety-improvement-program-education-awareness-component-funding.html


 

 
 
 
What can be reimbursed? 
 
The program will reimburse recipients up to 50% of eligible expenditures incurred for a project. 
 
Applicants may be reimbursed for the following expenditures: 

 
• Staff wages & benefits, professional fees, public outreach and communication materials, travel costs, room 

rentals, facility costs, conference fees and administrative costs. 

Note:  The RSIP does NOT provide advance funding, and applicants must show they have enough up-front funding to carry 
out the proposed project. 
 
What activities are eligible for funding under the RSIP’s Education and Awareness component? 
 
Eligible activities include: 

• outreach initiatives, promotional awareness and public campaigns related to rail safety; 
• public service announcements, social media, websites and other communications activity related to rail safety; 
• production and distribution of rail safety education and awareness materials to promote rails safety; and 
• research, studies and analysis to a better understanding of behavior, attitudes and the impact of rail safety issues. 

 
When to apply? 
 
Applicants wanting to apply for funding must send in their application no later than January 31, 2017. 
 
How to apply for funding? 
 
The RSIP Applicant’s Guide provides a detailed description of how to apply for funding. In general, the following 
information will be required to support eligibility assessment and for the selection process: 
 

• project proposal using the template that is provided; 
• budget estimates for the project using the budget template provide; 
• project proposal meets the Eligibility Assessment Criteria; and 
• project proposal clearly indicates it meets the Merit Selection Criteria.  
 

For more information, please contact: 
 
Rail Safety Improvement Program, Education and Awareness Component 
Transport Canada 
330 Sparks Street, Place de Ville – Tower C (AHEC) 
Ottawa, ON   K1A 0N5 
 
E-mail: Tc.rsipea-pasfes.tc@tc.gc.ca 

To obtain the Rail Safety Improvement Program Applicant’s Guide and Application templates, please refer to the Rail 
Safety Improvement Program website. 

http://www.tc.gc.ca/eng/apply-rail-safety-improvement-program-education-awareness-component-funding.html
http://www.tc.gc.ca/eng/rail-safety-improvement-program-public-education-awareness-component-applicant-guide.html
mailto:Tc.rsipea-pasfes.tc@tc.gc.ca
http://www.tc.gc.ca/eng/rail-safety-improvement-program.html
http://www.tc.gc.ca/eng/rail-safety-improvement-program.html




ADMINISTRATION OFFICE
1800 Main Street, P.O. Box 70
GERALDTON, ON P0T 1M0

P: 807-854-1100  F: 807-854-1947
E: administration@greenstone.ca

www.greenstone.ca
GREENSTONE

“Gateway to the Ring of Fire” TM

November 18, 2016 

The Honourable Kathleen Wynne 
Premier of Ontario 
Toronto, ON M7A 1A1 

Re:  Resolution Regarding Access and Delivery of Hydro 

Honourable Madam: 

Please be advised that Council of the Municipality of Greenstone passed the following resolution 
at its meeting held November 14, 2016: 

Resolution 16-234 

Moved by:  Councillor Blanchard 
Seconded by:  Councillor McPherson 

WHEREAS there is inequity between the cost of hydro for rural residents as compared to urban 
residents due to higher distribution charges; 

AND WHEREAS this practice targets and negatively affects rural residents, especially those 
who are already unable to pay for the high cost of hydro; 

NOW THEREFORE BE lT RESOLVED THAT the Municipality of Greenstone request the 
Province to re-evaluate the structure of hydro in terms of access and delivery and implement 
structural changes to address the unfair practice of charging more for delivery for rural residents; 

AND THAT this resolution be circulated to all municipalities in the Province of Ontario as well 
as Ontario Small Urban Municipalities (OSUM) and Association of Municipalities of Ontario 
(AMO). 

CARRIED. 



ADMINISTRATION OFFICE
1800 Main Street, P.O. Box 70
GERALDTON, ON P0T 1M0

P: 807-854-1100  F: 807-854-1947
E: administration@greenstone.ca

www.greenstone.ca
GREENSTONE

“Gateway to the Ring of Fire” TM

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

The Municipality of Greenstone respectfully requests consideration of this resolution. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

 

Gabrielle Lecuyer, 
Clerk 
gabrielle.lecuyer@greenstone.ca 
www.greenstone.ca 
 
 
 
 
 
cc:  Glenn Thibeault, Minister of Energy by email:  gthibeault.mpp.co@liberal.ola.org 

       AMO  by email:  amo@amo.on.ca 

       OSUM by email:  lmccabe@goderich.ca 

       All Ontario Municipalities 

       Micheal Gravelle, MPP Thunder Bay Superior North:    mgravelle.mpp.co@liberal.ola.org  

       Mayor and Council        



COUNTY OF V/ELLINGTON
PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT

GARY A. COUSINS, M.C.I.P, DIRECTOR

T 519.837.2600

T 1.800.663.0750

F 51 9.823.1 694

ADMINISTRATION CENTRE

74 WOOLWICH STREET

GUELPHON N1H3T9

November 24,2016

Karen Landry, C.A.O./Clerk
ïownship of Puslinch
7404 Wellington Road 34 (Aberfoyle)
R. R. #3
Guelph, ON N1H 6Hg

Re:
Subject:
Owners:
Location:

Notice of Draft Approval
Draft Plan of Subdivision - File No. 23T-10004
DRS Developments Ltd.
Lots 48,49 and 50, SS Victoria Street Part of Lots l0 and 11, SS Queen Street;
Part of Victoria Street and Fisher Street; Colfas' Suruey, Registered Plan {35;
Part of Rear or NE Lot 31, Goncession 7, Township of Puslinch

Further to the October 28,2016 draft plan approval of subdivision 23T-10004, there have been no
appeals lodged on this draft approved plan.

Please inform me when the Owner/Applicant has met the conditions of approval with which you are
concerned. This is necessary before the final plan can be approved for registration.

Also required is a brief but complete statement explainíng how each condition with which you are
concerned has been satisfied.

As noted in Gondition No. 40, there is a lapsing provision as permitted pursuant to Section
5f (32) of the Planning Act being October 29. 2021. The approval may be extended pursuant to
Section 51(33) of the Planning Act, but no extension can be granted once the approval has lapsed

Yours

Gary A.
Director

, RPP, MC]P
lanning and Development

cc- R. Stovel, Stovel & Associates lnc
Aldo Salis - Manager Development Planning
Mark Paoli- Manager Policy Planner

RECEIVED
Nov 2 I 20t6

Township of Puslinch



1

Nina Lecic

From: Zymerman, Art <Art.Zymerman@nbpcd.com>
Sent: November-16-16 2:33 PM
To: Nina Lecic
Subject: Reguest for time to present  to council
Attachments: Delegate_Request.pdf

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Flagged

Nina attached please find our request to attend the meeting on Dec the 7th for council.
This request is for the PLCA for a grant of $25,000 towards the lake restoration.
Please let me know if there is anything else you require.
Thank you very much.

Art Zymerman
Assistant Branch Manager Waterloo South
20 Erb St West,4th floor,Marsland Center
Waterloo,Ontario
N2L 1T2
Art.zymerman@nbpcd.com
Cell 519 221 5768

http://www.bmo.com/nesbittburns/popups/about us/disclaimers
BMO Nesbitt Burns Inc (BMO NBI) provides this commentary to clients for informational purposes only. The information contained herein is based on sources that we believe 
to be reliable, but is not guaranteed by us, may be incomplete or may change without notice. The comments included in this document are general in nature, and professional 
advice regarding an individual’s particular position should be obtained. BMO NBI. is a subsidiary of Bank of Montreal and Member-Canadian Investor Protection Fund. “BMO 
(M-bar Roundel symbol)” is a registered trademark of Bank of Montreal, used under licence. “Nesbitt Burns” is a registered trademark of BMO NBI, used under licence. 

This e-mail incl. attachments may contain confidential & privileged information. If you are not the intended recipient, notify the sender immediately by return e-mail, 
delete this e-mail and destroy any copies. Any dissemination or use of this information by a person other than the intended recipient is unauthorized and may be 
illegal. Unless otherwise stated, opinions expressed in this e-mail are those of the author and are not endorsed by the author's employer. We cannot accept 
trading instructions via Email. 

To unsubscribe and no longer receive any or all email communications from us, please visit https://www.bmo.com/subscription-centre or contact us at one of the 
following: 1 877-CALL-BMO, feedback@bmo.com or CASL Central Team, 7th floor - 55 Bloor St West, Toronto, ON, M4W 3N5, Canada. 

Le présent message, ainsi que tout fichier qui y est joint, est envoyé à l'intention exclusive de son ou de ses destinataires; il est de nature confidentielle et peut 
constituer une information privilégiée. Nous avertissons toute personne autre que le destinataire prévu que tout examen, réacheminement, impression, copie, 
distribution ou autre utilisation de ce message et de tout fichier qui y est joint est strictement interdit. Si vous n'êtes pas le destinataire prévu, veuillez en aviser 
immédiatement l'expéditeur par retour de courriel et supprimer ce message et tout document joint de votre système. Sauf indication contraire, les opinions 
exprimées dans le présent message sont celles de l’auteur et ne sont pas avalisées par l’employeur de l’auteur. Nous ne pouvons accepter aucune instruction de 
négociation par courriel. 

Pour vous désabonner et ne plus recevoir aucune communication par courriel de notre part (ou en recevoir seulement certaines), veuillez visiter 
https://www.bmo.com/abonnement ou communiquer avec nous par un des moyens suivants : 1 800 225-5266, remarque@bmo.com ou Équipe centralisée LCAP, 
7th floor, 55 Bloor St West, Toronto, ON, M4W 3N5, Canada.



Township of Puslinch
7404 Wellington Road 34

Guelph, ON, N1H 6H9 
T: (519) 763 – 1226
F: (519) 763 – 5846

www.puslinch.ca

Delegate

Date:

Applicant Name:

Mailing Address:

Email Address: 

hone Number: 

Purpose of delegation (state position taken on issue, if applicable):

1 

Dec 7th 2016

Art Zymerman
28 Lakeside Dr Puslinch Ont N0b2J0
azymerman@outlook.com
519 221 5768

Reguest for a grant from council for $25,000 in support of the restoration of Puslinch
lake project.



I am submitting a formal presentation to accompany my delegation:

Yes: No:

I will require the following audio-visual :

PowerPoint:

Note: elegations are .

Personal Information collected on this form is collected under the authority of the 
Municipal Act and will be used only for the purposes of sending correspondence 
relating to matters before Council and for creating a record that is available to the 
general public in a hard copy format and on the internet in an electronic format in 
accordance with the Municipal Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy 
Act. Questions regarding the collection of this information may be directed to the 
Township Clerk’s office. 

The Township of Puslinch is committed to providing accessible formats and 
communication supports for people with a disability. If another format would 
work better for you, please contact the Township Clerk’s office for assistance.  

2 

✔

✔



   
 
 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION 
MUNICIPAL COUNCIL 

THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
     

  2016-     
 

Date: December 7, 2016 
 
Moved by:  ______________________   Seconded by: ________________________ 
 

RECORDED VOTE YES NO CONFLICT ABSENT     
Councillor Bulmer         
Councillor Roth         
Mayor Lever      MAYOR: ____________________________ 
Councillor Sepulis         
Councillor Fielding         
TOTAL       CARRIED LOST 

 

 
 
That Council does hereby authorize the applications for Cancellation, Reduction or 
Refund of Taxes chapter 25, section 357 or 358 of the Municipal Act, 2001 as follows:  
  
 
 

 
 
 
 

Year Application # Roll # Write Off Amount 
2015 06/16 5-17300 $ 1,451.75 
2015 13/16 6-06300 $    181.31 
2015 08/16 A 3-16800 $      10.13 
2015 08/16 B 3-16800 $        9.94 
2015 08/16 C 3-16800 $        1.81 
2016 08/16 A2 3-16800 $      21.12 
2016 08/16 B2 3-16800 $      21.12 
2016 08/16 C2 3-16800 $      10.55 
2016 07/16 A 3-16800 $      22.86 
2016 07/16 C 3-16800 $      14.13 
2016 07/16 B 3-16800 $        6.95 



REPORT FIN-2016-029 

TO: Mayor and Members of Council 

FROM: Mary Hasan, Director of Finance/Treasurer 

MEETING DATE: December 7, 2016 

SUBJECT: 2017 User Fees and Charges By-law  
File No. C01 FEE 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

That Report FIN-2016-029 regarding the 2017 User Fees and Charges By-law be 
received; and  

That the Township adopt a policy to provide an 80 percent refund where 30 days’ notice 
of cancellation is given for Puslinch Community Centre rentals; and 

That Council enact a by-law to adopt the User Fees and Charges By-law in accordance 
with the By-law attached as Schedule A to this Report.  

DISCUSSION 

Purpose  

The purpose of this report is to: 

1. Report on the results of the Public Meeting held on September 8, 2016 for the
Proposed 2017 User Fees and Charges By-law; and

2. Provide updates to the User Fees and Charges By-law based on further
information received after the Public Meeting; and

3. Seek approval from Council to enact the 2017 User Fees and Charges By-law.

Background 

A public meeting was held on September 8, 2016 at 7:00 pm at the Municipal Complex 
to obtain public input on the proposed User Fees and Charges By-law.  

1



There were no comments raised at the public meeting regarding suggested updates to 
the by-law. 

Updates to Proposed By-law 

Recreation Committee Recommendations 

The Recreation Committee received the user fees and charges schedules for Parks and 
Recreation for information at its meeting held on September 20, 2016. The Recreation 
Committee recommended the following: 

 The gym rental fee be increased to $30.00 per hour if free ice time hours are
increased; or

 The gym rental fee be increased to $27.00 per hour if free ice time hours are not
increased; and

 That all Parks and Recreation rental fees be increased in accordance with the
Consumer Price Index rate.

ORC Pad Committee Recommendations  

The ORC Pad Committee recommended through Report REC-2016-010 that the 2017 
User Fees and Charges By-law decrease the non-prime rate for ice from $78.00 per 
hour to $55.00 per hour exclusive of taxes. This was carried by Council through 
Resolution No. 2016-353  

Staff Recommendations 

The following are staff recommendations which have been incorporated in the proposed 
By-law attached as Schedule A to this report.  

 Gym rental fee increased from $26.00 per hour to $30.00 per hour (exclusive of
HST) due to the increase in free ice time hours.

 Increase in all Parks and Recreation rental fees by the 2017 projected Consumer
Price Index inflation rate of 2.0% based on the Ontario Ministry of Finance1.

 Non-prime rate for ice decreased from $78.00 per hour to $55.00 per hour
(exclusive of HST) in order to increase the utilization of the ice during non-prime
hours.

 Addition of a Puslinch Community Centre (PCC) projector rental fee of $25 for
the use of the projection equipment at the PCC.

1 http://www.fin.gov.on.ca/en/budget/ontariobudgets/2016/ch3a.html 

2



In addition to the above recommended changes, Township staff obtained information 
from the comparator municipalities regarding the deposit structure for facility bookings. 
This information is summarized below: 

 Cambridge
o Banquet halls - Collection of a 50 percent deposit with the balance due

two weeks prior to the event.
o Meeting rooms – Deposits are not collected. Full payment is required 14

days prior to booking.

 Centre Wellington
o Deposits ranging from $150.00 to $1,000.00 depending on the size of the

event (ie. Small, medium, and large events).
o Deposits collected at the time of booking with the remainder of the rental

fee due 21 days prior to the event.

 Erin
o Rentals under $400.00 are paid in full at the time of booking. 2 weeks’

notice is required for a full refund.
o Rentals greater than $400.00 require a deposit of $100.00 at the time of

booking with the remainder of the payment due prior to the event.

 Guelph

o Deposits are not collected. Full payment is required for a contract to be
finalized.

 Guelph/Eramosa
o Deposits are not collected. Full payment is required for a contract to be

finalized.  No refunds for bookings at the Royal Distributing Athletic
Performance Centre (RDAPC). Refund policy lenient on hall bookings.

 Hamilton
o Deposits are not collected. Full payment is required for a contract to be

finalized.  14 days’ notice is required for a full refund on a smaller event.
30 days’ notice is required for a full refund on a larger event.

 Mapleton
o Collection of a 50 percent deposit at the time of booking

3



 Milton
o Deposits are not collected. Full payment is required for a contract to be

finalized. 14 days’ notice is required for an 80 percent refund.

 Minto
o For hall rentals, $100.00 is collected in advance to hold the date and

space. If the renter honours the terms of the facility rental agreement, this
deposit is applied as a credit against their invoice after the event.

 Wellington North
o Collection of a 50 percent deposit at the time of booking with the balance

due two weeks prior to the event.

For the PCC, the Township currently collects a deposit amounting to 50 percent of the 
total contract fee. The deposit is non-refundable and forfeited unless notice of 
cancellation is received 60 days prior to the event with the balance of the rental due 15 
days prior to the event. For the Optimist Recreation Centre, the renter pays the full 
amount of the rental fee upon finalization of the contract. 

The current administrative process to collect a 50 percent deposit with the remaining 
balance of the rental due 15 days prior to the event is not efficient. A policy to return a 
percentage of the rental fee upon cancellation of the rental within a prescribed period of 
time will facilitate more effective utilization of staff resources.  

It is recommended that the Township remove the 50 percent deposit requirement for 
facility bookings and require full payment at the time of booking. It is also recommended 
that the cancellation policy be amended to require 30 days’ notice for an 80% refund.  

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

The fees in the attached by-law are incorporated in the 2017 Operating Budget.  

APPLICABLE LEGISLATION AND REQUIREMENTS  

Section 391(1) of the Municipal Act, 2001 

Section 7(1) of the Building Code Act, 1992  

Section 69 of the Planning Act, R.S.O. 1990 

ATTACHMENTS 

Schedule A – Proposed User Fees and Charges By-law  

4



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 

BY-LAW NO   XXX/16 

A by-law to permit the Municipality to impose 
fees or charges with respect to services or 
activities provided, related costs payable, and 
for the use of its property. 

WHEREAS Section 391(1) of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c. 25, as amended, a 
municipality may pass By-laws imposing fees or charges for services or activities 
provided or done by or on behalf of it, for costs payable by it for services or activities 
provided or done by or on behalf of any other municipality or any local board, and for 
the use of its property including property under its control; and 

WHEREAS Section 7(1) of the Building Code Act, 1992, S.O. 1992, c. 23, as amended, 
provides that a municipality may pass By-laws imposing fees and charges; and 

WHEREAS Section 69 of the Planning Act, R.S.O. 1990, c.P.13, as amended provides 
that the Council of a municipality may by By-law establish a tariff of fees for the 
processing of applications made in respect of planning matters; and 

WHEREAS The Council of the Corporation of the Township of Puslinch deems it 
appropriate to update the Township’s User Fees and Charges By-law.  

NOW THEREFORE the Council of the Corporation of the Township of Puslinch enacts 
as follows: 

1. For the purpose of this by-law:

a.) “Costs” means any and all disbursements incurred by the municipality, and 
includes, but is not restricted to, any registration costs, title search costs, 
corporate search costs, survey costs, reference plan costs, advertising costs, 
outside counsel fees, paralegal fees, site inspection costs and any applicable  
taxes including P.S.T. and H.S.T.;  

b.) “Property Owner” includes the registered owner of property or any person, firm 
or corporation having control over or possession of the property or any portion 
thereof, including a property manager, mortgagee in possession, receiver and 
manager, trustee and trustee in bankruptcy; 

c.) “Township” means the Corporation of the Township of Puslinch. 

2. Any person requesting, applying or utilizing the services or approvals listed in the
attached schedules and forming part of this by-law shall pay the fees listed for
that service or approval as set out in the attached schedules.

3. These fees are applicable to residents and non-residents at the rates noted
unless there is a specified exemption in the attached schedules.

4. No request by any person for a service or approval listed in the attached
schedules shall be acknowledged or performed by the Township unless and until
the person requesting the service or approval has paid the fee or charge for the
service or approval as set out in the attached schedules, unless noted otherwise.

5. A refund of 80 percent will be provided where 30 days’ notice of cancellation is
given for Puslinch Community Centre rentals.

6. All Township accounts and invoices are due and payable when rendered.

Schedule A to Report FIN-2016-029

5



 

 

 
 

7. All unpaid fees or charges imposed by this By-law on a person constitute 
a debt of the person to the municipality. 

 
8. The Treasurer shall add the fees and charges imposed pursuant to this by-law to 

the tax roll for any real property in the Township for which all of the property 
owners are responsible for paying fees and charges under this by-law and collect 
them in the same manner as municipal taxes in accordance with Section 398 of 
the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c. 25 as amended.  
 

9. If peer or legal review costs are incurred by the Township in the processing of a 
planning application by the Township, the applicant is required to pay these costs 
to the Township. 
 

10. The Township is not obligated to further process a planning application until all 
outstanding third party fees and other disbursements have been paid by the 
applicant. 
 

11. The fees and charges listed in the schedules to this by-law shall, where 
applicable, be subject to any applicable provincial and federal taxes. 
 

12. Any fee or charge: 
 

a. authorized by a by-law that comes into effect on the same or a later date 
than this By-law; or 
 

b. included in a valid agreement entered into by the Township and one or 
more other parties, 

 
shall be the approved and imposed fee or charge for the service, activity or use 
of property specified. 
 

13. The payment of any fee or charge in this By-law shall be in Canadian currency.  
 

14. The following Schedules form part of this By-law: 
 
 
 

Schedule Department 
A Administration  
B Finance  
C Corporate 
D Public Works  
E Fire and Rescue Services 
F Building  
G Planning and Development 
H By-law 
I Parks  
J Optimist Recreation Centre  
K Puslinch Community Centre 

 
 
 

15. The rates and service charges, as outlined in the schedules attached hereto and 
forming part of this by-law, shall be implemented and take effect on January 1, 
2017. 

 

16. Should any part of this By-law including any part of the schedules, be determined 
by a Court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid or of no force and effect, such 
invalid part of the By-law shall be severable and that the remainder of this By-law 
including the remainder of the Schedules, as applicable, shall continue to operate 
and to be in force and effect.  
 

Schedule A to Report FIN-2016-029

6



17. This by-law shall be known as the “User Fees and Charges By-law”.

18. That By-law No. 019/16 is hereby repealed.

READ A FIRST, SECOND AND THIRD TIME AND FINALLY PASSED THIS 21st DAY 
OF DECEMBER, 2016.      

_____________________________________ 
  Dennis Lever, Mayor 

_____________________________________ 
Karen Landry, CAO/Clerk 

Schedule A to Report FIN-2016-029

7



SCHEDULE A: ADMINISTRATION REVIEW OF MUNICIPAL RATES AND SERVICE CHARGES
EFFECTIVE 2017

TYPE OF 
REVENUE/USER Unit/Descr  2015 RATE 

(NO TAX) 
 2016 RATE 
(NO TAX) 

 2017 RATE 
(NO TAX) 

 13% 
HST 

 RATE 
INCL HST 

% 
CHANGE

HST 
STATUS COMMENTS

Freedom of Information  Charged at the rate permitted per the legislation. E  Regulated by Statute 

Investigator Fees Flat Fee $175.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A T Removal of fee recommended - See Report FIN-2015-029
Investigator Fees Flat Fee $350.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A T Removal of fee recommended - See Report FIN-2015-029

Signature of 
Commissioner

Per 
Document $10.00 $10.00 $10.00 $1.30 $11.30 0% T

Schedule A to Report FIN-2016-029

8



SCHEDULE B: FINANCE REVIEW OF MUNICIPAL RATES AND SERVICE CHARGES
EFFECTIVE 2017

TYPE OF 
REVENUE/USER Unit/Descr  2015 RATE 

(NO TAX) 
 2016 RATE 
(NO TAX) 

 2017 RATE 
(NO TAX) 

13% 
HST

RATE INCL 
HST

% 
CHANGE

HST 
STATUS COMMENTS

Administration Fee Per Invoice $25.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 N/A T Removal of fee recommended - See Report 
FIN-2015-029

NSF Cheque Per NSF $40.00 $40.00 $40.00 $0.00 $40.00 0% E

Tax Certificate Per Certificate $60.00 $60.00 $60.00 $0.00 $60.00 0% E

Tax Sale Charges Actual costs incurred N/A T  Cost recovery of fees and disbursements as 
charged by consultants and solicitors 

Schedule A to Report FIN-2016-029

9



SCHEDULE C: CORPORATE REVIEW OF MUNICIPAL RATES AND SERVICE CHARGES
EFFECTIVE 2017

TYPE OF 
REVENUE/USER Unit/Descr  2015 RATE 

(NO TAX) 
 2016 RATE 
(NO TAX) 

 2017 RATE 
(NO TAX) 

13% 
HST

RATE INCL 
HST

% 
CHANGE

HST 
STATUS COMMENTS

Canadian Flag Per Flag $22.12 $22.12 $22.12 $2.88 $25.00 0% T

Photocopy Per Page $0.25 $0.25 $0.25 $0.03 $0.28 0% T Photocopy costs for community groups and 
neighbourhood associations are exempt

Township Flag Per Flag $44.25 $44.25 $44.25 $5.75 $50.00 0% T

Schedule A to Report FIN-2016-029

10



SCHEDULE D: PUBLIC WORKS REVIEW OF MUNICIPAL RATES AND SERVICE CHARGES
EFFECTIVE 2017

TYPE OF 
REVENUE/USER Unit/Descr  2015 RATE 

(NO TAX) 
 2016 RATE 
(NO TAX) 

 2017 RATE 
(NO TAX) 

13% 
HST

RATE 
INCL HST

 % 
CHANGE 

HST 
STATUS COMMENTS

Entrance Permit Flat Fee  $       225.00  $       230.00  $       230.00 -$   $     230.00 0% E

Oversize-Overweight 
Load Permits Annual Fee  $       400.00  $       400.00  $       400.00 -$   $     400.00 0% E

Oversize-Overweight 
Load Permits Per Trip  $       100.00  $       100.00  $       100.00 -$   $     100.00 0% E

Tender Fees Per Package  $         40.00  $         40.00  $         40.00 -$   $       40.00 0% E
Tender fees applicable for Public 

Works projects administered by the 
Township's engineering consultant

Third Party Cost 
Recovery Actual costs incurred + $100.00 administration fee T Material, equipment, labour/benefits, 

and administration costs

Schedule A to Report FIN-2016-029

11



SCHEDULE E: FIRE AND RESCUE SERVICES REVIEW OF MUNICIPAL RATES AND SERVICE CHARGES
EFFECTIVE 2017

TYPE OF REVENUE/USER Unit/Descr  2015 RATE 
(NO TAX) 

 2016 RATE 
(NO TAX) 

 2017 RATE 
(NO TAX) 

13% 
HST

RATE 
INCL HST

% 
CHANGE

HST 
STATUS COMMENTS

Boarding or Barricading Plus 
Materials Per Hour Per Truck $410.00 $450.00 $450.00 $0.00 $450.00 0% E Fee is in accordance with the Standard MTO Rate

Burning Permit Violations or 
Unauthorized Open Air Burning Per Hour Per Truck $410.00 $450.00 $450.00 $0.00 $450.00 0% E

Emergency responses to illegal burning or burning without 
a permit
Fee is in accordance with the Standard MTO Rate

Daycare & Homeday Care 
Inspections Per Inspection $100.00 $100.00 $100.00 $13.00 $113.00 0% T As mandated in the Fire Code

Emergency Responses to Motor 
Vehicle 

Occurrence/Incident/Collision
Per Hour Per Truck $410.00 $450.00 $450.00 $0.00 $450.00 0% E

Township residents are exempt from payment of fee for 
emergency responses where emergency occurs on a 
Township of Puslinch or County of Wellington Road
Fee is in accordance with the Standard MTO Rate

Fire Alarm False Alarm Calls Per Hour Per Truck $410.00 $450.00 $450.00 $0.00 $450.00 0% E

A false alarm call after the second false alarm in any 
calendar year
Fee is in accordance with the Standard MTO Rate

Fire Extinguisher Training Per Person $15.00 $15.00 $15.00 $1.95 $16.95 0% T
Fire Safety Plan Review Per Plan $120.00 $120.00 $120.00 $15.60 $135.60 0% T

Industrial/Commercial/Institutio
nal/Assembly/Apartment Base Inspection $100.00 $100.00 $100.00 $13.00 $113.00 0% T Any inspections completed by the fire department that are 

new, complaint driven, requested or mandated

Industrial/Commercial/Institutio
nal/Assembly/Apartment

Plus each 
tenant/occupant/ 
apartment unit

$25.00 $25.00 $25.00 $3.25 $28.25 0% T
Any inspections completed by the fire department that are 
new, complaint driven, requested or mandated

Information or Fire Reports 
Regarding Emergency Incidents Per Report $75.00 $75.00 $75.00 $0.00 $75.00 0% E

Key Boxes Per Box $100.00 $100.00 $100.00 $13.00 $113.00 0% T For rapid entry for firefighters
Occupancy Load Flat Fee $100.00 $100.00 $100.00 $0.00 $100.00 0% E

Open Air Burning Permit 
Inspection Fee Per Inspection $40.00 $40.00 $40.00 $5.20 $45.20 0% T As a result of a request to modify the terms and conditions 

of the Open Air Burning Permit
Open Air Burning Permit Per Permit $20.00 $20.00 $20.00 $0.00 $20.00 0% E Permit must be renewed annually

Post Fire Watch Per Hour per Truck $410.00 $450.00 $450.00 $0.00 $450.00 0% E Fee is in accordance with the Standard MTO Rate
Replacement of Equipment and 

Resources Used Actual costs incurred 0% T  Materials used in emergency responses 

Sale of Fireworks Permit Per Permit $100.00 $100.00 $100.00 $0.00 $100.00 0% E

Schedule A to Report FIN-2016-029

12



SCHEDULE E: FIRE AND RESCUE SERVICES REVIEW OF MUNICIPAL RATES AND SERVICE CHARGES
EFFECTIVE 2017

TYPE OF REVENUE/USER Unit/Descr  2015 RATE 
(NO TAX) 

 2016 RATE 
(NO TAX) 

 2017 RATE 
(NO TAX) 

13% 
HST

RATE 
INCL HST

% 
CHANGE

HST 
STATUS COMMENTS

Setting Off or Discharge of High 
Hazard Fireworks Permit Per Permit $100.00 $100.00 $100.00 $0.00 $100.00 0% E

Water Tank Locks Per Lock $0.00 $17.80 $17.80 $2.31 $20.11 0% T For locking water tank lids closed
Smoke Alarm No fee at this time

Special Events - Requests for 
Attendance No fee at this time

Schedule A to Report FIN-2016-029

13



SCHEDULE F: BUILDING REVIEW OF MUNICIPAL RATES AND SERVICE CHARGES
EFFECTIVE 2017

TYPE OF REVENUE/USER Unit/Descr  2015 RATE 
(NO TAX) 

 2016 RATE 
(NO TAX) 

 2017 RATE 
(NO TAX) 

 13% 
HST 

 RATE 
INCL HST 

% 
CHANGE

HST 
STATUS COMMENTS

Minimum Permit Fee (For all work unless 
otherwise noted)

Minimum Permit 
Fee $150.00 $153.00 $156.00 $0.00 $156.00 2.0% E

Minimum Permit Fee - Farm Buildings Minimum Permit 
Fee $0.00 $300.00 $306.00 $0.00 $306.00 2.0% E

CONSTRUCTION - NEW BUILDINGS & ADDITIONS - AGRICULTURAL
Farm Buildings Per Sq. Foot $0.26 $0.27 $0.27 $0.00 $0.27 2.0% E Minimum Permit Fee of $306

CONSTRUCTION - NEW BUILDINGS & ADDITIONS - RESIDENTIAL
Prefabricated Homes Per Sq. Foot $1.40 $1.43 $1.46 $0.00 $1.46 2.0% E

Single Family Dwelling Per Sq. Foot $1.85 $1.89 $1.92 $0.00 $1.92 2.0% E
Interior Renovations and Finished 

Basements Per Sq. Foot $0.50 $0.51 $0.52 $0.00 $0.52 2.0% E

Residential Deck Flat Fee $150.00 $153.00 $156.00 $0.00 $156.00 2.0% E
Accessory Buildings/Attached Garage Per Sq. Foot $0.70 $0.71 $0.73 $0.00 $0.73 2.0% E

CONSTRUCTION - NEW BUILDINGS & ADDITIONS - INSTITUTIONAL, COMMERCIAL & INDUSTRIAL

Construction Value Up to $3,000,000
Per $1,000 of 
Construction 

Value
$10.00 $11.00 $11.00 $0.00 $11.00 0.0% E

Construction Value Over $3,000,000
Per $1,000 of 
Construction 

Value
$7.00 $7.14 $7.28 $0.00 $7.28 2.0% E

OTHER PERMIT FEES

Alternative Solution Application Flat Fee $350.00 N/A - See 
Below

Alternative Solution Application - Part 9 
Residential Buildings Flat Fee $0.00 $357.00 $364.00 $0.00 $364.00 2.0% E Fee to be applied to residential and accessory structures. 

Third party review likely not required.
Alternative Solution Application - Part 3 

and Part 9 Other than Residential 
Buildings

Flat Fee $0.00 $650.00 $663.00 $0.00 $663.00 2.0% E Fee includes third party review of applications as well as 
staff time for researching the proposal.

Sign Permits Flat Fee $0.00 $255.00 $260.00 $0.00 $260.00 2.0% E

Conditional Permits 20% of permit 
fee E Fee is in addition to all other required permit fees

Deferral of Revocation of Permit Flat Fee $150.00 $153.00 $156.00 $0.00 $156.00 2.0% E
Demolition Permit Flat Fee $150.00 $153.00 $156.00 $0.00 $156.00 2.0% E

Schedule A to Report FIN-2016-029

14



SCHEDULE F: BUILDING REVIEW OF MUNICIPAL RATES AND SERVICE CHARGES
EFFECTIVE 2017

TYPE OF REVENUE/USER Unit/Descr  2015 RATE 
(NO TAX) 

 2016 RATE 
(NO TAX) 

 2017 RATE 
(NO TAX) 

 13% 
HST 

 RATE 
INCL HST 

% 
CHANGE

HST 
STATUS COMMENTS

Designated Structure Permit Flat Fee $400.00 $408.00 $416.00 $0.00 $416.00 2.0% E  Listed per Div.A, 1.3.1.1 Solar installation
Occupancy Permit Flat Fee $150.00 $153.00 $156.00 $0.00 $156.00 2.0% E

Reactivate Permit Application Flat Fee $0.00 $0.00 $156.00 $0.00 $156.00 100.0% E For permit applications with no activity for 6 months
Reactivate Abandoned Permit Flat Fee $150.00 $153.00 $156.00 $0.00 $156.00 2.0% E For permits with no inspection in two previous years

Reproduction of Drawings Flat Fee $50.00 $50.00 $50.00 $6.50 $56.50 0.0% T Current rate covers costs
Revision to a Permit Flat Fee $150.00 $153.00 $156.00 $0.00 $156.00 2.0% E  Before Permit is issued
Revision to a Permit Flat Fee $300.00 $306.00 $312.00 $0.00 $312.00 2.0% E After Permit is issued

Septic System Flat Fee $600.00 $612.00 $624.00 $0.00 $624.00 2.0% E New system
Septic System Flat Fee $450.00 $459.00 $468.00 $0.00 $468.00 2.0% E Alter, Repair or extend existing system

Special Inspection Fee Flat Fee $100.00 $102.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 -100.0% T Removal of fee recommended - See Report FIN-2016-
020

Tent or Marquee Application Fee Flat Fee $250.00 $255.00 $260.00 $0.00 $260.00 2.0% E
Tents and air-supported structures shall be in 
conformance with the Building Code and Section 2.9 of 
the Fire Code

Transfer of Permit Flat Fee $150.00 $153.00 $156.00 $0.00 $156.00 2.0% E
Re-inspect works not ready Flat Fee $0.00 $153.00 $156.00 $0.00 $156.00 2.0% E Fee payable before re-inspection

Re-inspect code violations/deficiencies Flat Fee $0.00 $76.00 $156.00 $0.00 $156.00 105.3% E Fee payable before re-inspection and applies after first re-
inspection. 2017 rate covers costs.

Partial Inspection Flat Fee $0.00 $76.00 $78.00 $0.00 $78.00 2.0% E Fee payable before inspection for part of a prescribed 
inspection

Sewage System Evaluation Flat Fee $0.00 $153.00 $156.00 $0.00 $156.00 2.0% E Applies to the review of sewage system evaluations by 
the Building department.

Notes to Building

Note 1: Interpretations

(a) Floor area of the proposed work is to be measured to the outer face of exterior walls
(b) Unfinished basements and attached garages for new dwellings are not included in floor areas
(c) Unfinished loft space or bonus room to be included in area calculations

Note 2: Where the fees are based on the cost of valuation of the proposed work, such cost or valuation shall mean the total cost of all work regulated by the permit and without 
restricting the  generality of the foregoing, shall include the cost of all material, labour, equipment, overhead and professional and related services.

Note 3: Fees are to be rounded to the nearest dollar.

Note 4: The Chief Building Official may place a valuation on the cost of work and the permit applicant shall pay the prescribed fee(s) before issuing the permit.

Schedule A to Report FIN-2016-029

15



SCHEDULE G: PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT REVIEW OF MUNICIPAL RATES AND SERVICE CHARGES
EFFECTIVE 2017

TYPE OF REVENUE/USER Unit/Descr  2015 RATE 
(NO TAX) 

 2016 RATE 
(NO TAX) 

 2017 RATE 
(NO TAX) 

13% 
HST

RATE 
INCL HST

% 
CHANGE

HST 
STATUS COMMENTS

Grading Fee Flat Fee $2,000.00 $2,000.00 $2,000.00 $0.00 $2,000.00 0.0% E Applicable for new dwellings 
Minor Variance * Administration fee $650.00 $663.00 $676.00 $0.00 $676.00 2.0% E

Other Agreements * Administration fee $500.00 $500.00 $510.00 $0.00 $510.00 2.0% E

For recovery of the costs of facilitating, 
preparing, and discharging any other 
planning and development agreements (ie. 
consent) 

Part Lot Control Exemption 
By-law * Administration fee $550.00 $550.00 $561.00 $0.00 $561.00 2.0% E

Plan of Subdivision or 
Condominium Agreement * Administration fee $750.00 $750.00 $765.00 $0.00 $765.00 2.0% E

For recovery of the costs of facilitating, 
preparing, and discharging a Plan of 
Subdivision or Condominium Agreement

Site Plan Control * Administration fee $2,000.00 $2,040.00 $2,081.00 $0.00 $2,081.00 2.0% E Site Plan Approval Application
Zoning By-law - Copy Flat Fee $40.00 $40.00 $40.00 $5.20 $45.20 0.0% T

Zoning By-Law Amendment * Administration fee $2,000.00 N/A N/A N/A New Fee Structure - See below
Standard Zoning By-Law 

Amendment Flat Fee $0.00 $11,200.00 $11,200.00 $0.00 $11,200.00 0.0% E

Minor Zoning By-Law 
Amendment Flat Fee $0.00 $3,600.00 $3,600.00 $0.00 $3,600.00 0.0% E

Zoning By-Law Amendment - 
Aggregate * Administration fee $7,500.00 $15,000.00 $15,000.00 $0.00 $15,000.00 0.0% E

Compliance Letter Flat Fee $75.00 $75.00 $75.00 $0.00 $75.00 0.0% E Fee charged is consistent for all Township 
departments

Consent Review and Condition 
Clearances Flat Fee $0.00 $125.00 $128.00 $0.00 $128.00 2.0% E

Telecommunication Tower 
Proposals Flat Fee $0.00 $500.00 $510.00 $0.00 $510.00 2.0% E

Lifting of Holding Designation 
Fee (Zoning) Administration fee $0.00 $0.00 $561.00 $0.00 $561.00 100.0% E

Schedule A to Report FIN-2016-029

16



SCHEDULE G: PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT REVIEW OF MUNICIPAL RATES AND SERVICE CHARGES
EFFECTIVE 2017

Notes to Planning

* the fees denoted with an asterisk are also subject to the Township's disbursements and third party consultant fees incurred for the processing of the application.

A Standard Zoning By-law Amendment Application may include, but is not limited, to the following: 

         Change in zoning category; 
         Larger commercial/industrial/residential applications;
         A major change of use to an existing building or structure;
         Requirement of technical studies (ie. storm water management, geotechnical, hydrological, environmental impact assessment, etc.) 

Township staff have the discretion to determine whether a zoning by-law amendment application is classified as minor. 

A Minor Zoning By-law Amendment Application may include, but is not limited, to the following:
         The change in use is compatible with the current zoning designation and does not require the submission of any technical studies;
         Adding a low impact use to an existing zone;
         Temporary use;
         Low impact zone changes involving single or semi-detached dwellings;
         No change in zoning category

Schedule A to Report FIN-2016-029

17



SCHEDULE H: BY-LAW REVIEW OF MUNICIPAL RATES AND SERVICE CHARGES
EFFECTIVE 2017

TYPE OF REVENUE/USER Unit/Descr  2015 RATE 
(NO TAX) 

 2016 RATE 
(NO TAX) 

 2017 RATE 
(NO TAX) 

 13% 
HST 

 RATE INCL 
HST 

% 
CHANGE

HST 
STATUS COMMENTS

Dog Tags Per Tag $25.00 $25.00 $25.00 $0.00 $25.00 0.0% E Maximum of 3 dogs
Fence Viewer's Application Per Application $300.00 $300.00 $300.00 $0.00 $300.00 0.0% E

Grading Fee Flat Fee $500.00 $600.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 -100.0% E Removal of fee recommended - See Report FIN-
2016-020.

Inspection Permit - LCBO Per Inspection $100.00 $102.00 $104.00 $0.00 $104.00 2.0% E

Requested or required inspection of licensed sales 
establishments (as defined by the Liquor Licence 
Establishment Board of Ontario) that requires an 
inspection and/or a letter

Kennel Licence Per Licence $175.00 $179.00 $183.00 $0.00 $183.00 2.0% E More than 3 dogs

Lottery Licence 3% of prize 
value E Fee regulated by AGCO 

(Nevada, Raffle, Bazaar, etc.)

Municipal Addressing Signs Flat Fee $40.00 $40.00 $40.00 $5.20 $45.20 0.0% T To cover the costs of the blade and post. No cost 
for installation of the municipal addressing signs

Pool Enclosure Permit Flat Fee $350.00 $357.00 $210.00 $0.00 $210.00 -41.2% E Decrease of fee recommended - See Report FIN-
2016-020.

Septic Compliance Letter Flat Fee $75.00 $75.00 $75.00 $0.00 $75.00 0.0% E Fee charged is consistent for all Township 
departments

Site Alteration Permit Service Fee Per m³ $0.06 $0.06 $0.06 $0.00 $0.06 0.0% E Paid at time of application

Site Alteration Permit Application * Administration 
fee 

$250 plus $50 
per hectare 

$1,800 plus $75 
per hectare 

(rounded to the 
greater whole 

aggregate).

$1,800 plus 
$75 per 
hectare 

(rounded to 
the greater 

whole 
aggregate).

$0.00

$1,800 plus 
$75 per 
hectare 

(rounded to 
the greater 

whole 
aggregate).

0.0% E

Special Occasion Permit Per Letter $75.00 $75.00 $75.00 $0.00 $75.00 0.0% E

* the fees denoted with an asterisk are also subject to the Township's disbursements and third party consultant fees incurred for the processing of the application.

Schedule A to Report FIN-2016-029

18



SCHEDULE I: PARKS REVIEW OF MUNICIPAL RATES AND SERVICE CHARGES
EFFECTIVE 2017

TYPE OF REVENUE/USER Unit/Descr  2015 RATE 
(NO TAX) 

 2016 RATE 
(NO TAX) 

 2017 RATE 
(NO TAX) 

 13% 
HST 

 RATE INCL 
HST 

% 
CHANGE

HST 
STATUS COMMENTS

Aberfoyle/Old Morriston Ball Parks Per Hour before 
8:30 pm

$20.00 $20.00 $20.40 $2.65 $23.05 2% T Bookings available after May 1st of each year

Aberfoyle/Old Morriston Ball Parks Per Hour after 
8:30 pm

$30.00 $30.00 $30.60 $3.98 $34.58 2% T Bookings available after May 1st of each year

Aberfoyle/Old Morriston/Morriston 
Meadows Ball Parks

Per Day $150.00 $150.00 $153.00 $19.89 $172.89 2% T Bookings available after May 1st of each year

Aberfoyle/Old Morriston/Morriston 
Meadows Ball Parks

Dragging and 
lining per 

occurrence

$40.00 $40.00 $40.00 $5.20 $45.20 0% T Upon request and approval

Morriston Meadows Ball Park Per Hour $20.00 $20.00 $20.40 $2.65 $23.05 2% T Bookings available after May 1st of each year
Ball Diamond Advertising Per Season $175.00 $175.00 $175.00 $22.75 $197.75 0% T Available from May to October

Horse Paddock Rental Per Day $200.00 $200.00 $200.00 $26.00 $226.00 0% T $300.00 damage deposit; rental restricted to horse 
paddock and tractor pull area; bookings available 
from June 15 to September 15

Picnic Shelter Per Hour $20.00 $20.00 $20.00 $2.60 $22.60 0% T To a maximum of $80.00 (net of HST) per 
reservation

Sports Facility User Fees - 
Excluding Soccer

Per Resident $10.00 $10.00 $10.00 $0.00 $10.00 0% E Fees collected from various sports clubs

Sports Facility User Fees - 
Excluding Soccer

Per Non-
Resident

$25.00 $25.00 $25.00 $0.00 $25.00 0% E Fees collected from various sports clubs

Sports Facility User Fees - Soccer Per Resident $10.00 $12.00 $12.00 $0.00 $12.00 0% E Fees collected from soccer clubs

Sports Facility User Fees - Soccer Per Non-
Resident

$25.00 $30.00 $30.00 $0.00 $30.00 0% E Fees collected from soccer clubs

Security Deposit Per Fireworks 
Display

$500.00 $500.00 $500.00 $0.00 $500.00 0% E Security deposit for the clean up of Township lands 
after use for fireworks display

Schedule A to Report FIN-2016-029

19



SCHEDULE J: OPTIMIST RECREATION CENTRE REVIEW OF MUNICIPAL RATES AND SERVICE CHARGES
EFFECTIVE 2017

TYPE OF REVENUE/USER Unit/Descr  2015 RATE 
(NO TAX) 

 2016 RATE 
(NO TAX) 

 2017 RATE 
(NO TAX) 

13% 
HST

RATE 
INCL HST

% 
CHANGE

HST 
STATUS COMMENTS

Arena Summer Rentals Per Hour $65.00 $65.00 $66.00 $8.58 $74.58 2% T Includes use of change rooms

Ice Rental - Non - Prime Per Hour $78.00 $78.00 $55.00 $7.15 $62.15 -29% T
Weekdays from 9 am to 5 pm
Decrease recommended - see Report FIN-2016-
029

Ice Rental - Prime Per Hour $155.00 $155.00 $158.00 $20.54 $178.54 2% T Weekdays from 5 to 10 pm, Saturday, Sunday

Gymnasium Rental Per Hour $26.00 $26.00 $30.00 $3.90 $33.90 15% T Increase recommended - see Report FIN-2016-
029

Rink Board Advertising Per Year $350.00 $350.00 $350.00 $45.50 $395.50 0% T

Schedule A to Report FIN-2016-029

20



SCHEDULE K: PUSLINCH COMMUNITY CENTRE REVIEW OF MUNICIPAL RATES AND SERVICE CHARGES
EFFECTIVE 2017

TYPE OF REVENUE/USER Unit/Descr  2015 RATE 
(NO TAX) 

 2016 RATE 
(NO TAX) 

 2017 RATE 
(NO TAX) 13% HST RATE INCL 

HST % CHANGE HST 
STATUS COMMENTS

Alf Hales Room Per Hour $25.00 $25.00 $25.50 $3.32 $28.82 2% T
Archie MacRobbie Hall - Non-

Prime
Per 4 Hour Rental $215.00 $215.00 $219.00 $28.47 $247.47 2% T Monday to Thursday and Sunday Rentals

includes use of kitchen facilities
Archie MacRobbie Hall - Non-

Prime
Per Hour after 4 

Hours 
$0.00 $45.63 $46.54 $6.05 $52.59 2% T Monday to Thursday and Sunday Rentals

includes use of kitchen facilities
Archie MacRobbie Hall - Non-

Prime Full Day Rental $365.00 $365.00 $372.00 $48.36 $420.36 2% T Monday to Thursday Rentals
includes use of kitchen facilities

Archie MacRobbie Hall - 
Prime Full Day Rental $479.00 $479.00 $488.00 $63.44 $551.44 2% T Friday and Saturday Rentals

includes use of kitchen facilities
Archie MacRobbie Hall - Non-

Prime Full Day Rental $357.00 $357.00 $364.00 $47.32 $411.32 2% T Sunday Rentals
includes use of kitchen facilities

Commercial Rentals  (ie. 
Auctions) Full Day Rental $750.00 $750.00 $765.00 $99.45 $864.45 2% T Includes use of kitchen facilities

Use of Kitchen Facilities Per 4 Hour Rental $105.00 $105.00 $107.00 $13.91 $120.91 2% T Dishes, silverware, cooking utensils, 
dishwasher, coffee maker

Use of Kitchen Facilities Per Hour After 4 
Hours $25.00 $25.00 $25.50 $3.32 $28.82 2% T Dishes, silverware, cooking utensils, 

dishwasher, coffee maker

Licenced Events Using Patio Flat Rate $55.00 $55.00 $56.00 $7.28 $63.28 2% T Patio Fencing

Projector Rental Flat Rate $0.00 $0.00 $25.00 $3.25 $28.25 100% T See Report FIN-2016-029
Rental Deposit 50% of total 

contract 
rental fee

50% of total 
contract 
rental fee

Full payment 
collected at 
the time of 
booking

Revised Policy Recommended - See 
Report FIN-2016-029.

Security Deposit Per Booking $365.00 $365.00 $365.00 $0.00 $365.00 0% E Deposit is fully refundable after function if 
there are no damages and key is returned

Bartenders Flat Rate $115.00 $115.00 $117.00 $15.21 $132.21 2% T Smart Serve Certified
Bartenders Per hr after 7 hrs $20.00 $20.00 $20.40 $2.65 $23.05 2% T Smart Serve Certified

Fountain Pop Package Per Pound $1.30 $1.30 $1.30 $0.17 $1.47 0% T Includes ice, cups, and fountain pop

9 oz Glasses Per Package of 100 $6.00 $6.00 $6.00 $0.78 $6.78 0% T

Schedule A to Report FIN-2016-029

21



SCHEDULE K: PUSLINCH COMMUNITY CENTRE REVIEW OF MUNICIPAL RATES AND SERVICE CHARGES
EFFECTIVE 2017

TYPE OF REVENUE/USER Unit/Descr  2015 RATE 
(NO TAX) 

 2016 RATE 
(NO TAX) 

 2017 RATE 
(NO TAX) 13% HST RATE INCL 

HST % CHANGE HST 
STATUS COMMENTS

14 oz Glasses Per Package of 50 $6.00 $6.00 $6.00 $0.78 $6.78 0% T
Ice Per Bag $2.00 $2.00 $2.00 $0.26 $2.26 0% T

Advertising Sign Two lines/Week $32.00 $32.00 $32.64 $4.24 $36.88 2% T No charge for Puslinch Community Centre 
rentals

Advertising Sign Four Lines/Week $63.00 $63.00 $64.26 $8.35 $72.61 2% T No charge for Puslinch Community Centre 
rentals

Schedule A to Report FIN-2016-029

22



 TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH  
 

COUNCIL REPORT 
 

Township of Puslinch Annual Emergency Management Report 2016 1 

 

To:  Mayor Dennis Lever and Members of Puslinch Council  
From:   Linda Dickson, Emergency Manager/CEMC 
Date:  December 7, 2016  
Re:  Emergency Management Program Report for 2016 
 
Background 
The following outlines the municipal requirements as set out in the Emergency Management 
and Civil Protection Act and how the municipality has fulfilled these requirements for 2016.   
 
Program Committee 
The Township’s Emergency Management Program Committee met on April 7, 2016.  A report 
establishing a revised Committee Structure was reviewed by the Committee. A report and 
resolution on a new Emergency Management Programme Committee structure for the 
Township of Puslinch was approved at the September 7, 2016 session of Council.   
 

Emergency Response Plan: 
A report on proposed changes to the Emergency Response Plan has been prepared for Council’s 
review and consideration and accompanies this report. 
 
Training: 
The following is a list of emergency management and related training dates that members of 
the Control Group and or staff attended in 2016. 
 

• Control Group Training Workshop June 22, 2016 with presentations from MMA 
on the new Provincial Disaster Recovery Programs, 211, Public Health and 
Wellington County’s Manager of Solid Waste Services regarding current Debris 
Management practices.  

• Canadian Weather Amateur Radio Network (CANWARN) training was provided 
by Environment Canada on April 15, 2016.    

• August 23, 2016 training was provided on the use of the emergency 
management Common Operating Picture and Critical Infrastructure Mapping.  

• October 24, 2016 staff attended the Winter Weather meeting and training 
session.  

• IMS 100 - This course teaches the basic functions, concepts and principles of the 
Incident Management System (IMS). 

• Basic Emergency Management (BEM) training was provided on April 27, 2016 
and it is an introduction to the basic concepts of Emergency Management. 

• Community Emergency Management Coordinator (CEMC) July 6, 2016 course 
provided by the Province to train individuals within a municipality who have 



 TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH  
 

COUNCIL REPORT 
 

Township of Puslinch Annual Emergency Management Report 2016 2 

 

been appointed as the CEMC or one of two designated/appointed alternates. 
Deputy Fire Chief Luis Gomes completed the course and is an alternate CEMC for 
the Township of Puslinch. 
 

Annual Emergency Management Exercise  
On October 3, 2016 Puslinch Township held its annual emergency management exercise based 
upon a tornado scenario that touched down and impacted Mini Lakes and Mill Creek 
communities. The objectives of the exercise were to test:  
 

• The Township’s Notification Procedures 
• The telecommunication equipment in the Emergency Operation Centre (EOC) 
• The use and completion of the EOC and Incident Management System forms 

 
There were a number of lessons learned and recommendations from the exercise.  The 
recommendations supported more training for members of the Control Group and support staff 
on Incident Management System (IMS) and the use of IMS forms in the EOC.  There were also 
recommendations with respect to the emergency notification procedures and communication 
procedures and in particular, consideration be given to changing or modifying these to align 
with IMS. 
 
A copy of the After Action Report is attached. 
 
Public Education 
A number of public education events were held this year.  The following is a list of the main 
initiatives undertaken. 
 

• Winter weather and driving information materials are being provided to all libraries in 
the County and to specific garages/tire businesses this month.  

• Public Education information was made available at the Wellington County Libraries 
during Emergency Preparedness Week and Safe Kids Week. 

• Public Education information was made available to the Municipal Office during 
Emergency Preparedness Week. 

• Emergency Management staff attended the Puslinch Open House breakfast hosted by 
Puslinch Fire and Public education material table was on display. 

• Emergency Management staff assisted Puslinch Fire with a Public Education 
Presentation to Aberfoyle Public School on May 2, 2016. Two hundred “72 Hour Be 
Better Prepared” guides were handed out to the students. 

• Be Better Prepared guides were provided to Mill Creek Community to be distributed to 
residents.  



 TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH  
 

COUNCIL REPORT 
 

Township of Puslinch Annual Emergency Management Report 2016 3 

 

• A number of information pieces were provided throughout the year on the County page 
of the Wellington Advertiser on how to be better prepared for floods, tornados, 
extreme heat conditions and how to create an Emergency Plan.  

• Social media messages began in November. 

Further Enhancements: 
 
Strategic Planning:     
The 2015 Emergency Management Report to Council identified a number of recommendations 
from a Focused Discussion session that was held in March of 2015.  Attached is a report for 
Council’s review and consideration regarding the key recommendations and the feasibility of 
implementing each recommendations. 
 
ODRAP Review  
The Province has issued guidelines with respect to the new Provincial Disaster Recovery 
Assistance programs.  These Programs were tested this spring with the Easter weekend Ice 
Storm and Flood events in the Province.   
 
EM Software 
Currently the Emergency Measures Budget contains a figure for the purchase of Emergency 
Management Software in 2017 that would complement the Common Operating Picture 
mapping that has been implemented.  Training and exercises in 2016 included the testing of the 
Common Operating. 
 
Debris Management:  
Emergency Manager/CEMC will be establishing a Committee with the purpose of developing a 
debris management plan for all municipalities in Wellington. 
 
Recommendation: 
 
THAT Council for the Township of Puslinch accepts the annual emergency management report, 
and further THAT this report serves as the annual review of the Municipality’s Emergency 
Management Program for 2016. 
 
Respectfully submitted 

 
Linda Dickson, MCIP, RPP, CMMIII Emergency Management Professional 
Emergency Manager/CEMC 



TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
 

Report to Council  
  

To: Mayor Lever and members of Council for the Township of Puslinch 
From:  Linda Dickson, Emergency Manager/CEMC 
Date:  December 7, 2016 
Subject: Emergency Response Plan Amendment Number 3. 
 

Background: 
Under the Emergency Management and Civil Protection Act, R.S.O., 1990, every municipality is 
required to have an Emergency Response Plan outlining policies and procedures for responding 
to large scale emergencies/disasters in their municipality.  In 2010, the County of Wellington 
and the Member Municipalities adopted the current Emergency Response Plan.  Attached to 
this report is an amending document to the Emergency Response Plan.  The draft amendment 
was circulated and reviewed with each municipality’s Emergency Management Program 
Committee.  The following is a summary of the changes being proposed. 
 
i) There are a number of “housekeeping” changes to the wording in the Plan including 

items 3, 4, 5, 10, 12, 13, and 16. 
 
ii) In item 1 update the Hazard Definition with Emergency Management Ontario’s current 

definition.    
 

iii) Items 2, 7, 9 and 17 include new policies for Source Water Protection.  The approved 
Source Water Protection Plans of the various Conservation Authorities in Wellington 
contain specific policies to add information to the local Emergency Response Plans.  The 
Risk Management Official and Emergency Manager/CEMC have reviewed the Source 
Water Protection Plans and support the inclusion of the policies identified in the 
amendment to be in keeping with the requirements of the Source Water Protection 
Plan.  Item 17 incorporates the Vulnerable Areas mapping to the Emergency Response 
Plan. 
 

iv) The changes to incorporate Source Water Protection policies include wording in the 
Hazard section of the Plan to define what is considered a Water Emergency for the 
purposes of the Emergency Response Plan.  Also, amend the roles and responsibilities of 
the Fire Chief to include wording that recognizes the need to ensure additional response 
steps are taken in vulnerable drinking water supply areas.  Add a specific section on 
Conservation Authorities Source Water Protection Plans and roles for the Risk 
Management Official during water emergencies in areas of Source Water Protection. 
Finally add the vulnerable areas mapping from the County Official Plan into to the 
Emergency Response Plan.   



TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
 

Report to Council  
  

 
v) Under item 6, add policies to identify roles and responsibilities for the municipality and 

211 during emergencies.  We have been providing public education information to 
residents about the existence of 211 and what it can be used for but, with the addition 
of these polices to the plan, we will focus and direct our public education efforts in 2017 
to the use of 211 during emergencies or abnormal municipal situations. 
 

vi) Items 8, 14 and 15 replace the Ontario Disaster Relief Assistance Program policies with 
policies to recognize the new Provincial Disaster Recovery Assistance Programs for 
Ontarians and for Municipalities.   

 
Attachments: 

Amendment Number 3 to the Emergency Response Plan is attached. 
 
Recommendation:  
That Council supports the adoption of the Amendment Number 3 to the Emergency Response 
Plan for the County of Wellington and the Member Municipalities, and further that Council 
authorizes the passing of a by-law adopting the amendment to the Emergency Response Plan. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 

Linda Dickson, MCIP, RRP, CMMIII Emergency Management Professional 
Emergency Manager/CEMC 



TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
 

Report to Council  
  

SCHEDULE “A” 

To By-law                                                    . 

Amendment No. 3 to the Emergency Response Plan 

1. Change definition for Hazard in Section 1.1 the Emergency Response Plan from “an 
event or physical condition that has the potential to cause fatalities, injuries, property 
damage, infrastructure damage, agricultural loss, and damage to the environment, 
interruption of business or other types of harm or loss “ to “A phenomenon, 
substance, human activity or condition that may cause loss of life, injury or other 
health impacts, property damage, loss of livelihoods and services, social and economic 
disruption, or environmental damage. These may include natural, technological or 
human-caused incidents or some combination of these (Glossary of Terms, 2011)” 
 

2. Under Section 1.1 Hazards bullet seven Water Emergencies add the following paragraph 
to identify the risks associated with defined Source Water Protection Areas: 
 
“Water Emergencies include risks from spills and other contaminants entering 
vulnerable areas of municipal drinking water supplies including Well Head Protection 
Areas (WHPAs), Surface Water Intake Protection Zones (IPZs) and Issues Contributing 
Areas (ICAs). 
 

3. Section 1.1 sixth bullet “Energy emergencies” is changed to from “such as electricity, 
natural gas, oil and fuel” and will now read “energy emergencies such as electricity, 
natural gas, oil and fuel”. 

 
4. The end of Section 2 - Aim is amended by adding the words “future resiliency and 

reduce the vulnerabilities” and will now read  
 

“The aim of this Plan is to make provisions for the extraordinary actions and measures 
that may have to be taken to efficiently and effectively deploy resources, equipment 
and services necessary to address an emergency situation or event in order to safe 
guard the health, safety and welfare of residents, particularly those considered most 
vulnerable; to safe guard critical infrastructure; to protect the environment; and to 
ensure future economic vitality, future resiliency and reduce the vulnerabilities. 

 
5. Section 4.3 is re-titled from “Declaring Emergencies” to “Declaring Municipal 

Emergencies”. 



TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
 

Report to Council  
  

 

6. In Section 5 – Requests for Assistance, add a new subsection 5.5 to include the 211 
Notification and Communication Protocols for assistance as follows: 

 
5.5 211 Notification and Communication Protocols 
 

2-1-1 is an easy to remember phone number available throughout Ontario to 
support residents, municipalities, businesses and others. 211’s Information & 
Referral professionals are available 24/7/365 to provide live answer 
information about Ontario’s community, social, health and government 
services.  During the response to and recovery from emergency events, 211 
supports communities by providing authoritative, non-emergency information 
to residents (e.g.  Road closures, the location of evacuation centres, services, 
safety precautions etc.) 211 alleviates the burden of non-emergency calls to 
911 and allows emergency responders to focus on response.  211 providers 
welcome opportunities to participate in municipal emergency exercises and 
training. 

 
211 also maintains an extensive database of community, social, health and 
government services at www.211ontario.ca. 
 
5.5.1 Responsibilities: 

 
i) Municipality, city, town or county: 
• Prior to an emergency event which may be declared or 

undeclared by the Head of Council, provide 211 with the names 
and contact information of Community Emergency Management 
Coordinators (CEMCs), Emergency Information Officers (EIO) and 
others authorized to notify 211 and invoke the assistance of 211. 
[Form provided.] 

• Notify 211 when an event has occurred by dialing 211 or one of 
the contact numbers provided by the 211 contact centre in your 
region. [211 contact list provided.] 

http://www.211ontario.ca/


TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
 

Report to Council  
  

• Maintain a line of communication with 211 throughout the 
event providing authoritative, accurate information that can be 
relayed to the public. This can be done by phone or email. 

• Inform residents that they can call 211 for non-emergency 
information.  This can be done through street signs, press 
releases, the media and other means.  

• Inform 211 when the emergency event ends. 
 

ii) 211 (service in Ontario): 
 

• The 211 staff person who receives notification of an emergency 
event will document the information using a form that captures 
what, where, who, when etc. and the name and contact 
information of the person providing the information. 

• Answer non-emergency calls from the public 24/7/365. Ensure 
the network of 211 service providers in Ontario is notified, can 
access the most current information about the event and is 
available to provide support if needed. 

• Track the nature of calls received and convey relevant 
information to the EIO, CEMC or designated person.      

• Prepare an After Action Report and submit it to the municipality.       
 

7. Under Section 6.1.3 Fire Chief or Alternate delete item x), replace it with the following 
and renumber remaining items is Section 6.1.3 accordingly:  

 
x)  “Liaise with Ministry of the Environment and Climate Change and in particular 

the Spills Action Centre when spills occur. Should a spill/contaminant occur 
within an identified vulnerable drinking water supply area as shown on 
Schedules A through G of  this plan, ensure that the municipal staff responsible 
for drinking water supply are notified; 

 
xi) Liaise with the Fire Marshall’s Office and other related fire department 

response partners;” 
 



TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
 

Report to Council  
  

8. In Section 6.1.10 Administration and Finance section change references for ODRAP to 
Provincial Disaster Recovery Programs.  In addition, all other references to ODRAP in 
the Emergency Response Plan will be changed accordingly. 

 
9. Add a new subsection 6.2.15.5 Conservation Authorities Source Water Protection Plans 

as follows: 
 
6.2.15.5 Conservation Authorities Source Water Protection Plans 
 
Under the Clean Water Act, 2006, Source Water Protection Plans were developed by 
multi-stakeholder committees with the support from local source protection 
authorities.  Many of the Source Water Protection Plans include policies that 
recommend municipalities update their Emergency Response Plans to identify 
vulnerable areas of municipal drinking water supplies, the risks posed to these areas 
by spills or unauthorized discharges, and ensure that policies and procedures are in 
place to be able to respond to emergencies to these vulnerable areas.   
 
The County of Wellington’s Official Plan has been updated to include policies for the 
protection of vulnerable drinking water resources at-source from land use activities 
which may pose a drinking water threat to municipal water supplies.  Development 
within these areas will be reviewed and assessed to ensure they do not pose a risk or 
threat to drinking water supplies or alternatively are properly mitigated to reduce any 
threat or risk to drinking water.  These activities are defined by the Clean Water Act, 
2006 and Prescribed by Ontario Regulation 287/07. 
 
The location of these vulnerable areas as shown on Schedule A through G of the 
Emergency Response Plan include areas within 100 metres of a source, 2 year and 5 
year travel times.  Alternatively the County of Wellington’s Explore Wellington 
mapping contains additional information for twenty-five year time of travel.  The 
Common Operating Picture also contains locations of the vulnerable areas and the 
travel times accordingly.   
 
The training programmes for all municipalities in Wellington will be updated and 
reviewed annually with each municipal Emergency Management Program Committee 
to ensure first responders and municipal staffs responsible for emergency 
management receive appropriate awareness training of drinking water source 



TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
 

Report to Council  
  

protection and local Source Protection Plans policies.  The training may also be 
provided to appropriate responding emergency management partners. 
 
6.2.15.5.1 Risk Management Official (RMO) and/or alternate 
 

If a municipality is concerned that a vulnerable municipal drinking 
water supply may have been affected by a spill or contaminated, the 
municipal Fire Department, Water Department and or Public Works 
Department staff may request the assistance of the RMO to assist with 
assessing potential impacts to the sources of municipal drinking water, 
and further, if a municipal response is required to a spill or 
contamination of drinking water supplies, the RMO may be requested 
to attend the EOC to provide advice and information. 
 
Under their requirements for DWQMS, Municipal Water and Waste 
Water agencies/departments have developed policies to respond to 
emergency situations.  The Water and Waste Water municipal 
departments in the County of Wellington have created an ad hoc 
Interoperability Committee who meets on a regular basis to develop 
consistence procedures for responding to unprecedented water and 
waste water situations and to assist each other in such situations. 
 

10. Section 8 is amended by adding the words “and relevant” after “in order to ensure 
timely” in the first paragraph so it will now read as follows: 

 
“A vital and integral part of any emergency management operation is communication, 
particularly, between the Emergency Operation Centre and Incident Command. This 
essential communication requires a reliable and secure means of relaying information 
between the two emergency command locations, in order to ensure timely and 
relevant information for the benefit of the decision-making process”. 
 

11. Section 8.2.2.1 Emergency Information Officer is amending by adding “Communications 
Coordinator for the Township of Centre Wellington” after Communications Manager 
for the County of Wellington in the first sentence so that the it now reads as follows: 

 



TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
 

Report to Council  
  

“The Emergency Information Officer(s) (EIO) are the Wellington OPP Media officers, 
Communications Manager for the County of Wellington, Communications Coordinator 
for the Township of Centre Wellington or designated alternate(s).  During the 
activation of this plan, the EIO will report to the Head of Council and CAO or Chief of 
Operations. The EIO has the following responsibilities.” 
 

12. Section 8.2.3.2 Joint Emergency Information Centre will be changed by deleting the 
second sentence and replacing with “The joint Information Centre would act as the 
main source of local emergency information” so that it now reads as follows: 

 
During certain types of emergencies, such as large scale, widespread emergencies, it 
may be beneficial to establish a joint emergency information centre comprised of 
representatives from all agencies/organizations that may be involved in the emergency 
response. The Joint Information Centre would act as the main source of local 
emergency information.  All groups participating in the Joint Information Centre assign 
resources and staff to the JIC to work as a team. The assignment of staff to a Joint 
Information Centre can be done in advance of the emergency. Examples of emergencies 
that may benefit from a Joint Information Centre include a Health Emergency such as a 
pandemic, a Foreign Animal Disease Outbreak, or widespread natural disaster.  
 

13. That section 11.4 Financial Sub-Committee item v) is amended by changing the word 
“building” at the end of the sentence to “funding”. 
 

14.  Section 11.4 ii) will be deleted in its entirety and the remaining items in Section 11.4 
will be renumbered accordingly. 

 
15. Section 11.4.1 will be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following to reflect 

the new Provincial Disaster Recovery Programs.   
 
15.11.4.1           Provincial Disaster Recovery Programs   
 

The Province of Ontario administers two Disaster Recovery Programs.   
The Programs are known as the Disaster Recovery Assistance for 
Ontarians and the Municipal Disaster Recovery Assistance. The 
following is a brief description of the two programs and how they are 
administered through the Province.  Detailed information about 



TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
 

Report to Council  
  

program eligibility, eligible expenses and program application 
guidelines are available on the Ministry of Municipal Affairs website. 

 
i) Disaster Recovery for Ontarians Program 
 
The DISASTER RECOVERY ASSISTANCE FOR ONTARIANS Program is open 
to homeowners (primary residence only) and residential tenants, small 
owner-operated businesses, small owner-operated farms, and not-for-
profit organizations. The program is administered by the Province may 
be activated by the Minister of Municipal Affairs after a sudden, 
unexpected natural disaster such as a flood or tornado.  A municipality 
does not have to declare an emergency in order for the program to be 
activated but should advise the Ministry of the situation. 
 
Disaster Recovery Assistance for Ontarians provides assistance for 
emergency expenses and costs to repair or replace essential property; 
however, it is not a replacement for insurance.  Insurers must be 
contacted first and documentation must be provided detailing the 
amount and reason any portion of the damage or loss is not covered 
under insurance. Eligible expenses are separated into three main 
categories: Emergency Evacuation/Relocation and Living Expenses; 
Emergency Measures, Cleanup, Disinfection and Disposal Expenses; 
Repair and Replacement Expenses.  
 
Homeowners and residential tenants, small business owners, farmers, 
and not-for-profit organizations may apply directly to the Province 
within 120 calendar days after the Ministry announces the program has 
been activated. Following activation of the program, application forms 
will be made available on the Ministry of Municipal Affairs website or 
will be made available at municipal offices and other locations in 
communities affected by a natural disaster.   
 
ii) Municipal Disaster Recovery Assistance 
 
Municipal Disaster Recovery Assistance Program helps municipalities 
that have incurred significant extraordinary costs because of a sudden, 



TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
 

Report to Council  
  

unexpected and extraordinary natural disaster. Eligible expenses may 
include capital costs to repair public infrastructure or property to pre-
disaster condition, and operating costs over and above regular budgets 
that are necessary to protect public health, safety or access to essential 
services. Costs are not eligible if they are covered by insurance or if they 
would have been incurred anyway had the natural disaster not 
occurred. Mitigating risks and preparing for disasters are first and 
foremost local responsibilities, and Municipalities are expected to take 
reasonable precautions to ensure the health and safety of residents and 
for managing risks. The purpose of this program is to alleviate financial 
hardship when costs are so extensive that they exceed the capacity of 
the affected municipality to manage. Municipalities are responsible for 
covering the upfront costs associated with the natural disasters and 
should have a plan in place to cover up to three percent of Own 
Purpose Taxation. 
 
Incremental costs associated with the event must be demonstrably 
linked to the disaster and eligible costs incurred must be at least equal 
to three per cent of a municipality’s Own Purpose Taxation levy.  To 
apply to the program Council must pass a resolution requesting 
consideration under the program and submit an initial claim along with 
required supporting documentation within 120 calendar days from the 
date of the onset of the natural disaster.  

 
The cost sharing formula under this program is based on a sliding scale 
and is applied when eligible costs are at least equal to three per cent of 
the municipality’s Own Purpose Taxation levy. The Own Purpose 
Taxation levy refers to the total taxes a municipality is eligible to collect 
to fund its own budget, less certain adjustments, and is intended as a 
measure of the municipality’s financial capacity.  The following table 
demonstrates the cost sharing arrangement.                                 

 

 



TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
 

Report to Council  
  

Provincial and Municipal Cost-Sharing 

Cost-sharing formula applied if eligible costs meet or exceed 
three per cent OPT levy and the program is activated  

  Provincial 
Contribution  

Municipal 
Contribution  

Eligible costs up to 3% of Own Purpose Taxation levy  75%  25%  

Eligible costs exceeding 3% of Own Purpose Taxation levy  95%  5%  

 

16 Change all references in the document to Emergency Management Ontario or EMO to 
Office of the Fire Marshall and Emergency Management or OFMEM. 

17. Rename “Emergency Response Plan Glossary of Terms and Acronym’s as Appendix A – 
Emergency Response Plan Glossary of Terms and Acronyms and add Vulnerable Areas 
Schedules B1 through to B7 attached to and forming part of this amendment. 

 

 

             . 



Puslinch Township Annual Exercise After Action Report  2016
 

After Action Report Page 1 
 

 
In accordance with the Emergency Management and Civil Protection Act, R.S.O., 1990, the 
Township of Puslinch Municipal Emergency Control Group (MECG) conducted an exercise as 
required by Regulation 380/04 Section 12 (6) of the Emergency Management and Civil 
Protection Act. Recommendations and lessons learned from the exercise debrief held 
immediately following the exercise are included in this report. 
 
1. Date:          October 3, 2016 

 
2. Time:          Touch-Down Exercise – 12:00pm – 4:00pm 

 
3. Location:           Primary EOC - Puslinch Municipal Office, 7404 Wellington Rd 34, Aberfoyle 

 
4. Participants:   

Dennis Lever, Mayor 
Karen Landry, Puslinch CAO 
Nina Lecic, Puslinch Clerk 
Michelle Cassar, Puslinch Support Staff 
Don Creed, Public Works 
Linda Dickson, CEMC/Emergency Manager 
Scott Lawson, Inspector OPP 
Leanne Swantko, Deputy Chief EMS 
Carol Myers, Public Health Inspector 
David George, Public Health 

 
Observers: 
Ken Roth, Councillor 
Allan Moeser, County of Wellington Business Analyst  

 
Facilitators: 
Bridgette Francis, Emergency Management Programme Coordinator 
Heather Lawson, Emergency Management Assistant 
 

5. Type of Exercise:  Table Top exercise with a notification component 
 

6. Scenario: The annual Emergency Management exercise was based upon a tornado scenario 
that touched down in Mini Lakes and Mill Creek communities.  
 
 
 

7. Objectives: 

 



Puslinch Township Annual Exercise After Action Report  2016
 

After Action Report Page 2 
 

 
i) Test of the Township’s Notification Procedures 
ii) Testing of the telecommunication equipment in EOC  
iii) Testing of EOC (IMS) Forms  

 
8. Exercise Observations and Recommendations: 

 
i) The Notification testing was conducted with the Townships support staff and it was 

noted the testing did provide training of the procedures for a new staff member. It was 
recommended to remove personal addresses from the Notification call list. This has 
been completed since the exercise. No other comments noted about the Notification 
Exercise. 

 
ii) It was observed the phone lines in the EOC can make it very noisy and difficult to hear 

others. It was suggested other rooms in the Township Office could be utilized for quieter 
areas to conduct operational section meetings.  

 
iii) It was recommended the phone lines in the EOC should reflect the IMS model and the 

EIO (Emergency Information Officer) should have their own dedicated line. Emergency 
Management staff will assist Township staff with this process. 

 
iv) It was recommended the Scribe should not be answering the phones in the EOC as their 

focus is maintaining the Main Event Log.  
 

v) The IMS forms were utilized in the exercise by most of Control Group Members. It is 
recommended more future training initiatives for purpose and completion of the IMS 
forms.  

 
vi)  Other recommendations were to have more training geared toward the IMS structure.  

 
 



TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
 

COUNCIL REPORT  
 

1 
 

 

To: Mayor Lever and Members of Council for the Township of Puslinch 
From:   Linda Dickson, Emergency Manager/CEMC 
Date:  December 7, 2016 
Re:  Report on the Strategic Direction for Emergency Management Programs 
  
Purpose/Background:   
The After Action Reports from both the April 2013 and December 2013 Ice Storms provided 
lessons learned and recommendations to improve our municipal emergency management 
programs and, where applicable, the opportunity to coordinate these recommendations across 
the municipalities in the County.  In March of 2015, a focus discussion group session was held 
with representation from all eight municipal Emergency Management Program Committees in 
Wellington County.  The lessons learned and recommendations from the Ice Storm After Action 
Reports were used to define discussion points for this session. 
 
The group discussion included the following topic areas: 
 

• Sheltering/Warming and Cooling Centres 
• Generators and Funding 
• Time Frames 
• Crisis Communications 

 
The results of the discussion provided some additional categories for consideration including  
Public Education and Hazard Specific Emergency Response Plans, and the overall results were 
presented and discussed at each Emergency Management Program Committee meeting in 
2016.   The following sections outline five key emergency management directives for the future 
and states if and how these can be achieved and implemented. 
 
SHELTERS/EVACUATION CENTRES 

 
1. Recommendation:  To pre-identify shelters/evacuation centres and promote the 

location to residents as part of our public education program, but these sites should be 
provided with back-up power to be identified and promoted in preparedness 
campaigns.   
 
It was there are only a few sites with back-up power that meet the Health Canada 
requirements for overnight accommodations within the County of Wellington.  
Emergency Management and Social Services will continue to work with Red Cross to 
identify appropriate sites in the County suitable for overnight accommodations.  Most 
public facilities can accommodate temporary emergency uses such as places to cool 
down or warm up. 

 



TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
 

COUNCIL REPORT  
 

2 
 

 

Action/Directive:  The identification, equipping and promotion of these facilities are a 
Council decision and may require agreements between the municipality and some pre-
identified sites.  
 

2. Recommendation:  Consensus that if any part of the community is in need, reception 
centres/shelters should be opened and where possible we should avoid using fire 
stations for reception centres/shelters.  
 
Action/Directive:  This should be a municipal program Committee decision and if Fire 
Stations are to be used it should be based upon the advice and direction of the 
municipal Fire Chief. 

 
3. Recommendation:  Shelters should be opened within 72 hours.  The CEMCs in 

Wellington County agreed that this should be 72 hours and not 48 hours of a situation 
(power outage) and it should be the decision of the EOC (Incident Command) when to 
open and what sites to open.   
 
Action/Directive:  Emergency Management staff will look at creating a policy for this. 

 
4. Recommendation:  Make a list of all potential shelter sites, identify if they have back-up 

power and what facilities in the site are available with or without back-up power.  
 
Action/Directive:  These lists have been prepared and EM staff is in the process of 
including the location and specific site information into the Common Operating Picture. 

 
5. Recommendation:  Where and if possible promote a staged evacuation process such as 

Stage 1 – elderly, those with very young children and those with medical need; Stage 2- 
would be the rest of the community.  
 
Action/Directive:  CEMCs agreed that we should not take on this approach.  

 
GENERATORS 
 
1. Recommendation:  Have a pool of municipal generators that could be moved around 

the county.  It was suggested/agreed to that this could be funded through the County; 
or County staff could assist with bulk buying of generators.  It should be noted that 
generators will need to be sized appropriately for the facility that they will run.  Facilities 
will have to be wired appropriately with an approved disconnect that will be the 
responsibility of the individual municipalities. General consensus is that some 
municipalities are adequately prepared with generators to operate their critical 
infrastructure including potential shelters/places to get cool and warm.   
 



TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
 

COUNCIL REPORT  
 

3 
 

 

Action/Directive:   The purchase and installation of generators should remain a 
municipal decision and responsibility.  Emergency Management staff will compile and 
maintain a list of potential mobile generator resources and include information in the 
Contact and Resource Guide.  Facilities being used as shelters/places to get cool or 
warm will be identified in the Common Operating Picture and the attribute list will 
identify if the facility has a generator. 
 

2. Recommendation:  Municipalities should maintain 72 hour fuel supply for generators 
and municipalities should incorporate this into their emergency fuel plan calculations.   
 
Action/Directive:   Municipalities should be including a fuel amount for generators in 
their fuel purchasing plans.  There is an option with some fuel suppliers to pre-order and 
pre-purchase fuel.  EM will create a list of appropriate fuel depots with stand-alone 
back-up power and where an option of gases (regular, diesel and coloured diesel) may 
be acquired.  This information may also be included in the Common Operating Picture. 
 

PUBLIC EDUCATION 
 
1. Recommendation:   Continue to promote 72 hour “Be Better Prepared” in our public 

education campaigns across the County.   
 
Action/Recommendation:   Our annual public education/awareness campaigns will 
continue to focus on the “Be Better Prepared” messaging including 72 hour personal 
preparedness and more targeted 72 hour preparedness for specific types of incidents 
such as Ice Storms, Power Outages, Tornados and Floods.  
 

2. Recommendation:  Public Education should be provided to residents about the location, 
the use of and hours of operation for municipal public facilities where residents can go 
to cool down in the summer or warm up in the winter particularly during prolonged 
power outage events.   
 
Action/Directive:   This will be the responsibility of each municipality to identify.  
Emergency Management will assist/work with each municipality and coordinate 
consistent education information where practical. 

 
PREPAREDNESS PLAN 
 
1. Recommendation:  Create a standardized extreme heat and cold weather policy.  Social 

Services, Public Health, Communications and EM Staff have been working on this.  
 
Action/Directive:   Draft policies are being reviewed by partner agencies.  Public Health 
has a Cold Alert Protocol and Heat Alert Protocol which has been provided to the 



TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
 

COUNCIL REPORT  
 

4 
 

 

alternate CEMCs.  Wellington County and City of Guelph EM staff, Social Services staff 
and County and City Communications staff are reviewing a draft Municipal Cold Alert 
Plan.  Once completed a copy of the Plan will be provided to alternate CEMCs and 
partner agencies.   EM staff will finalize the municipal Heat Alert Plan. 

 
COMMUNICATIONS 
 
1. Recommendation:   Ensure we make appropriate use of all forms of technology available 

to communicate emergency information to our residents and business.  Different 
demographics use different technologies.  Consensus was to have ready to use 
communication media templates and where appropriate social media messaging.   
 
Action/Directive:   The Communication staff throughout the County have, as a result of 
past weather response situations, worked together and shared best practices 
particularly during large scale municipal emergencies.  Communication staff will 
continue to work with EM and other communication departments to create a list of 
emergency information messaging. 

 
2. Recommendation:   There needs to be ongoing training for communication officers and 

spokespersons. A Crisis Communication Workshop was held in 2015 primarily for Heads 
of Council and their alternates.  A similar workshop was provided in 2016.   
 
Action/Directive:   Each municipality's five year training program has been updated to 
include a crisis communication course every year for the next five years and this will be 
included in the Emergency Measures budget for the County. 

 
3. Recommendation:   For single municipal events, local staff may be able to deal with the 

communication needs of an emergency but for larger county wide events, municipalities 
may need and wish to access the resources of the County Communications Division and 
the Wellington OPP media officers.   
 
Action/Directive:    The Emergency Response Plan contains policies to provide for this 
resource in a large scale emergency.  Coordination of this assistance/resource may be 
provided through the Emergency Manager/CEMC or alternate.  Similar process may be 
followed for other County Departments such as Social Services. 

 
SUMMARY: 
 
It is recognized that in certain situations and depending upon local circumstances, there are 
some decisions that will have to be made locally that differ from the recognized response 
standards suggested in this report and, further, that may not be consistent with bordering 
municipal decisions.  However, the consensus and desire of the eight municipal emergency 



TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
 

COUNCIL REPORT  
 

5 
 

 

management program committees is, where feasible and practicable in County wide 
emergencies, to ensure a coordinated response so that all residents and business are provided 
with similar response and recovery efforts to emergency/abnormal situations as they arise.   
Having Emergency Management staff assist with coordination within and amongst 
municipalities during abnormal events and emergencies  has become an emergency 
management standard within the County that Municipal Staff/Municipal Control Groups expect 
and appreciate.   
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That Council receives the Report on the Strategic Direction for Emergency Management 
Programs and supports the recommendations and identified implementation of the 
recommendations and further that Council endorses the efforts of the Township’s Emergency 
Management Program Committee with the assistance of the Emergency Management staff to 
undertake the completion of the recommendations in a timely manner. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted 
 

 
Linda Dickson, MCIP, RPP, CMMIII Emergency Management Professional 
Emergency Manager/CEMC 
 



 
      2017 TOWNSHIP COUNCIL & BUDGET MEETING DATES

  MEETING SCHEDULE  

SUN MON TUE WED THU FRI SAT SUN MON TUE WED THU FRI SAT SUN MON TUE WED THU FRI SAT
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4

H C C
8 9 10 11 12 13 14 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 5 6 7 8 9 10 11

PDAC C PIM PIM
15 16 17 18 19 20 21 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 12 13 14 15 16 17 18

REC PDAC C March PDAC C
22 23 24 25 26 27 28 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 19 20 21 22 23 24 25

B PIM H REC REC
29 30 31 26 27 28 26 27 28 29 30 31

OGRA ends at noon on March 1

SUN MON TUE WED THU FRI SAT SUN MON TUE WED THU FRI SAT SUN MON TUE WED THU FRI SAT
1 1 2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3

C FCM
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

C PIM PDAC FCM C PIM
9 10 11 12 13 14 15 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 11 12 13 14 15 16 17

PDAC H REC C PIM PDAC

16 17 18 19 20 21 22 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 18 19 20 21 22 23 24
H REC C PIM H REC C

23 24 25 26 27 28 29 28 29 30 31 25 26 27 28 29 30

30

SUN MON TUE WED THU FRI SAT SUN MON TUE WED THU FRI SAT SUN MON TUE WED THU FRI SAT
1 1 2 3 4 5 1 2

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 3 4 5 6 7 8 9
H H PDAC C H C

9 10 11 12 13 14 15 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 10 11 12 13 14 15 16
PDAC PDAC PIM

16 17 18 19 20 21 22 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 17 18 19 20 21 22 23
REC C REC C PIM*

23 23 25 26 27 28 29 27 28 29 30 31 24 25 26 27 28 29 30
CB

30 31

SUN MON TUE WED THU FRI SAT SUN MON TUE WED THU FRI SAT SUN MON TUE WED THU FRI SAT
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 1 2 3 4 1 2

C C
8 9 10 11 12 13 14 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 3 4 5 6 7 8 9

H PDAC OPB PIM OCB
15 16 17 18 19 20 21 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 10 11 12 13 14 15 16

REC C PIM PDAC C PIM* PDAC PIM
22 23 24 25 26 27 28 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 17 18 19 20 21 22 23

OPB REC REC C
29 30 31 26 27 28 29 30 24 25 26 27 28 29 30

H H
* November 16, 2017- Budget Input 31

PIM B Final Budget Approval
H Denotes a Statutory Holiday/Offices Closed CB Capital Budget Meeting - 9 a.m. 
C Council Meeting ( 1 p.m.) OPB Operating Budget Meeting - 9 a.m. 
C Council Meeting ( 7 p.m.) PDAC Planning Development Advisory Committee - 7 p.m.

REC Recreation Committee Meeting - 7 p.m.

FEBRUARY

ROMA

MARCHJANUARY

Public Info. Meeting/Open House (7:00p.m.) 

Break

OCTOBER NOVEMBER DECEMBER

JULY AUGUST

OGRA 

SEPTEMBER

APRIL

AMO

* Sept 21st - User Fees 

MAY JUNE



REPORT ADM–2016-023 
 

 
TO:  Mayor and Members of Council 
 
FROM: Nina Lecic, Deputy Clerk 

 
DATE:  December 7 2016  

 
SUBJECT: Council Appointments to Committees  
 
FILE No.:   C12 

 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
THAT Council receives Report ADM-2016-023 regarding Council Appointments to 
Committees;  
 
AND THAT Councillor ______________ be appointed to the Community Oriented 
Police; 
 
AND THAT Councillor _______________ be appointed to the Friends of the Mill Creek; 
 
AND THAT Councillor _______________ be appointed to the Puslinch Lake 
Conservation Association; 
 
AND THAT Councillor _______________ be appointed to the Planning and 
Development Advisory Committee; 
 
AND THAT Councillor _______________ be appointed to the Badenoch Committee;  
 
AND THAT Councillor _______________ be appointed to the Recreation Committee; 
 
AND THAT Councillor _______________ be appointed to the Well Protection 
Committee; 
 
AND THAT all Council appointments to Committees expire with the term of Council, with 
the exception of the Badenoch Committee; 
 
AND THAT the appointment to the Badenoch Committee expires at the end of 2017;  
 
AND THAT Council enact a By-law to appoint Councillor _____________ to PDAC 
(Committee of Adjustment). 
 
DISCUSSION 
 



REPORT NO. ADM-2016-023 
Page 2 of 2 

 
Background 
 
Council members were appointed to various committees at the January 21, 2015 
Council meeting, for a term expiring at the end of 2016. This report is seeking to appoint 
Councillors to various committees for a term expiring concurrent with the term of 
Council.  
 
Purpose  
 
The following is an outline of the available committees. In accordance with past 
procedure, members of Council have submitted their expressions of interest.  
 
Please note that, the term for the Badenoch Committee is until the end of 2017, as the 
Township is currently working with the Badenoch Committee to establish itself as a not 
for profit organization or a charitable trust.  
 
Committee  Member Term Expression of Interest? 
Community Oriented 
Police 

Vacant  2018 Councillor Bulmer  
Councillor Fielding 

Friends of Mill Creek  Councillor Roth  2018 Councillor Bulmer 
Councillor Fielding  

Puslinch Lake 
Conservation 
Association 

Councillor Fielding  2018 Councillor Sepulis 

Planning & 
Development 
Advisory Committee 
(Committee of 
Adjustment) 

Councillor Roth  2018 Councillor Bulmer  
Councillor Fielding 
Councillor Sepulis 

Badenoch Committee Councillor Bulmer 2018 Councillor Bulmer  
Recreation Committee Vacant  2018  
Well Protection 
Committee 

Councillor Bulmer 2018 Councillor Bulmer  

 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
There are no financial impacts association with this report.  

 
APPLICABLE LEGISLATION AND REQUIREMENTS 
 
Municipal Act, 2001 
 
ATTACHMENTS  
 
None 
 



 

1 
  

 

REPORT ADM-2016-024 

 

TO:   Mayor and Members of Council 
 
FROM:  Nina Lecic, Deputy Clerk 
 
MEETING DATE: December 7, 2016 
 
SUBJECT:  Appointment of Closed Meeting Investigator 
  C01APP 
  

 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
THAT Report ADM-2016-024 regarding the Appointment of the Closed Meeting 
Investigator be received;  
 
AND THAT Council pass a By-law to appoint John Maddox of JGM Consulting as its 
Closed Meeting Investigator for a two year term commencing January 1, 2017; 
 
AND THAT Council authorize retaining the services of John Maddox of JGM Consulting 
(JGM) through an agreement entered into between JGM and the Corporation of the 
County of Wellington. 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
Purpose 
 
The purpose of Report ADM-2016-024 is to appoint a closed meeting investigator. 
 
Background 
 
Section 239 of the Municipal Act gives Municipal Councils authority to go into closed 
sessions. The Act also allows for a person to request an investigation as to whether a 
municipality has complied with section 239. In order to facilitate an investigation, a 
Municipality has the authority to appoint an investigator who has the function to 
investigate in an independent manner, on a complaint basis, whether the municipality 
has complied with section 239. If no appointment is made by the municipality, the 
Provincial Ombudsman will carry out investigations upon receipt of a complaint.  
 



 

2 
  

Council at its meeting held December 17, 2014 appointed John Maddox of JGM 
Consulting as its Closed Meeting investigator as part of an agreement with Wellington 
County, for a term expiring on December 31, 2016.  
 
Closed Meeting Investigator 
 
The County of Wellington, at its meeting held on November 15, 2016 passed a 
recommendation to appoint John Maddox as its closed meeting investigator. The 
County invited its member Municipalities to participate in the investigator agreement. 
The following Wellington County member municipalities have either appointed or are in 
the process of appointing John Maddox as their closed meeting investigator: 
 
Town of Erin 
Town of Minto 
Township of Centre Wellington 
Township of Mapleton 
Township of Wellington North 
 
Closed Meeting Investigation Process 
 
The Township’s Closed Meeting Investigation process is a follows: 
 
A member of the public may submit a request to the Investigator relating to compliance 
with the Municipal Act and the Township’s procedural by-law for a meeting or part of a 
meeting that is closed to the public. A complaint is treated as confidential, unless 
authorization is given by the complainant to release his/her identity. 
 
A request is initiated through completion of a “Closed Meeting Investigation Request” 
form.  The form may be obtained at the Township office or from the Township’s website 
at www.puslinch.ca under “Applications, Licences and Permits”. 
 
A completed “Closed Meeting Investigation Request” may be submitted by mail to: 

John Maddox, Municipal Closed Meeting Investigator 
99 Edgevalley Road, Unit #42 

London, ON  N5Y 5N1 
 
or to the Township Office in a sealed envelope clearly identified as a “Closed Meeting 
Investigation Request”. 
 
An inquiry may be submitted by email to John Maddox at maddoxjo@sympatico.ca or 
by phone during regular office hours at 519-951-0330. 
 

http://www.puslinch.ca/
mailto:maddoxjo@sympatico.ca


 

3 
  

The investigator upon receipt of a request has 30 days to respond.  
  
Financial Implications 
 
Wellington County would be responsible for paying: 
 

• An annual retainer fee of $300.00 for the Township (along with a $1000.00 
annual retainer for the County). 

 
When an investigation is initiated the Township is responsible for paying: 
 

• An hourly rate of $100.00 with reasonable, receipted expenses being reimbursed 
including mileage at the Township’s rate which is currently $.50/km 

 
The above fee structure was approved by Council as part of the current agreement with 
Mr. Maddox.  
 
Funds are included in operating budget account 01-0010-4320 in the event a request is 
filed. 
 
Applicable Legislation and Requirements 
 
Municipal Act 2001, S.O. 2001, c. 25 s. 239 



REPORT NO. ADM-2016-025 
Page 1 of 2 

 

1 
  

REPORT ADM-2016-025 

 

TO:   Mayor and Members of Council 
 
FROM:  Nina Lecic, Deputy Clerk 
 
MEETING DATE: December 7, 2016 
 
SUBJECT:  Acting Mayor Schedule 
   File: C00- ACT 
  
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
THAT Report ADM-2016-025 regarding the revised Acting Mayor Schedule be 
received;  
 
AND THAT Council approves the revised Acting Mayor Schedule.   
 
Background 
 
Council approved the Acting Mayor schedule for the term at the January 21, 2015 
meeting.  
 
Purpose 
 
The purpose of this report is to provide Council with a revised Acting Mayor schedule, 
based on recent changes on Council. The schedule is for the remainder of the term of 
Council.  
 
Member Term  
Councillor Bulmer  October 2016 to December 2016  
Councillor Sepulis  January 2017 to March 2017 
Councillor Fielding  April 2017 to June 2017  
Councillor Bulmer  July 2017 to September 2017  
Councillor Roth  October 2017 to December 2017  
Councillor Fielding  January 2018 to March 2018 
Councillor Bulmer  April 2018 to June 2018  
Councillor Roth  July 2018 to September 2018  
Councillor Sepulis  October 2018 to November 2018 

 



REPORT NO. ADM-2016-025 
Page 2 of 2 

 

2 
  

Financial Implications 
 
There are no financial implications associated with this report.  
 
Applicable Legislation and Requirements 
 
Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c. 25 



VALUE OF CONSTRUCTION    % PERMITS
2015 2016 2015 2016 PREVIOUS ISSUED

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
 

January $1,355,000.00 $112,500.00 $13,967.00 $1,967.00 8% 7
   

February $1,069,000.00 $1,775,000.00 $12,381.00 $23,927.64 166% 9
    

March $2,436,000.00 $2,953,000.00 $23,235.95 $30,677.78 121% 20
      

April $2,188,000.00 $4,590,000.00 $31,680.20 $52,316.00 210% 30
      

May $2,681,000.00 $3,956,560.00 $39,250.30 $47,618.48 148% 30
     

June $3,020,000.00 $1,631,000.00 $33,113.00 $17,584.00 54% 21
      

July $1,416,000.00 $2,450,300.00 $24,362.00 $30,910.49 173% 21
      

August $5,241,000.00 $7,738,000.00 $46,974.60 $68,354.40 148% 42
      

September $2,512,000.00 $3,291,595.00 $28,795.00 $38,713.00 131% 25
      

October $4,836,000.00 $3,379,500.00 $47,878.90 $30,404.74 70% 27
      

November $2,357,000.00 $7,380,117.00 $20,878.00 $75,734.00 313% 41
     

December $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0%
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
TOTALS TO DATE $39,257,572.00 $418,207.53 273
      
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
2015 COMPARISON $29,111,000.00 $322,515.95 238

 
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

Total % PREVIOUS 135% 130% 115%

PERMIT FEES COLLECTED

2016 BUILDING REPORT



Note:  The Graphs Below only Include Septic Permits in 2012 and beyond

 $-

 $10,000,000

 $20,000,000

 $30,000,000

 $40,000,000

 $50,000,000

 $60,000,000

 $70,000,000

 $80,000,000

 $90,000,000

20
08

.0
1

20
08

.0
4

20
08

.0
7

20
08

.1

20
09

.0
1

20
09

.0
4

20
09

.0
7

20
09

.1

20
10

.0
1

20
10

.0
4

20
10

.0
7

20
10

.1

20
11

.0
1

20
11

.0
4

20
11

.0
7

20
11

.1

20
12

.0
1

20
12

.0
4

20
12

.0
7

20
12

.1

20
13

.0
1

20
13

.0
4

20
13

.0
7

20
13

.1

20
14

.0
1

20
14

.0
4

20
14

.0
7

20
14

.1

20
15

.0
1

20
15

.0
4

20
15

.0
7

20
15

.1

20
16

.0
1

20
16

.0
4

20
16

.0
7

20
16

.1

Total Value of Permits 12 Month Rolling Total 



Note:  The Graphs Below only Include Septic Permits in 2012 and beyond

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

# of Permits 12 Month Rolling Total 



Note:  The Graphs Below only Include Septic Permits in 2012 and beyond

0

100000

200000

300000

400000

500000

600000

700000

800000

Permit Fees Collected 12 Month Rolling Total 



1 
 

REPORT PD-2016-033 
 

CONCURRENCE REPORT to INDUSTRY CANADA 

FROM: Kelly Patzer, Development Coordinator 

DATE:  December 7, 2016 

SUBJECT: Telecommunication Application File A12/ROG – Rogers Communications 
Inc. 45 metre Tower, Plan 131, Part Lot 3, West of Blind Line, located on 
Arkell Road and Victoria Road. 

 

 
RECOMMENDATIONS: 

That Report PD-2016-033 regarding Telecommunication Application File A12/ROG – 
Rogers Communications Inc. (Rogers) 45 metre Tower, Plan 131, Part Lot 3, West of 
Blind Line, located on Arkell Road and Victoria Road, be received; and 

That Council authorize the release of the Concurrence Report to Industry Canada 
regarding the proposed 45 metre Rogers monopole antenna tower. 

BACKGROUND: 

1. Purpose of Report 

Industry Canada, the Federal department responsible for granting authorization for 
telecommunication facilities, requires that applicants consult with local land use 
authorities for telecommunication installations. The Township follows Industry Canada’s 
default public consultation process for antenna siting, which Applicants are expected to 
adhere to in order to complete the approval process as set by Industry Canada. This 
concurrence report has taken into consideration all consultations, discussions and 
submissions of Rogers and the public. 

2. Application 

LandSquared, on behalf of Rogers has submitted an application is to construct a 45 
metre (148 ft.)  monopole antenna tower. A chain link security fence enclosure is 
proposed that will be 1.8 metres high and 10 metres by 8 metres in length. Barbed wire 
will top the fence.  A prefabricated galvanized steel walk-in radio equipment cabinet will 
be located within the fenced compound and underground hydro will be routed along the 
access to the tower off of Arkell Road. 



2 
 

The tower is required to improve network conditions in the area. LandSquared has 
indicated there are no existing towers or buildings of sufficient height available in the 
area that would be an alternative to a new tower. The installation will significantly 
improve the wireless signal quality and data speeds in the area and will support 
colocation for other wireless providers. 

3. Location & Site Characteristics 

The proposed tower compound site is located on a vacant agricultural property at the 
corner of Arkell Road and Victoria Road. There is no natural vegetation on the level 
agricultural field to minimize the visual impact of monopole antenna tower. The closest 
tree line is along the north-west edge of the property, directly adjacent to a residential 
property and the Victoria East Golf Course. North-east of the subject property are 
residential properties on Farnham Road and south-east is the Arkell Research Station. 
Across Victoria Road to the south-west is vacant farmland within the City of Guelph 
owned by the Upper Grand District School Board. A commercial development is located 
directly to the south. The closest residential property is approximately 210 metres from 
the proposed tower compound. 

 
Source: County of Wellington 2015 Air Photo & Parcel Fabric 

 



3 
 

4. Staff, Agency & Public Circulation Comments: 

The application was circulated to various external agencies and internal departments for 
comment. An entrance permit will be required from the County of Wellington for the new 
access on Arkell Road. Township Staff recommended that the chain link security fence 
with barbed wire be upgraded to a more appealing wooden design with barbed wire to 
shield the view of the compound at the base of the tower. The tower is proposed in a 
highly visible location adjacent to a busy urban area with no natural screening. Wooden 
security fencing will improve aesthetics at the base of the tower. 

It is noted that the civic address of 1216 Victoria Road South was referenced as the 
property location for the tower on the notification package. This is incorrect as 1216 
Victoria Rd. S. is the adjacent L-shaped residential property to the north-west. The 
location map on the newspaper notice and the public notification package referenced 
the correct property, which is vacant and does not have a civic address.  

The Public Notice was mailed to properties within a 135 metre radius of the proposed 
tower. The circulation radius is determined by calculating the height of the tower by 
three, as prescribed by Industry Canada.  

The Upper Grand District School Board (UGDSB) who owns the vacant property across 
the road on Victoria Rd indicated concern that the monopole design does not integrate 
into the environment and there is preference for a lattice tower.  

A landowner/resident who received notification in the mail circulation opposes the 
proposed monopole and listed concerns including the reduction of valuable farmland 
that adjoins wetlands, a tower would introduce further commercial uses on the property, 
safety risks in the form of temptation to trespass and other towers should be used to 
share service with other providers. 

5. Applicant Response to Comments Received: 

LandSquared confirmed with Rogers that a wooden fence design could be installed in 
place of a chain link fence around the base of the tower compound. A wooden fence 
can be built to be 2.43 metres high (8 feet) without barbed wire.  

LandSquared consulted with the Township regarding the tower design comments 
received from the UGDSB. It was concluded there is no tower design preference in the 
Township and it would be best to construct a monopole tower as indicated in the notice 
mailed to the public and placed in the Wellington Advertiser. 

LandSquared responded to the landowner/resident and addressed all concerns raised. 
The proposed location of the tower has been situated in consultation with subject 
property owner to minimize disruptions to the existing agricultural operations on the 
property, there are no wetlands on the property or are any expanding or linked around 
the property, a tower installation does not affect or expand any existing land use 



4 
 

permissions on the property, security fencing is being installed around the tower and 
Rogers would increase any security measures if security is found to be an issue and 
there are no other towers to co-locate on in the required service area. There were no 
further comments submitted in response to LandSquared.  

APPLICABLE LEGISLATION & REQUIREMENTS:  

1. County of Wellington Official Plan 

Section 12.6.1, Utilities Allowed, may permit the following uses in any land use 
designation, subject to the provisions of the Zoning By-law: 

All electrical power facilities, including all works defined by the Power Corporation 
Act and telecommunications facilities and multi-use cables, provided that the 
development satisfies the provisions of the Environmental Assessment Act, the 
Environmental Protection Act and any other relevant legislation.  

2. Township of Puslinch Zoning By-Law 

When utility services are licensed by Industry Canada, Local, Regional and Provincial 
Planning documents do not apply. The subject lands are zoned Agricultural. Public uses 
are permitted in the A Zone.   

CONCLUSION: 

Township Staff notes that communication facilities are federally regulated with the final 
decision vested with Industry Canada.  LandSquared, representing Rogers, has 
consulted with the Township prior to filing its application, and has submitted the fees, 
documents and reports required by Industry Canada’s Default Consultation Process.  

Staff has concluded that the Applicant has satisfied the requirements of the consultation 
process and have no further comments regarding the telecommunication tower and 
therefore recommend the issuance of this concurrence report subject to the following 
two conditions: 

1. An approved Entrance Permit from the County of Wellington is required for the 
proposed access on Arkell Road. 

2. The proposed chain link fence around the tower compound is to be upgraded to 
a 2.43 metre high (8 foot) wooden fence.  

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

Attachment “A” – Subject Property Plan 



___
Wooden Fence

___ 2.43 m (8 foot) high



 Puslinch Recreation Committee 
Tuesday, October 18 ,2016 

7:00 p.m. 
Council Chambers, Aberfoyle 

 
 

MINUTES 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT 
 
Kevin Johnson  
Margaret Hauwert 
Daina Makinson, Acting Chair 
June Williams  
 
TOWNSHIP STAFF 
 
Karen Landry, CAO/Clerk 
Don Creed, Director of Public Works and Parks 
Jessie Beauclaire, Customer Service Representative 
 
OTHERS PRESENT 
 
Councillor John Sepulis  
Councillor Susan Fielding  
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

 
Daina Makinson called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 

2. DISCLOSURE OF PECUNIARY INTEREST 
 
None.  
 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
a) September 20, 2016 – Regular Meeting 

 
Moved by: June Williams  Seconded by: Kevin Johnson  REC-2016-033 

 
That the Minutes of the Recreation Committee meeting dated September 20, 2016 be 
adopted. 

 
CARRIED 

 
4. DELEGATIONS/PRESENTATIONS 

 
None. 

 
5. REGULAR BUSINESS 

 

 1. Election of Chair and Vice Chair (if required)  
 
      Karen Landry facilitated the election of the Chair process.  
 

June Williams nominated Daina Makinson. Daina Makinson respectfully declined the 
Chair position stating that she would like to continue in her role as Vice-Chair. 
 
Daina Makinson nominated Kevin Johnson. Kevin Johnson accepted the nomination. 
 
There being no further nominations Kevin Johnson was appointed as Chair. 
 
Kevin Johnson assumed the role of Chair. 
 

1 
 



 Puslinch Recreation Committee 
Tuesday, October 18 ,2016 

7:00 p.m. 
Council Chambers, Aberfoyle 

 
 

2. New Walking Trail and Promoting the Trail  

 Margaret Hauwert expressed concern with not being aware of the new trail on the 
Puslinch Community Centre lands.   

 It was noted by staff that updates regarding the commencement and completion of a 
capital project is not reported on to the committee.  A capital project is approved through 
the approval of the capital budget. 

 Daina Makinson suggested that if a committee member would like an update on a 
capital project that a member make a request to include the item on an agenda. 

 The Committee noted that it would like to discuss promotion and signage of the trail at a 
future meeting. 

 Karen Landry advised that Council is considering a motion at its meeting to be held on 
October 19, 2016 to name the trail in memory of Councillor Stokley. 

  Moved by: June Williams  Seconded by: Margaret Hauwert REC-2016-034 

 That the Committee support the motion being considered by Council to name the trail 
on the Puslinch Community Centre lands in memory of Councillor Stokley. 

  CARRIED 

3. Council’s Progress with “branding” leading to Signage  

 June Williams inquired if a company has been retained to complete the branding 
exercise.   

 Karen Landry advised this capital project is subject to grant funding be available.  The 
previous grant funding program that this project was eligible was discontinued by 
Province.  The Township is monitoring grant funding opportunities, and upon grant 
funding being secured the Township will proceed with this capital project. 

4.  Arkell Basketball Court, Update 

 June Williams advised that the basketball court area has been cleared and graded.   

 June Williams noted the following companies have donated or contributed to the project: 

• McKenzie Brothers 
• Cox Construction 
• Davan Landscaping 

 June Williams stated the project has received overwhelming support from the 
Community, and noted the project should be completed by the end of October. 

5. Direction/Work Plan within Committee 

 Kevin Johnson noted the items from the spring work plan had been completed and 
suggested that Council provide direction on what the Committee should work on next. 

 Karen Landry noted one of the items to be completed by the Committee as identified in 
the Recreation and Parks Master Plan is a review of the Committee’s Terms of 
Reference. 

 Karen Landry indicated that the current terms of reference will be listed on the next 
agenda for review. 

 The Committee should also develop a work plan to be presented to Council for 
endorsement. 

2 
 



 Puslinch Recreation Committee 
Tuesday, October 18 ,2016 

7:00 p.m. 
Council Chambers, Aberfoyle 

 
 
6.  Community Newsletter Update  

   Upon discussion and review of the information from the Township of North Dumfries, 
Daina Makinson will draft a sample newsletter format for Puslinch, and this matter will 
be included on the next agenda. 

7.  Operating Budget – 2016 Completed Capital Projects (Projected) – 2017 Proposed 
Capital Budget and Forecast – 2017 Proposed Operating Budget 

   Kevin Johnson expressed concern with commenting on the draft budget as the 
committee does not have all the background information. 

  The Committee received the budget documentation as information and will not be 
providing further comments on the budget. 

8.  Monthly Rental Revenues/Annual 2015 Summary  

   The Committee received this information and noted the revenues were doing well. 

9.  Available December 2015 Revenues  

  The Committee received this information. 

10. Report FIN-2016-022 Quarterly Financial Reports  

   The entire committee feels that the rental revenues are doing well.  

  June Williams expressed concern with the costs for hydro.  Karen Landry noted that 
hydro costs are projected to increase in 2017. 

  June Williams expressed concern with the costs of cleaning supplies.  June Williams 
noted concerns with the cleaning standards at the Community Centre at a recent event 
that she attended.  June Williams will provide further details directly to Karen Landry. 

11. YMCA Advertising  

 Margaret Hauwert expressed concerns with no advertisements being distributed to the 
Township or the school to inform residents that there would be camps offered for PD 
days, March and Winter breaks.   

 Township staff will reach out to Linda Killough to obtain any hard copy promotional 
material that can be distributed regarding the PD days program and a link will be 
established through the Township’s website. 

 The Committee requested that any promotional information also be forwarded to 
Puslinch Today and the Puslinch Pioneer. 

12. Signs on PCC Lands 

 Township staff was requested to report back to the Committee regarding the Sign By-
law requirements and whether there are any active permits. 

6. CLOSED MEETING 
 
None. 
 

7. ADJOURNMENT  
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:18 p.m.  
 
 

8. NEXT MEETING 
 
Tuesday, November 22, 2016 at 7:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers. 

3 
 



 THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
PUBLIC MEETING MINUTES 

 
 

Page 1 of 2 
 

DATE: November 10, 2016 

TIME: 7:00 p.m. 

PLACE: Puslinch Municipal Complex 

FILE NUMBER: Zoning Amendment File D14/ONT 
 1340464 Ontario Ltd (Weber) 
 4576 Wellington Road 32 

MEMBERS: Mayor Dennis Lever - Chair 
 Councillor Ken Roth 
 Councillor John Sepulis 
 Councillor Matthew Bulmer 
 

The Chair welcomed those attending the Public Meeting. 

No pecuniary interest was declared by any member of Council. 

The Chair advised the purpose of the Public Meeting is to inform and provide the public with the 
opportunity to ask questions, or to express views with respect to the proposed Zoning By-law 
Amendment commenced by the applicant Jeff Buisman of Van Harten Surveying on behalf of 
1340464 Ontario Ltd (Laurie Weber), located at 4576 Wellington Road 32. 
 
The Chair advised that the members of Council are here to observe and listen to public 
comments; however, they will not provide a position on the matter. 
 
The Chair informed attendees when Council makes a decision, should you disagree with that 
decision, the Planning Act provides you with an opportunity to appeal this application to the 
Ontario Municipal Board for a hearing. Please note that if a person or public body does not make 
oral submissions at a public meeting or written submissions to the Township of Puslinch before the 
decision is made, the person or public body is not entitled to appeal the decision of the Township of 
Puslinch to the Ontario Municipal Board.  In addition, if a person or public body does not make an 
oral submission at a public meeting, or make written comments to the Township of Puslinch before 
the decision is made, the person or public body may not be added as a party to the hearing of an 
appeal before the Ontario Municipal Board unless, in the opinion of the Board, there are 
reasonable grounds to do so.   

The Chair noted that the Planning Act requires that at least one Public Meeting be held for each 
development proposal.  
 
The Chair instructed the format of the Public Meeting is as follows:  
 

• The applicant will present the purpose and details of the application and any further 
relevant information. 

• Following this the public can obtain clarification, ask questions and express their 
views on the proposal.  

• Following this members of Council have the opportunity to obtain clarification and 
ask questions of the proposal.  

• The applicant and staff will attempt to answer questions or respond to concerns this 
evening. If this is not possible, the applicant and/or staff will follow up and obtain this 
information. Responses will be provided when this matter is brought forward and 
evaluated by Council at a later date. 

Presentations 

Jeff Buisman, Van Harten Surveying, remarked the purpose of the rezoning is to facilitate an 
approved severance that is subject to the Surplus Farm Dwelling policies of the County of 
Wellington Official Plan. The retained parcel is part of a larger farm operation. When a 
residential dwelling is severed from the farm operation in lands designated as Prime 
Agricultural, the retained agricultural farmed lands are to be zoned to not permit a dwelling. All 
other requirements of the severance have been met. 



 THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
PUBLIC MEETING MINUTES 

 
 

Page 2 of 2 
 

Question/Comments 

Jasbir Gill, 6577 Concession 4, asked what the dimensions of the severed parcel are. 

Jeff Buisman indicated the severed lot is 2.2 hectares and has 70 metre frontage and the 
retained farm land is 38 hectares with 327 metre frontage. 

There were no further questions and the Chair called an end to the public meeting and advised 
that Council would not be taking action on this proposal tonight. 

Adjournment 

The meeting adjourned at 7:05 p.m. 

 

 



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
 

          BY-LAW NUMBER 083/16 
 

Being a by-law to Appoint a Closed 
Meeting Investigator 
       

 
WHEREAS by Section 239.1 of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c.25, 
as amended, permits a person to request an investigation of whether 
a municipality or local board has complied with Section 239 of the 
Municipal Act, 2001, as amended, or a procedure by-law under 
subsection 238(2) in respect of a meeting or part of a meeting that 
was closed to the public; 
 
AND WHEREAS the Municipal Act, 2001, s. 239.2 authorizes a 
municipality to appoint a meeting investigator who has the function 
to investigate in an independent manner; 
 
AND WHEREAS Council of The Corporation of the County of 
Wellington retained John Maddox of JGM Consulting to provide a 
Closed Meeting Investigator Service to the County of Wellington and 
the member municipalities who wish to participate; 
 
NOW THEREFORE the Council of the Corporation of the Township of 
Puslinch hereby enacts as follows: 
 
1) That pursuant to Sections 9, 10, 11 and 239.2 of the Municipal 

Act, 2001, as amended, Council hereby appoints JGM 
Consulting as the Closed Meeting Investigator for the Township 
of Puslinch in accordance with the terms and conditions of the 
agreement between the County of Wellington and JGM 
Consulting;  

 
2) That the appointment shall be for a term of two years 

commencing the 1st day of January, 2017 and ending on the 
31st day of December 2019, in accordance with the terms and 
conditions of the agreement between the County of 
Wellington and John Maddox of JGM Consulting. 

 
3) That this By-Law shall come into force and take effect upon 

the final passage thereof. 
 
 
READ A FIRST, SECOND AND THIRD TIME AND FINALLY PASSED THIS 7th 
DAY OF December, 2015. 
 
 

____________________________  
Dennis Lever, Mayor 
 
 
____________________________ 

     Karen Landry, C.A.O./Clerk 



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
 

          BY-LAW NUMBER 084/16 
 

Being a by-law to confirm the 
proceedings of the Council of the 
Corporation of the Township of 
Puslinch at its meeting held on  
December 7, 2016.       

 
WHEREAS by Section 5 of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c.25 the 
powers of a municipal corporation are to be exercised by its Council; 
 
AND WHEREAS by Section 5, Subsection (3) of the Municipal Act, a 
municipal power including a municipality's capacity, rights, powers 
and privileges under section 8, shall be exercised by by-law unless 
the municipality is specifically authorized to do otherwise; 
 
AND WHEREAS it is deemed expedient that the proceedings of the 
Council of the Corporation of the Township of Puslinch at its meeting 
held December 7, 2016 be confirmed and adopted by By-law; 
 
NOW THEREFORE the Council of the Corporation of the Township of 
Puslinch hereby enacts as follows: 
 
1) The action of the Council of the Corporation of the Township of 

Puslinch, in respect of each recommendation contained in the 
reports of the Committees and each motion and resolution 
passed and other action taken by the Council at said meeting 
are hereby adopted and confirmed. 

 
2) The Head of Council and proper official of the Corporation are 

hereby authorized and directed to do all things necessary to 
give effect to the said action of the Council. 

 
3) The Head of Council and the Clerk are hereby authorized and 

directed to execute all documents required by statute to be 
executed by them, as may be necessary in that behalf and 
the Clerk authorized and directed to affix the seal of the said 
Corporation to all such documents. 

 
 
READ A FIRST, SECOND AND THIRD TIME AND FINALLY PASSED THIS 7th 
DAY OF December, 2016. 
 

 
 

_____________________________ 
Dennis Lever, Mayor 

 
 

____________________________ 
     Karen Landry, C.A.O./Clerk 


	December 7, 2016 Council Agenda
	November 23, 2016 Minutes
	Communications
	7 (1) Financial Indicator Review
	7 (2) Request for discount Global Vets Committee
	7 (3) ARB Fees Increase Memorandum
	7 (4) EBR- Noor Associate Inc.
	7 (5) Freedomm Mobile Tower
	7 (6) water_bottling_moratorium_Puslinch_Township

	IG
	7 (7)(1) Accommodation Review Process
	7 (7)(2) Bill 7, Promoting Affordable Housting Act 2016
	7 (7)(3) Bill 68 Modernizing Ontario’s Municipal Legislation Act,
	7 (7)(4) Chief Drinking Water Inspetor Annual Report 2015-2016
	7 (7)(5) FIRE PROTECTION AND PREVENTION ACT
	7 (7)(6) Guelph Eramosa- Notice of complete application
	7 (7)(7) Hydro Costs for Rural Areas
	7 (7)(8) Rail Safety Improvement Program
	7 (7)(9) Res. of Council No. 10 adopted Nov. 8, 2016
	7 (7)(10) esolution Regarding Access and Delivery of Hydro
	7 (7)(11) Wellington COunty- Notice of Draft Approval

	Delegation
	REPORTS
	9 (2)(a) Applications for Cancellation, Reduction or Refund of Taxes re  Chapter 25 Section 357 358 – Municipal Act
	9 (2)(b) FIN-2016-029 - 2017 User Fees and Charges By-law
	9 (3)(a) Puslinch 2016 Annual Report to Council (2)
	9 (3)(b) 2016 ERP Amendment 3 Report (2)
	9 (3)(c) Puslinch After Action Report
	9 (3)(d) 2016 Strategic Report to Council (2)
	9 (3)(e) 2017 Council and Budget Meeting Schedule
	9 (3)(f) Report ADM-2016-023- Council Appointments to Committees
	9 (3)(g) Report ADM-2016-024 - Appointment of Closed Meeting Investigator
	9 (3)(h) Report ADM-2016-025 - Acting Mayor Schedule
	9 (4)(a) Chief Building Report- November 2016
	9 (4)(b) PD-2016-033 - Rogers Concurrence Report

	Committee Minutes
	Rec Committee October 18, 2016
	2016 11 10 - Public Meeting  - ONT (Weber)

	BY-laws
	BL2016-083 Appointment John Maddox JGM Consulting - Closed Meeting Investigator
	Confirming By-law




